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ILLINOIS HEAL.TH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOA

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT ﬁ ECEIVED
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION, o 1 o 1.,

This Section must be completed for all projects. L.

HEALYH FACILITIES &
Facility/Project Identification SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
Facility Name: Lutheran Home for the Aqed, Ine.
Straet Address: 800 West Oakton Street

City and Zip Code:Arlington Heights, IL 60004
County: Cook Health Service Area 7 Health Planning Area; 71-A

Agplicant /Co-Applicant identification
[Provide for each co-applicant frefer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Nama:Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

Address. 800 Weat Qakton Street, Arlington Heights, IL 60004
Name of Registered Agent: Andrew P. Tecson

Name of Chief Executive Office;Roger W. Paulsberg

CEO Address: 3150 Salt Creek Lane, Arlington Heights, IL &0005

Telephone Number:847-368-7400

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

& Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
1 Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship 3 Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Hfllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which arganized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEHD DOCUMENTATION AS A'ITAGHMEITI'-‘I IN NUMERIC SECIUENTIAI. OR.DER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF TI-IE
APPLICATION FORM. . ° P oy Tns

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all corespondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name:Andrew P. Tecson

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecson, P.C.

Address:10 $. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600, Chicago, IL 60606
Telephone Number: 312-855-4321

E-mail Address: atecson@chuhak . com

Fax Number:312-444-9027

Additional Contact

|Person who is also authorized fo discuss the application for permit]

Name: Kimberly T. Boike

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecseon, P.C.

Address. 30 §. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600, Chicago, IL 60606
Telephone Number:312-855-6418

E-mail Address:kboike@gchuhak.com

Fax Number:312-444-5027

SEE NEXT PAGE FOR ADDITIONAL CONTACTS
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ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

JILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc,

Street Address: 800 West Oakton Street

City and Zip Code:Arlington Heights, IL 60004

County;. COCOK Health Service Area 7 Health Pianning Area: 7-A

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

_Exact Legal Name:Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc.

Address: 800 West Oakton Street, Arlington Heights, IL 60004
Name of Registered Agent: Andrew P. Tecson

Name of Chief Executive Officer:Roger W. Paulsberqg

CEQ Address:3150 Salt Creek Lane, Arlington Heights, IL 60005
Telephone Number:847-368-7400

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

& Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
4 For-profit Corporation O Governmental
[ Limited Liability Company ] Sole Propristorship OJ Other

o Corporations and limited liability companias must provide an Mlinols certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMEHT ATION AS AWMHMEM-1 iN NUMERIC SEQUENTI.AL ORDER AF!'ER THE LAST PAGE OF THE®
|/APPLICATION FORM, .=

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name:Andrew P. Tecson

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecson, P.C.

Address;30 5. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600

Telaphone Number; 312-855-4321

E-mail Address: atecson@chuhak . com

Fax Number:312-444-9027

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name:Kimberly T. Boike

Title: Countgel

Company Name:Chuhak & Tecson, P.C.

Address: 30 §. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600

Telephone Number:312-855-6416

E-mail Address:kboike@chuhak.com
Fax Number:312-444-9027

Page 1
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ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Sectlon must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facifity Name: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc

Street Address: 800 West Oakton Street

City and Zip Code;Arlington Heights, IL &0004

County: Cook Health Service Area / Health Planning Area. 7-A

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1930.220].

Exact Legal Name: Lutheran Life Communities

Address: 3150 Salt Creek Lane, Arlington Heights, 1L 60005
Name of Registered Agent. Andrew P. Tecson

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Roger W. Paulsberqg

CEQ Address: 3150 Salt Creek Lane, Arlington Heights, IL 60005
Telephone Number:877-545-5524

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

A Non-profit Corporation 0 Partnership
O For-profit Corporation O Governmental
| Limited Liability Company d Sole Proprietorehip O Other

o Corporations and limited lability companies must provide an lllinais certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

drng

[N
.APPEND DOCUMEHTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1IN, NUMERIC SEQUENTI.AL ORDER AFTER THE LAS‘I' PAGE OF THE ’é&" W‘
"APPLICATION FORM."> + S < A Qletn

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all corrgspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name:;Andrew P. Tecson

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecson, P.C.

Address:30 §. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600

Telephone Number:312-855-4321

E-mail Address; atecaon@chuhak.com

Fax Number:312-444-9027

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name:Kimberly T. Baoike

Title:Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecscon, P.C.

Address:30 §. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600

Talephone Number:312-855-5418

E-mail Address; kboike@chuhak.com

Fax Numbar:312-444-9027

Page 1
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION 1. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects,

Facility/Project ldentification

Facility Neme: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

Street Address: 800 West Dakton Street

City and Zip Code:Arlington Heights, IL 60004

County: Cook ' Health Service Area 7 Health Planning Area: 7-&

Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentlfication

Provide for aach co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legat Name:LUtheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc.
Address: 800 West Dakton Street, Arlington Heigqhts, IL 60004
Name of Reglstered Agent: Andrew P. Tecson

Name of Chief Executive Officer:Roger W. Paulsberqg

CEO Address:3150 Salt Creek’ Lane, Arlingten Heights, IL 60005
Telephone Number:847-368-7400

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Appticant

" Non-profit Corporation Hl Partnership
0 For-profit Corporation O Governmental
N Limited Liabllity Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of

esch partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

/\ .o

& LA

. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT—1 m Nuuemc seausmw. ORDER AFTER TI-IE LAST PAGE or THE
APPLICATION FORM. - B ) e e
Primary Contact

Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name.Andrew P. Tecson
Title: Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecson, DP.C.
Address: 30 §. Wacker Drive, Suite 2600

Telephone Number; 312-855-4321

E-mail Address: at ecson@chuhak . com

Fax Number:312-444-9027

Additional Contact

Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name:Kimberly T. Boike

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Chuhak & Tecson, P.C.

Address:30 5. Wacker Drive, Suite 2608

Telephone Number: 312-855-6418

E-mail Address: kboikegchuhak . com

Fax Number;312-444-9027

Page 1
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ADDITIONAL CONTACTS
[Person to receive all comrespendence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Charles P, Sheets

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Polsinelli Shughart

Address; 161 North Clark Street, Suite 4200, Chicago, IL. 60601

Telephone Number: 312-873-3605

E-mail Address: csheets@polsinellj.com

Fax Number: 312-819-1910

Name: Anne M. Cooper

Title: Counsel

Company Name: Polsinelli Shughart

Address: 161 North Clark Street, Suite 4200, Chicago, II. 60601

Telephone Number: 312-873-3606

E-mail Address: acooper @polsinelii.com

Fax Number: 312-819-1910

170728012003 747135
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ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permlit Contact
(Person to receive all corespondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE

EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20ILCS 3860
Name:Philip 6. Hemmer

Title: Administrator

Company Name:Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

Address: 800 West Oakton Street, Arlington Heigqhts, IL 60004

Telephone Number: 847-253-3710

E-mail Address: PHemmer@lutheranlifecommunities.org

Fax Number:224-735-4004

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

Address of Site Owner: 800 West Oakton Street, Arlington Heights, IL 60004

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: 500 wost eion Strest, Atingion Halghts, 1L 60004
Proof of ownershlp or control of the site I8 to be provided as Attachment 2. Exampies of proof of ownershlp
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, desd, notarized statement of the corporation

attestjng to ownemhlLan option to lease, a lntter of Intent to Iease ora Isase

P S e

T

- ‘ g p
APPEND oocuusmmou AS AHAEHHEHI—L N uuusmc ssauem'm onmsn AFTER THE uus"r PAGE OF THE
" APPLICATION FORM. - -

Operating Identity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility,and insert after this page.]
Exact Legal Name:Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

Address: 800 West Oakton Street, Arlington Heights, IL 60004

*4| Non-profit Corporation £l Partnership
O For-profit Corporation ]  Governmental
] Limited Liability Company 0 Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited fiability companies must provide an Illinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownership.
_:;; e TR LSO Gy SET L D i g TR e it i e R SRS Ty
; APPEND DOCUMENTAT‘DN AS ATD\GHMENT—S, IN. NU"EFUC 3EQUEHM ORDER ; THE LAST PAGE OF THE o
APPUC&'"ON Fom TR T M&‘k . ﬂ‘ i {A‘é W%“s’v A BTy k3 $WW&£;§£‘W? TP A i S‘rim £

Organizational Relationships
Provide (for each co-applicant} an organizationaf chart containing the name and relationship of any
person o7 entity who is refated (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
fi nancla[ contnbutlon

.\.; - g T P— g € - = i--‘h'.- =

e 3 - o Y .
APPEHD Docuuermmou AS mﬁm m Num—:nsc ssauem onman A.FTERTHE usr pms or 'I'HE-._ i
APPLICATION FORM. . ... R TR e TN

Page 2
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ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Flood Piain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of Ilinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the propoesed project localion showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www FEMA.qov or www.lllinolsfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the

requirements of l!lmo:s Executive Order #2005-5 {http:/fwww.hisrb.illinois.gov).

APPEND DOCUMEHTATION AS A]IAQHMEM IH NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. .

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

|Refer to application instructions.|
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservatlon Act.

'APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT, IN uuuemc seouarrw. ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ,

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b}] _
Part 1120 Applicability or Classification;
Part 1110 Classification: {Check one only
B Substantive [ Part 1120 Not Applicable
[ Category A Project
O Non-substantive Category B Project
[J DHS or DVA Project

Page 3
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ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

2. Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a lega!
description of the slte. Include the rationate regarding the project's cassification as substantive or non-substantive.

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc., a faith based not-for-profit organization (the
“Lutheran Home”), proposes a major modernization and expansion of portions of its
campus located at B0C West Oakton Street, Arlington Heights, Illincis. The
Lutheran Home is the licensed entity and it is the applicant. Lutheran Home and
Services for the Aged, Inc. is a faith based not-for-profit organization and the
parent company of the lutheran Home., Lutheran Life Communities, a faith based
not-for-profit organization, is the parent company of Lutheran Home and Services
for the Aged, Inc. and is the ultimate parent of The Lutheran Home, Lutheran
Foundation for the Aged, Inc. is a faith based not-for-profit organization
affiliated with the aforementicned entities, The Lutheran Home and Lutheran Home
and Services for the Aged, are all Members of the Obligated Group which is
jeintly and severally liable for the money borrowed from the proceeds of tax
exempt bonds which will be used as part of the funding for the Project.
Consequently, Lutheran Life Communitiee, Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged,
Inc., and Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. are named as co-applicants.

The Lutheran Home was founded in 1892 by a Lutheran Pastor and a community of lay
people to care for aging family, friends and neighbora. The current licensed
facility consists of 334 skilled nursing beds. As part of the Project, the
Lutheran Home plans to renovate and expand a portion of its campus c¢alled the
Olson Pavilion. The Olson Pavilion is a 4 story building located in the west
portion of the campus.

As part of the Project, the Clson Pavilion, which currently houses 252 skilled
nursing beds, will be gutted and a new addition will be added to the existing
Olson Pavilion. The amount of living space for each private skilled nurasing room
in the Claon Pavilion will remain the same, but as part of the renovation, each
room will have 1ts own private bathroom with an ADA accessible shower.
Additionally, the Olson Pavilion will be upgraded to add fire sprinklers, new
energy efficient windows, new plumbing, new electrical, new heating, ventilation
and air conditioning systems and new common areas and community space.

In addition to the renovation of the Olson Pavilion, a new addition will be added
to the existing Olson Pavilion {(the “Expanded Pavilion”). The Expanded Pavilion
will contain a new physical therapy center, which will replace the current
physical therapy room in the Olson Pavilion. The Expanded Pavilion will also
contain 78 new private skilled nursing rooms, which will each have private
bathrooms with ADA accegsible showers. These skilled nursing rooms will replace
the skilled nursing rooms in the Olson Pavilion that are lost due to the
conversion to private bathrooms. The new skilled nursing rooms and bathrooms
will be substantially similar in size to those that are being renovated in the
Olscn Pavilion.

The Project is classified as substantive pursuvant to Section 1110.4C(c) of the
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board’s Rules.

Pago 4
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, denation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value {refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estirnated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table helow. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $236,409 $254 745 $491,243
Site Survey and Soli Investigation $35,505 $38,245 $73,750
Site Preparation $2,005,889 $2,160,648 $£4,166,537
Off Site Work NJA N/A, N/A,
New Construction Contracts NfA N/A NIA
Modernization Contracts $22,127,201 $23,834,361 $45.961,562
Contingencies $1,168,175 $1,258 302 $£2,426,477
Architectural/Engineering Fees $1,961,487 $2,112,820 $4,074,307
Consulting and Other Fees $506,975 $548,090 $1,053,065
?oc:‘\;?;:clfs;:romer Equipment {not in construction $2.032.071 $2.188,849 $4.220,920
Bond Issuance Expense {project related) $939,370 $1.,011.844 $1,951,.214
g?;tlgé?rest Expense During Construction {project $6.070,812 $6.538,187 $12,610,000
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment NJA NfA NfA
Other Costs To Be Capitalized $851,898 $917,623 £1,769,521
ml;iSiﬁon of Building or Other Property {excluding N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $37,935,882 $40.862.714 $78,7598,596

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities 32,407,142 $2,502,858 $5,000,000
Pledges NA N/A NiA
Gifts and Bequests N/A : N/A N/A
Bond tssues {project related) $356,528,740 $38,269,856 $73,798,596
Morigages NIA N/A N/A,
Leases (fair market value) NiA, N/A N/A
Governmental Appropriations N/A N/A N/A,
Grants NiA N/A N/A
Other Funds and Sources NIA N/A N/iA
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $3? 935,882 340,862,714 $78,798,506

L Treh e Gl o I SR (TR AP N 0 b e R
+ NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF-EACH LINE ITEM MUST BEPROVID
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.’}
R, R L R I e

Page 5
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Related Project Costs
Pravide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related {o the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project ] Yes No
Purchase Price: §
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
[]Yes [@ No

if yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs {including
operating deficits) thraugh the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[C] None or not applicable [J Preliminary

@ Schematics [] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date {refer to Part 1130.140): March 30, 2017

Indicate the following with respect to project expend:tures or to obligation {refer to Part
1130.140):

] Purchase orders, Jeases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
{71 Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

ELProlect obhgatlon will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTAﬂON AS- M IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER N‘-‘I‘ER THE LAS'I' PAGE OF THE “_L 5
APPUC&"ON FORM v, e L. Lo f. o N e Ly

.' ..‘ . ’ vl- '—-"" '."’

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
[] Cancer Registry Not applicable.
[_] APORS Not applicable.
[@] Al formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reparts been
submitted

(&) Al reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result In the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.

Page §
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR FERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified, The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explaln the use of any vacated space.

—
Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose;lhl‘?::! Gross Square Feet

New Vacated

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modemized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking
Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical
TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-D, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. '

5,

Pagoe 7
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing ed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available, Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Lutheran Home for the Aged c]w:hrllngton Heights, IL 60004

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: 1/1/2G11 to: 12/31/2012

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical

Obstetrics

Pediatrics

Intensive Care

Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental lllness

Neonatal Intensiva Care

General Long Term Care 334 1169 114,645 0 334

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Other {{identify)

TOTALS: 134 1169 114,645 0 334
Page B
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The applicatich must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s} are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the scle general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

*

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Lutheran Home for the Aged, Incg.
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
informatien provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request,

i AN A
SIGNATURE 7 SIGNATURE
Roger W. Paulsberg David Abrahamson
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Chair Vice Chair
PRINTED TiTLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscriped and swo beforg,me
this day of this day of zidiﬂ Y i‘ 2 Ze(7),

=/

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary ~—
OFFICIAL SEAL
Seal 2al  ANDREW P. TECSON

ls
Notary Publlo - State of Nino
My Commmission Expires Dec 14,2015

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

Page 9
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{LLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representalive(s) are;

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o in the case of a limited liabilily company, any two aof its managers or members {(or the sole
manger or member when two or mare managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies thai the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE z SIGNATURE

Roger W. Paulsberg David Abrahamsen
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Chair Vice Chair

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: MNotarization:

Subscrbed and to before,me Subscribed and sworn to before me
this ' day of E A PININ [LO L this day of

Signature of Notary

Seal

Page 9
000014




ILLINGIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s} of the applicart enlity. The

authorized representative(s) are;

o inthe case of a coporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directars;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general pariners {(or the sole general partner, whan two or

more general partners do nat exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or mare

beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc*
In accordance with the requirements and procedures of the Ulinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifias that he or she has the authority to sxecute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and corract to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request,

T . lows

SIGNATURE SIGNATURE

Roger W. Paulsberg Tod A. Kruse

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Chair Vice Chair

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and swom to before me Subscribed and sworn to bafore me
this day of this 77%__day of

Signature of Notary

Seal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

Page &
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ILLINCIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edlition

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of afimited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers of members do not exist);

in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners da not exist);

in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the sofe beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc*
in accordance with the requirements and precedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herawith or will be paid upon request.

<

SIGNATURE ( SIGNATURE

Roger W. Paulsberg Tod A, Kuse

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Chair Vice Chair

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and swom 1o before ma

Subscrbed and fo before ga
this l day o? Z h AA Dﬂ 2817 this day of

Signature of Notary

Seal

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0372115

“Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant_______
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are;

o nthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more genera! pariners do net exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

*

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Lutheran Life Communities
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilitiss Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE /—\?

Roger W. Paulshberg gs A, Holbrook

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

PresidentCEQ Sr. Vice President - Corporate Operations

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and swor; before ge Subseribed and before

this ) dayof sz%u L this :q day omu 12—

o

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION E¥B Q28 132715

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS ¢
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:03/2115

*Insert EXACT lega! name of the applicant
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity, The
autharized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general pariner, when two or
more general parlners do not exist);

o inthe case of astates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole propriefor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of Lutheran Foundation for the Aged. Inc.
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Faciiities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and corract to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be pald upon request.

SIGNATURE ﬂ SIGNATURE
James

Roger W. Paulsherg A. Holbrook
FPRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Chalr Secretary

PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subsecribed and s

Subscribed and s before
this ! day of [ip I this ; day of

CIAL SEAL 5
4
HLLIA AWILLIAMSON ¢
Seal m&g;# or:‘ ELCI)EO!S 4 NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS  §
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0321115 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES03/2115 ::

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicanf —
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION lii - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

Criterion 1110.230 — Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following requirad information:
BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facfities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable,

2. A certified fisting of any adverse action taken against any facility owned andfor operated by tha appticant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access io any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to; official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of naticnally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure te provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. if, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfil the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall atlest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and cerlify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, ag needed, 1o update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST -
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11,

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the praject will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or ¢ther, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that peed to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. {See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.)

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriata.

For projects Involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

s 0

NOTE: Informatlon regardli‘tg the "Pu;p;se of the Projegi'? wui be included in the State Agency Report.> =5,

APPEND DOCUMENTATION 'AS ATI'ACi'IidENTd 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST ..
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1.8} MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12. ¢ -

Page 11
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

["ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative opticns must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project’s intended purposes,;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are avaflable 1o serve all or a portion of
the poputation proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen allemative was selacted.

2) Cocumentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative optians. The
comparison shall address issues of tolal costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term {within one to three years after project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3 The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including guantified oulcome data that
verifies improved gquality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS &!'_l AQHMENTJ 3. INNUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFT ER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM . .

Hay
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space
READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

t. Decument that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square foolage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in & size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

¢ The project involves the conversion of existing space that resuits in excess square footage.

Provide a2 narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14,

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE | PROFOSED STATE DIFFERENCE | MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?
General Long Term Care 426.9 350-570 DGSF| (143.1) Yes

-,

A R

’WPEND DOGI.IMEHTA‘T]OH*ﬂ

T e T*@W%’%@‘W T e T N
mm&ulﬁ..
ATION FORM; 7% :“.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is appiicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utillzation standards or occupancy targets in 7T lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be

provided.
A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT/ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
{PATIENT DAYS)
{TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2
Q it 50 “P.‘“’ ﬁ?ni",v . \'?“!‘i:-gxm =
»Psnngn’“ocuuﬁur AS ATTACHMENT K IN;NU RIC
EA?%PL'GA“OH?FO‘ i, 't{: : ‘;fm- iy f},

Page 13
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE: Not applicable.
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space:

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifylng the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or ulilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space wilt be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-16, IN NUMERIC SEQUEN'HAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

ASSURANCES: Not applicable.

Submit the following:

1, Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thrasholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequant CON applicatlon (1o develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the she!l space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTA‘I‘ION AS ATTACHMENT-17, N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. ;

Pago 14
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

I Criterion 1110.1730 - General L.ong Term Care

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

1. Applicants proposing fo establish, expand and/or modernize General Long Term Care
must submit the foliowing information:

indicate bed capacity changes by Service:

action(s}:

Category of Service

W General Long Term
Care

# Existing
Beds

indicate # of beds changed by

# Proposed

Beds

2. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required

documentation for the criteria:

Defined
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize | Continuum of | Population
Carg- Establish
Establish or or Expand
Expand
1110.1730(b){1) - Planning Area Need - 77 1. X
Adm. Code 1100 {formyla
calculation)
1110.1730{b}{2} - Planning Area Need - X X
Service o Planning Area
Residents
1110,1730(b}3) - Planning Area Need - X
Service Demand -
Establishment of
Category of Service
1110.1730{b)(4) - Planning Area Need - X
Service Demand -
Expansion of Existing
Category of Service
1110.1730(b)}5) - Planning Area Need - X
Service Accessibility
1110.1730(c)(1} - Description of Continuum X
of Care
1110.1730{c}{2} - Components X
1410.1730(c){3) - Documentation X
1110,1730(d){1} - Description of Defined x
Population to be Served
1110.1730{d){2} - Documenation of Need X
1110,1730(d}{3) - Documentation Related to X
Cited Problems
1110.1730(e}1) - Unnecessary Duplication X
of Services
1110.1730{e}2) - Maldistribution X
1110.1730(e)(3) - Impact of Project on Other X
Area Providers
1110.1730(N(1) - Deteriprated Facilities X
1110.1730{f)(2) & (3) - Documentation X
s e - Page 29

000023




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Defined
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize | Continuum of | Population
Care- Establish
Establish or or Expand
Expand
1110.1730(f4)} -  Utilization X
1110.4730(g) - Staffing Availability X X X X
1110,1730(R) - Fagility Size X X X X X
1110.1730(i) - Community Related X X X X
Functlons
1110.1730{)) - Zoning X X X X
X X X X X

1110.1730{k) - Assurances

APPEND DOCUMENTAHON AS AT IAQHMEEIJ . IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST

PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM

Page 30
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The fotlowing Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guarantesing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencles, or A3 or better from Moody's {the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

» Sectlon 1120.12¢ Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
+ Section 1120,130 Financlal Viablilty = Review Criteria
+  Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

vill. - 0 - bifity of F
The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total

pruject cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a) Cash and Securities ~ statements {e.g., au financlal statements, fetters financial
55,000,000 instiutions, board resolutlons) as fo:

1} the amournt of cash and sacurities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, Rs valug and avaflability of such funds; and

2} interest to be aamed on depregiation aceount funds or to be eamed on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

0 b} Pledges - for anticipated pledges, & summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
—_ receipts and discounied value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related furdraising
axpenses, and a discusston of past fundraising experience.

g c) Gifts and Bequests — verfication of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time tatile of recelpts;

, d) Debt - a statemment of the estimaled tenns and conditions (including the debt tme period, vanable
m' 596 or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for
any interim ard for the permanent financing proposexd te fund the project, including:

1) For general ohiigatlon bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidance that the povemmantal unlt has the authority to lssue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting

anlicipated;

2} For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the spedified amount and
interest rate;

3} For mortgages, & letler from the prospective jender attesting to the expectation

of making the loan in the amournt and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rale and any conditlons associated with the mortgage, such as, but nat
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balleon payments, elc.;

4) For any laase, a copy of the leasa, including all the terms and conditions,
inctuding any purchase options, any capltal nprovements to the property and
provision of capial equipment;

5) For eny option to kease, a copy of the eption, including all terms and conditions,

0 a) Governmental Agpropriations = a copy of the appropriation Adt or ordinance accompanied by a

statemnent of funding avallabliity from an cfficlat of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the govemmenta!
unit attesting to this intent;

0 N Grants - a lefter fram the granting agency as to the availabjlity of funds in terms of the amount and
fima of receipt;

0 g} All Other Furds and Sources ~ verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project,

578,798,556 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

Pago 50
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IX. 1120.130 - Financia! Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be Identlfied, speciying thair roles In the project funding or
gusaranteeing the funding (sole responsibillty or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financlal \ﬁbiligﬁ fver

The applicant is not required to submrt financial viabllity ratios if:
All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through Internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projectad debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Associatlon ing.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor,

See Ssction 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

.APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST :
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. i )

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the lalest three years for which audited financial statements are availlable and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility does naot have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system’s viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care
system includes one or more hospltals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hnspital standards.

" Provide Data for F"rojdcts Ciassified Category A or Category B (Iast three years} ' Catngéry_ﬂ
as: (Projacted)

Enter Higtorlcal and/or. Pro]acted
Yoars:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Dabt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Variance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations shoufd the
applicant defaulf.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

rg—_—, v DI
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

) & 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

This section Is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized reprasentative that attests to ane of the following:

1)

2}

That the total estimated project costs and relfated costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, inctuding investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the totat estimated project costs and related costs wilt be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A) A portion ar all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order {o mainiain a cument ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitats and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B} Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing invastments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used lo retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that Involve deb financing. The applicant shall
decument that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statamant
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1}

That the selecled form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest nel cost
available;

2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest nst cost available, but is
more advantagesus due to such terrns as prepayment privileges, no required morigage,
accass to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves (in totat or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that

the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonablensss of Project and Related Costs

Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or medernization using the
following format {insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B c L D E ‘ F G H
Depantment Total
{list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross 5q. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. § Mod. § Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* {(AxC) (BxE} {(G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS
* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation
Page 52
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected girect annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
goﬂowing project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and suppties
‘or {he service.

E. Total Effect of the Projact on i‘:apltal Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than twe years following project

completion.
[APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 42, IN KUMERIC SEQUENTIN. ORDER AFTERTHE LASY PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM . e

'n-‘ - k3 LI . - &

XI. Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that doscribes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS: Not applicable

1, The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that #l Is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. Tha project’s impact on the ability of another provider or heatth care system to cross-subsidize salely net services, if reasonably.
known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safaty net providers in a given community, if
reasonably knawn by the applicant.

Safoty Net Impact Statements shall also inciude all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, o-ceniification describing the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calcufated by hospital applicanis shall be in acoordance with the reporting requiremants for charity care reporling in the
Iinols Communily Benefits Act. Non-hospital applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
melhodology spacified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the applicalion, a certificelion of tha amount of care provided to Medicaldpatients. Hospital ard non-
tospital applicants shali provide Med|caid information in & manner consistent with tha information reported each year to the linois
Dapartment of Public Health regarding "inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and “Inpatient and Outpatient Nel
Revenue by Payor Source™ as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published In the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any infarmation the applicant believes s direcily relevant to safaty net services, Including Information regarding teaching,
resaarch, and any other service,

A table In the following format must be provided as part of Attachment £3.

Safety Net Information per PA 860031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Yoar Yoar
Inpatlent
Outpatient
Total
Charity (cost In doflars)
Inpalient
Quipaliont
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Outpatient
Total
Page 53
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Medicald [revenue)
Inpationt

Cutpelent

Total

R .vx'-‘ - i B - . v

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS mﬁm iN uuuswc SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE or THE
APPLICATION FORM. 3 = v L.

A

.www-ao-wau PN TP - SR w-zmntnm-m-g-usiwm LR AN Wy DS ke "“"‘f-’*ﬂ e

Xi. Charity Care Information

Charlty Care Information MUST be furmnished for ALL projocts.,

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the Jatest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charnity care and the ratio of that charity care cost lo net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operales one or more faciiilles, the reporiing shal be for each individual fecility Yocated in Hinois. If
charity care cosis are reported on a consolidated basis, tha applicent shell provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; lhe ratio of that charity care to the net palient revenus for the consclidatad financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the faclfity's projected patient mix by payer source, anlicipated
charily caro expense and projeciad ratio of chanty care to net patient revenue by the end of Its second yeer of operation.

Charlty care™ means care provided by a heaith care facility for which the provider does not oxpect to recelve payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. {20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care musi ba provided at cost.

A table In the followlng format must be provided for all facillties as part of Attachment 44,

CHARITY CARE
Year Yeaar Year

Net Patient Revenue
Amount of Charity Care {charges)
Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTAHON AS &I[AG_H&EM IN NUMERIC SECIUENTIAL ORDER A.FTER THE LAST PAGEOF THE - .
APPLICATION FORM. .

.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for pennit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant‘Coapplicant tdentification including Certificate of Good
Standing 31-34
2 | Site Ownership 25
3 | Persons with 5 percent or grealer interest in the licensee must be
identified with the % of ownership.
4 | Organizational Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of
Good Standing Efc. 36-37
5 | Flood Plain Requirements 38-3%
8 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements 40
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization 41-42
8 | Obligation Document if required
9 | Cost Space Requirements 43-45
10 | Discontinuation
11 | Background of the Applicant 46-55
12 | Purpose of the Project 56-65
13 | Alternatives to the Project 66-69
14 | Size of the Project 70
15 | Project Service Utifization 71
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project
18 | Mergers, Consclidations and Acquisitions

Service Specific:

20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, iCU
21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental lliness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization

26 | In-Center Hemodialysis

27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery
28 | General Long Termn Care 72-157
29 | Specialized Long Term Care

30 | Selected Organ Transplantation

31 | Kidney Transplaniation

32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center

35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

37 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Financial and Economic Feas|bility:

39 | Availability of Funds 158-280

40 | Financial Waiver

41 | Financial Viability 281-289

42 | Economic Feasibility 290-299

43 | Safety Net Impact Statement

44 | Charity Care Information 300
Page 55
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File Number 0599-831-0

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON AUGUST 09, 1892, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illlinois, this 1ST
day of MARCH AD. 2012

< & W te
Authentication #: 1205102006 M

Authenticate ab: hitp./www.cyberdriveillinods.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 5390-946-9

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

LUTHERAN HOME AND SERVICES FOR THE AGED, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 11, 1985, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST
day of MARCH AD. 2012

PR
Authentication # 1206102038 M

Authenticate at: hitp.fiwww.cyberdrivaillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 6437-846-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of 1llinois, do
hereby certify that

LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 21, 2005, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST

day of MARCH AD. 2012

g P
S & WA Lz
Authenlication #: 1206102062 Mw

Authanticale gt: htip:/iwww cyberdriveillingis.com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 5390-944-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greéting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of lllinois, do
hereby certify that

LUTHERAN FOUNDATION FOR THE AGED, INC,, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JULY 11, 1985, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I nereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 1ST

day of MARCH A.D. 2012

Authentication #: 1206102076 W‘C/

Authenticate at; httpJiwww.cyberdriveillingis.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

000034 ATTACHMENT 1



LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION

NOTARIZED STATEMENT OF OWNERSHIP

[, the undersigned, as Chair of Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc., do hereby certify that
the real property located at 800 West Qakton Street, Arlington Heights, Illinois 60004 is duly

owned by Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

. (s

Roger W. Paulsberg, Chair
Lutheran Home for the Aged;ne:

Notarization:

Subscribed and s to before me
this:}dayof: 7; ipa__n.i ,2012
.

PABLIC..—
OFFICIAL SEA.
ELIZABETH A Wi AMSON |
NOTARY SUBLIC 37272 TR IL_NDIS 4
MY COMMISS OnErm 280 0 70 0

16824220020037\47135
000035
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS

The entity which owns and operates the skilled nursing facility at which the Project will take
place is Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc., s0 it is the applicant. Lutheran Home and Services
for the Aged, Inc. is the sole corporate member of Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. and the
Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. All three of these entities are part of an obligated group
under a master trust indenture, Each member of the obligated group is jointly and severally liable
to pay back money borrowed by the obligated group from the proceeds of the sales of tax exempt
bonds which are secured by the lien of the master trust indenture. Because Lutheran Home and
Services for the Aged, Inc. and Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. are guarantors of the debt
incurred which will be used to pay for the Project, they are co-applicants. Lutheran Life
Communities is the sole corporate member of Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc.,
and as such it is the wltimate parent of Lutheran Home for the Aged and it is also a co-applicant,

An organizational chart showing the relationships described above follows.

ATTACHMENT 4

17020999 20037\47135
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

CON APPLICATION
ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS

ATTACHMENT 4
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS

Appended as Attachment 5 is a map of the proposed Project location showing any
identified floodplain areas. The applicant attests that the proposcd Project is not located in a
special flood hazard area and the proposed Project complies with the requirements of Illinois

. Executive Order #2005-5.

16820882\2003 77135 ATTACHMENT 5
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Illinois Historic

==== Preservation Agency
FAX (217) 782-8161

u 1 Old State Capitol Plaza » Springfield, lllinois 82701-1512 + www.illinois-history.gov

Cock County
Arlington Heights
CON - New Addition and Rehabilitation, Olson Pavilion

800 W. Oakton St.
IHPA Log #022020812

February 23, 2012

Patrick Sutton

Chuhak & Tecson, P.C.

30 8. Wacker Dr., Suite 2600
Chicago, IL 60606

Dear Mr. Sutton:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Qur review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or
archaeclogical sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illincis State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
sed.). This clearance remains in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illinocis Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further questions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Pregervation Officer

ATTACHMENT 6

A teletypawriter for the speechihearing impaired is available at 217-524-7128. it is not a voice or fax line.
000040




LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

CON APPLICATION
USE OF FUNDS ITEMIZATION
USE OF FUNDS Clinical Non Clinical Subtotal Total

Pre-Planning Costs

Market Analysis $ 9320 § 10,040 $ 19,360

Focus Groups $ 11,351 § 12227 § 23,578

Development Related Expenses $ 12,036 § 12864 $ 25000

Masterplanning / Pre-Design $ 48954 $ 62,731 % 101,685

Legal 3 24,07t § 250829 § 50,000

Pre-Construction Services $ 130,766 $ 140,855 $ 271,620

Subtotal 3 236499 3% 254,745 § 491,243 § 491,243
Site Survey and Soil Investigation

ALTA Boundary and Topo Survey 3 15,983 % 17,217 § 33,200

Existing Flgor Elevation Survey $ 722 3 778  $ 1,500

Drainage Analysis $ 6,788 § 7312 5 14,100

Water Flow Test 3 289 § 311 % 600

Private Line Locate $ 2407 § 2593 § 5,000

Phase 1 Envircnmental Assessment  § 1059 § 1,141 & 2,200

Soil Borings $ 8,256 §$ BB94 §$ 17150

Subtotal $ 35,505 % 38245 $ 73750 $ 73,750
Site Preparation

Demolition $ 714542 § 769,670 $1,484,212

Earthwork and Utilities 3 1,050,633 § 1,131,692 § 2,182,325

Hazardous Materlal Abatement 3 240,714 § 256,286 $ 500,000

Subtotal $ 2,005,889 §$ 2,160,648 $4,166,537 § 4,166,537
Modernization Contracts

Construction $ 22127201 § 23,834,361 $45961,562 $45,961,562
Contingencies

Construction Contingency $ 1,168,175 § 1,258,302 $2,426,477 § 2,426,477
Architectural / Engineering Fees

Architectural Design $ 1,061,487 $ 2,112,820 $4,074,307 § 4,074,307
Consulting and Other Fees

Civil Engineering $ 30,717 % 33087 §$ 63,804

Parking Study 3 3856 % 4154 § 8,010

Traffic Study $ 6,259 § 6741 $ 13,000

Landscape Architecture $ 5512 § 5038 § 11,450

Tree Preservation Plan $ 1,430 1,640 & 2,970

Hazardous Materials Assessment $ 4328 % 4662 % 8,990

Utility Deposit for Engineering 3 2407 § 2593 § 5,000

ATTACHMENT 7
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Financial Feasibility $ 14,443 % 15,557 $ 30,000

Food Service Design $ 24120 § 25980 § 50,100

Certificate of Need - Application Fee § 19,257 § 20743 $ 40,000

Interior Deslgn ) 84972 % 91,528 § 176,500

QOwner's Reprasentative Services $ 261,532 § 281,708 § 543,241

Architectural Reimburseables $ 48143 8 51,857 $ 100,000

Subtotal $ 506,975 S 548,090 $ 1,053,065 § 1,053,085
Movable or Other Equipment
{not in construction contracts)

Furniture $ 1,151,755 § 1,240,615 § 2,392,370

Window Treaiments 3 133,596 % 143,904 § 277,500

Interior Signage $ 41,090 $ 44260 $ 85,350

Artwork $ 67,737 % 72,963 $ 140,700

Accessories 5 17,091 % 18,409 § 35,500

Bedspreads $ 26,479 $ 28,521 $§ 55,000

Shower Curtains $ 9629 § 10,371 3 20,000

Medical Offlce Suite $ 46,939 3 50,561 $ 97,500

Televisions - Resident Rooms 3 86,657 § 93,343 % 180,000

Telavisions - Common Areas $ 15,406 § 16,584 § 32,000

Technology Equipment $ 435693 % 469,307  $ 905,000

Subtotal $ 2,0320M1 § 2,188,849 $4,220,920 $ 4,220,920
Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Performance & Payment Bond $ 233835 § 251,660 $ 485295

Permits $ 305,334 § 328,891 § 634,225

Project Insurance $ 851,808 § 337,072 % 650.000

Subtotal $ 851,898 § 917,623 $1,769,521 $ 1,769,521
Net Interest Expense During Construction : ] 6,070,812 § 6,539,187 $12,610,000 $12,610,000
Bond Issuance Expense $ 935370 § 1,011,844 $1,051,214 § 1,051,214
Total $ 37035882 % 40,862,714 $78,798,596

-9
ATTACHMENT 7
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6 INFWHOV.LLY

CLINICAL

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK Exdsting (DGSF) Proposed (DGEF) Addition |Modemizationd
LUTHERAN HOME Total | Vacated |Addition]Modernization] Asts [ Totat Cost/ DGSF | Cost / DGSF Total Cost
OLSON PAVILION
Resident Unlts 45,537 - 25,725 29,802 - 55,927 ] 35I| & 3l % 18,039,845
Rasldent Baths (SNF) 5212 - 6,725 15,420 - 22,145 3 556 | § 402 $ 9,933,046
Administrative - - - - - $ - $ - 3 -
Laundry - - - - - - 5 - 3 - 5 -
Kitehen/Food Prap/Food Storage - - - - - - $ - $ - 3 -
Dining . . . - - - [) . [3 . [3 N
Sitting / Living / Family Room - - - - - . [ - 5 - % .
Physicat Therapy / Exam 2,771 - 3134 2,725 - 5,855 $ 419 | § 265 3 2.035,251
Spa { Restrooms - - - - - - $ . & - 3 -
Staft Support / Malintenance - - - “ - - $ - 5 - $ -
Service / Storage / Receiving - - - - - - - - 5 - 5 -
Machenical / Chase - - - - - - 3 - $ - 5 -
Circulation 22,028 - 9,252 12,776 - 22,028 b3 368 | § 265 $ 6,787,629
Solled / Clean Utitity 1,697 - a37 2,133 - 3,070 5 437 | &8 342 $ 1,138,212
Employee Lounge - - - - - - 5 - 5 - 3 -
Canopy - . - - - - 3 - 5 - $ -
Medical Clinic - - - - - - $ - |8 $ -
LL OTHER AREAS -
E - Wing - - - - - - ] - $ - $ -
Rasident Reoms f Bathrooms 7.686 . - - 7,686 7.686 $ - |8 - 3 -
Soied / Clan Utility 592 - - - 582 saz] [s - | - 3 -
Circulation 2.786 - . - 2,786 2,786 & - $ - 5 -
F - Wing - - - - - - $ - |8 - 5 -
Residant Rooms / Bathrooms 2.448 - - - 2,448 2,448 S - $ - s -
Sailed f Clean Utility 480 - - 490 490 $ - s - 3 -
Circulation 1,942 - - - 1.942 1,942 $ - $ - $ -
G - Wing - - - - - - s - $ - £ -
Reskignt Rooms / Bathraoms 2312 - - |, .2312 2,312 b - |5 I Bk .
Solleg / Clean Utilty 234 - - | - 234 23| s - 1S - ) .
Circulation I 876 - - - 976 376 % - $ - % -
H- Wing - - - - - - s - 1% 1 -
Rasident Rooms { Bathrooms 2,119 - - - 2,119 2,119 5 - § - 3 -
Sclied 7 Clean Utility 120 - - - 120 120 £ - $ - $ -
MDS Administration 172 - . - 172 172 3 - 5 - $ -
Circulation 1,980 - - - 1,980 1,980 5 - ] - $ -
J - Wing - - - - - - $ . S - % -
s — - - Resident Rogms /Bathrooms SEL N S [T R S 4506  4506| |s  - |8 o I
Scileq { Claan Utility 192 - - - 192 192 $ - 5 - $ -
Clreulation 5,394 - - - 5,394 5,394 5 s - 5 -
[Totals 111,187 - 45773 62,856 33,842 142,571 5 37,935.882
TOTAL BEDS 334 COST/DGSF 266.08
DGSF/BED 4269




yPoo00

6 INTAWHOV.LLY

NON-CLINICAL
PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK

Existing (S_F]

Proposed (SF) Addition |Modemizatia
LUTHERAN HOME Total | Vacated | Addition| Modemization] As-s | Total Cost por SF | Cost per SF Total Cost
OLSON PAVILION
Resident Units - - - - - . 3 . s - $ .
Resident Baths (SNF) - . R - R B 3 N 3 - 1 N
Administrative 2.341 - 1,132 3.262 - 4,394 $ 370 s 287] [§ 1,356,721
Laundry - - - - - - 5 - |3 - $ -
Kitchen/Food Prep/Food Storage 7833 - 1,373 12,088 - 13.461 $ 73118 ss6] [$ 7,721,569
Dining 3,638 - 10,982 - - 10,982 $ 396 | § - $ 4344479
Sitting / Living / Family Room 2,380 - 8,203 2,685 - 10,886 $ 386 S 257 |$ 3.933.809
Physical Therapy ! Exam - - - . - - 3 . [ - [ R
Spa / Restrooms 2242 - 2,089 3,057 - 5.146 $ 602§ 453] |$ 2,642,858
Staff Support { Maintanance 4,149 - 3,798 5,307 - 9,105 $ 344 | § 257 1 2 667.758
Sarvice / Storage / Racsiving 6,130 - 1,358 2.243 3,140 6,741 5 6§ 274 ] [ $ 1.045.737
Machanical / Chasa 1,850 - 6.249 2,523 - B.772 s 301§ 221] (3 2.463.364
Circulation 14,276 - 16,467 23,655 786 40,908 s 370 | $ 2650 |$ 12,350,402
Soiled / Clean Ltility - . - - - . % - 3 - s -
Emgloyee Lounge 1,485 - - 2,196 - 2,196 $ 3%6 | $ 245 | S 544 496
Canopy 92 - 1,687 - - 1,687 $ 174§ - $ 293,186
Megical Clinic 2.388 - 1,858 2,350 - 4,208 s 413]$ g ]IS 1,450,312
ALL OTHER AREAS s - |3 - S -
E - Wing 11,680 - - - 11,680 11,680 $ - |5 $ -
F - Wing 26,825 - - - 26,825 26,825 $ - s - $ N
G - Wing 20,380 - - | - 20,380 20,380 % - |s - $ -
H .« Wing 27,934 - - - 27.834 27,934 5 - % - $ -
J - Wing 33,950 - - - 33.950 33,950 ] - S - 5 -
otals 169,671 - 58,196 59,366 | 124,694 | 239,256 $  40.862,714
TOTAL BEDS 334 COBT/DGSF % 170.79
DGSF/BED 716.3
[TOTAL PROJECT I 280,856 | - ]| 100,569 | 122222 158,636 | 381827 | | 1§ 7879859 |
TOTAL BEDS 334 COST/DGEF  § 206,37
DGSF/BED 11432



Explanation Regarding Why the Amount of Square Feet for Certain Areas Which Are
Being Modernized is Greater than the Existing Square Feet for such Areas

A major purpose of the Project is to change the room configuration in the Olson Pavilion,
Currently, there is one shared bathroom between every two resident units. The existing space in
the Olson Pavilion will be reconfigured so that each resident unit will have a private bathroom.
For example, there is 5,212 square feet of existing resident bath space. The chart shows that
15,420 of resident bath space is being modemnized. The explanation for why the amount of space
being modernized for resident bath space exceeds the amount of existing bath space is that the
15,420 of modemized resident bath space includes both the 5,212 of existing resident bath space
and some of the existing resident unit space. In other words, some of the existing resident unit
space is being re-programmed for use as resident bath space.

Please note that the 280,858 square feet of existing space for total Project equals the sum
of the 122,222 square feet of modernized space plus the 158,636 square feet of as-is space.

170902\ 200277135
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HEALTH CARE FACILITIES
OWNED AND OPERATED BY
APPLICANT AND CO-APPLICANTS

The following health care facility is owned and operated by Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc.
Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc. is the sole corporate member of and exercises
control over Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. A copy of the current license for the facility
listed below is included as part of this Attachment 11.

1. Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street
Arlington Heights, 1llinois 60004

Lutheran Life Communities is the ultimate parent company of and exercises ultimate control
over Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. and Lutheran Life Communities is the sole corporate
member of and exercises control over the other health care facilities set forth below. Copies of
the current licenses for each health care facility listed below are included as part of this

Attachment 11.

1, Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street
Arlington Heights, Illinois 60004

2. Wittenberg Lutheran Village, Inc.
1200 East Luther Drive
Crown Point, Indiana 46307

3. Pleasant View Luther Home, Inc.
505 College Avenue
Ottawa, Illinois 61350

4, Luther Oaks, Inc.
601 Lutz Road
Bloomington, Illinois 61704

5. St. Pauls House & Healthcare Center
3800 North California Avenue
Chicago, Illinois 60618

Please note that Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. does not own or operate any health care
facilities.

ATTACHMENT 11
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11 INFINHOV.LLV

Indiana State Department of Health

Cotnprehensive Care License
This is to certify that:

WITTENBERG LUTHERAN VILLAGE INC d/b/a
WITTENBERG LUTHERAN VILLAGE
1200 E LUTHER DR
CROWN POINT, IN

a 155 bed Comprefiensive Care Facility, has fulfilled the requirementis for ficensure and is subject to provisions of
IC 16-28 and the rules of the Indiana State Department of Health issued thereunder,

This ficense shall not be assignable or transferable, and shall be subject to revocation, replacement, or reduction

at any time by the Indiana State Department of Health for failure to comply with the laws of the State of Indiana
or the rules of the Indiana State Department of Healifs issued thereunder.

License number 12-000515-1 is effective January 1, 2012 and expires December 31, 2012.

KIM RHOADES

DIRECTOR, LONG TERM CARE DIVISION
© PH317/233-7289 FAX: 317/233-7322

SDH 25028
Staie Form 44876 (R3/5-05)
HEA FACUCERT
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——~=.Lutheran Home

A Lutheran Life Community

Dale Galassie

Chair

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Chairman Galassie:

Please be advised that no adverse action as defined under Sections 1100.220 and
1130.140 of the Health Facilities and Services Review Board Rules has been taken within three
(3) years preceding the filing of the permit application against: (a) Lutheran Home for the Aged,
Inc. or against any health care facility controlled, owned or operated by it, directly or indirectly;
(b} Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc. or against any health care facility controlled,
owned or operated by it, directly or indirectly; or (¢) Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. or
against any health care facility controlled, owned or operated by it, directly or indirectly. Please
note that Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. is a member of the obligated group of
borrowers of the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. The obligated group borrows the proceeds
from the sale of tax exempt bonds. Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. does not control, own
or operate any health care facilities.

Furthermore, pursuant to 77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1110.230(a)(3)(C), I hereby authorize the
HFSRB and the Ilinois Department of Public Health (“IDPH”) to access any documents
necessary to verify the information submitted as part of this permit application. I further
authorize HFSRB and IDPH to obtain any additional documentation or information that HFSRB
or IDPH deems necessary for the review or processing of this application.

Sincerely,

LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

oS

Roger W, Paulsberg, Chair
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Notarization:

Subscribed and swarn to before me
this 7} day OM ,2012

Jolary Pub
OFFICIAL SEAL

ELIZABETH A WILLIAMSON

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS

1666776132003 747135

LUTHERAN HOME AND SERVICES FOR THE
AGED, INC.

By:
Rogeﬁ/\fﬁaulsberg, Ch@?

LUTHERAN FOUNDATION FOR THE
AGED, INC.

By:Q A ﬁ)%

Roger W. Patlsberg, Chair ?

..
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Communities

Dale Galassie

Chair

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, 1llinois 62761

Re: Lutheran Home CON Application
Dear Chairman Galassie:

Please be advised that in the three (3) years preceding the filing of the permit application,
one (1) adverse action as defined under Sections 1100.220 and 1130.140 of the Health Facilities
and Services Review Board (“HFSRB”) Rules has been taken against Pleasant View Luther
Home, Inc., of which co-applicant Lutheran Life Communities is the parent corporation.

On September 1, 2010, the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) issued a
final Disposition of Remedies to PVLH denying payment for new Medicare and Medicaid
admissions from July 14, 2010 through July 19, 2010. This remedy was imposed in relation to
non-compliance with Life Safety Code Standard NFPA 101 following a Life Safety Code revisit
which occurred on June 7, 2010. However, it should be noted that after a second revisit on July
20, 2010, CMS concluded that PVLH was found to be in substantial compliance with

Medicare/Medicaid participation requirements.

I hereby certify that the above is a complete listing of all adverse actions taken against all
entities that Lutheran Life Communities is the sole corporate member of and exercises control
over in the (3) years preceding the filing of the permit application.

Furthermore, pursuant to 77 [ll. Admin. Code § 1110.230(a)(3)(C), 1 hereby authorize the
HESRB and the Illinois Department of Public Heaith (“IDPH”) to access any documents
necessary to verify the information submitted as part of this permit application. I further
authorize HFSRB and IDPH to obtain any additional documentation or information that HFSRB
or IDPH deems necessary for the review or processing of this application.

Sincerely,

LUTHERAN LIFE C®§M UNITIES

2025 5S

Roger W. Paulsberg, President/CEQ

-~

Vibrant, grace-filled living
across all generations
3150 Salt Creek Lane - Arlington Heights, IL 60005 - - >

{847) 368-7400 - fax (847) 368-7320 ATTACHMENT 11

www.LutheranLifeCommunities.org X 16667923120037W7135
000054 s



Notarization:

Subscribed and swpm to before me

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 32115

1666792\320037135 000055



LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC,
CON APPLICATION
PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

The primary purpose of the project is to update the Olson Pavilion to meet current regulatory
codes and to repair and replace systems that have reached the end of their useful life. In
addition, the project will increase both the quality of care provided by the Lutheran Home and
the resident experience by promoting a person-centered care model through an enhanced
physical environment, which includes additional space for social activities and wellness
programs.

The Lutheran Home is a faith-based Illinois not for profit corporation. The Lutheran Home was
founded in 1892 by a Lutheran pastor whose mission was to create a home-like setting for older
adults. The Lutheran Home has been a fixture in the Arlington Heights community for over a
century and continues its founder's mission of providing quality health care for older adults. The
Lutheran Home is located in the 7-A Planning Area. The Lutheran Home’s focus on quality care
is evidenced by its four star rating from Medicare. Not only will the project repair and replace
outdated and non-functional systems in the Olson Pavilion, but it will permit the Lutheran Home
to provide its residents with increased quality health care with more space for social and wellness

activities.

The goal of the project is to provide residents of the Lutheran Home with a more homelike
environment and to achieve and maintain 90% utilization by the sccond year after project

completion.

Compliance with Regulatory Requirements

Effective as of August 13, 2013, all long term care facilities that receive any type of
Medicare/Medicaid funding are required to be compliant with Federal Register mandate 42
C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8), which requires that such facilities be equipped with sprinkler systems.
The Olson Pavilion does not currently have a sprinkler system. As part of the project, the Olson
Pavilion will be fully equipped with sprinkler systems meeting the requirements set forth in 42
C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8).

Repair and Replacement of Systems

The Olson Pavilion was originally constructed in the 1970s. The Olson Pavilion curmrently
consists of 252 skilled nursing beds. Due 1o the age of the building and its systems, the Olson
Pavilion is in nced of substantial upgrades and modernization. In 2009, the Lutheran Home
engaged Reserve Advisors to do a study of its facility and to document specific problems and
conditions, along with providing an analysis of the rescrves available for such issues. In its
report, Reserve Advisors identified 234 major common elements that are likely to require capital
repair or replacement by the Lutheran Home. The following sets forth a description of the major
items identified by Reserve Advisors as being in need of repair and replacement with respect to

the Qlson Pavilion:

ATTACHMENT 12
1694390\8\20037147135

000056



. The water piping in the Olson Pavilion is approximately 40 years old and is in
poor condition, There is significant interior and exterior rust on the piping system
and the piping system has a reduced water flow. Accordingly, the water piping
system needs to be completely replaced.

. The Lutheran Home’s fire suppressant system requires an upgrade. In addition,
the Lutheran Home is not currently equipped with hard wired smoke detcctors.
As part of the project, hard wired smoke detectors will be installed, the fire
suppressant system will be upgraded and the emergency call system will be
completely upgraded.

. The Lutheran Home maintains a flat roof at the Olson Pavilion. This stone
ballasted roof system makes it very difficult for the Lutheran Home to determine
the origin of leaks in the roof, which makes replacement of the roof a more
economical option than continuously repairing the roof. Accordingly, as part of
the project, the entire roof of the Olson Pavilion will be replaced.

. The Lutheran Home maintains approximately 10,700 square feet of aluminum and
vinyl frame windows at the Olson Pavilion, which date back to the 1970s.
Aluminum frame windows have a useful life of up to 35 years and vinyl frame
windows have a useful life of up to 45 years. These windows are not energy
efficient and have outlived or are close to outliving their useful lives.
Accordingly, as part of the project the windows in the Olson Pavilion will be
replaced with new enecrgy efficient windows.

. The HVAC system at Olson is near the end of its useful life. There are valves in
the HVAC system that do not function properly, which prevents management
from closing off certain scctions. This makes it difficult to appropriately regulate
the temperature of the Olson Pavilion, which can have an impact on patient care.
Accordingly, the HVAC system in the Olson Pavilion will be entirely replaced as
part of the project.

Quality of Care

When the Olson Pavilion was constructed in the 1970s, the design was based on a medical
model, which is focused purely on the delivery of health care in an institutional setting. Today,
health care is more focused on person-centered care models, which create a home-like setting in
which individuals receive their health care. As part of the project, the renovated Olson Pavilion
will organize residents into person centered households, which includes new living, dining and
sacial spaces in order to create a home-like setting, Please see the attached article regarding
person-centered care for nursing home residents.

At the completion of the project, each resident in the existing Olson Pavilion will have a private
bath that includes an ADA accessible shower. Each resident room in the new addition attached
to the Olson Pavilion will also have a private bath that includes an ADA accessible shower. The
current Olson Pavilion only has a communal bathing area, which is shared by all of the residents,
and two rooms currently share a common bathroom with a toilet and sink. The private
bathrooms in the completed project will increase the quality of care provided at the Lutheran
Home, by allowing the Lutheran Home to more effectively control infections, such as MRSA

ATTACHMENT 12
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and the flu, which will improve patient outcomes and reduce the number of readmissions 1o
hospitals.

The new addition will be connected to the existing Olson Pavilion with a single story addition to
accommodate expanded wellness and therapy services for residents of the Lutheran Home,
When the Lutheran Home’s existing therapy center was built in the 1970s, the Lutheran Home
was providing therapy services to approximately 25 residents per day. Today, the Lutheran
Home provides physical therapy services to approximately 75 residents per day. The existing
therapy center is antiquated and does not have sufficient square footage to meet the needs of the
Lutheran Home's residents. The project will permit the Lutheran Home to improve the quality
of physical therapy provided to its residents and also to expand its wellness programs.

ATTACHMENT 12
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By Mary Jane Koren

Person-Centered Care For Nursing
Home Residents: The Culture-
Change Movement

. ABSTRACT ‘I'he “culture change movement represents a fundamental s]uft
in thinking about’ nursmg homes. Facllmes are viewed not as health care
mstltutlons, but as person—centered homes oﬁ‘ering long-term care .
services. Culture—change principles and practices have been shaped b}r
shared concerns among consumers, policy makers, and providers

- regarding the value and qua]ity of care offered in traditional nursing "«

" homes, They ‘have shown promise in improving quality of life as well as .
. quality of care," while aIlev:atmg such problems as high staff turnover. . °

‘3,}

Policy makers can encourage culture change and capitalize on its

transformat:ona} power through regulation, relmbu.rsement, pubhc .

- reporﬁng, and other mechamsms. o

he culture-change movement is a

broad-based effort to transform

nursing homes from impersonal

health care institutions into true

person-centered homes offering
long-term care services. The movement encom-
passes almost three decades of consumer advo-
cacy coupled with legal, legislative, and policy
work aimed at improving both the quality of care
and the quality of life in nursing homes.

Culture-Change Movement Begins
In the early 19805, work by the National Citizens’
Coalition for Nursing Home Reform, a consumer
advocacy group concerned about substandard
care in nursing homes, emphasized residents’
rights and the importance of resident assess-
ment. Its Consumer Statement of Principles
for the Nursing Home Regulatory System,! re-
leased in 1983, was endorsed by more than sixty
national organizations, presented to the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services,
and distributed to all congressional offices.
Later, with support from the Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation, the Health Care Financing
Administration {HCFA, now the Centers for

Dowrnloaded frorn contant.healthaffairs.org by Health Affairs on March

Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS), and
the American Association of Retired Persons
(now AARP), the coalition conducted focus
groups to learn how nursing home residents
themselves defined quality. In 1985 it published
A Consumer Perspective on Quality Care: The Resi-
dent’s Point of View,* which became an important
reference for the Institute of Medicine (I0M)
committee on nursing home regelation. That
same year, at a coalition symposiem funded by
HCFA, residents told federal officials that “qual-
ity of care” (which encompasses such consid-
erations as the medical treatments a resident
receives, and physical care routines includ-
ing assistance with bathing, using the toilet,
and eating) and “quality of life” (how one is
treated—for instance, having one’s privacy re-
spected by others’ knocking before entering a
bathroom, or having one’s dignity maintained
by not being wheeled down a hallway scantily
covered en route to the shower) are inseparably
linked and, from the resident’s perspective,
equally important. This principle figured promi-
nently in subsequentlegislation and regulations.

In 1986 the Institute of Medicine published
Improving the Quality of Care in Nursing Homes,
which recommended changes in regulatory pol-

dok 1B13TTnichaff 2009 D966
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icies and procedures necessary to ensure that
nursing home residents, a term that first ap-
peared in this report, received satisfactory care.
It also “emphasized the home part of the descrip-
tion more than the nursing™ aspect of nursing
home. A year after the IOM study was published,
a sweeping set of nursing home reforms, known
as the Nursing Home Reform Act, was incorpo-
rated into the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act (OBRA) of 1987. The newly enacted Jaw re-
quired that cach nursing home resident “be pro-
vided with services sufficient to attain and main-
tain his or her highest practicable physical,
mental, and psychosocial well-being.” The law
made nursing homes the only sector of the entire
hcalth care industry to have an explicit statutory
requirement for providing what is now called
“person-centered care.”

In mandating this individualized, person-
centered care, these reforms heiped spark the
emergence of a grassroots movement. In the dec-
adc foliowing the passage of OBRA 1987, several
providers in Washington, Wisconsin, California,
New York, and Minnesota began to break away
from the prevailing nursing home model. They
created smaller “households™ out of large units,
sought input from residents about routines and
schedules, and tried to overcome the endemic
boredom and learned helplessness that was com-
mon in nursing homes. In 1997 these leaders,
aleng with consumer advocates, researchers,
and regulators, met to articulate the common
principles embodied in their separate models
and to found an organization called the Pioneer
Network. The network partners with the CMS to
explore ways to overcome regulatory barriers to
culture change* and to provide information to
congressional staff on the importance of sup-
porting innovation in long-term care.

The Pioneer Network eventually took the lead
in fostering the culture-change movement with-
in nursing homes. Today the moverent's over-
arching goals are to individualize care for resi-
dents, making faciliies more homelike and less
“institutional” It promotes person-centered
care through reorientation of the facility's cul-
ture—its values, atttudes, and norms—along
with its supporting core systerns (such as break-
ing down departmental hierarchies, ereating
fiexible job descriptions, and giving front-line
workers more control over work environments).
It strives to honor residents’ individual rights,
offering them quality of life and quality of care in
cqual measure. Culture change also recognizes
the importance of all staff members’ contribu-
tions to the pursuit of excellence.

The culture-change movement espouses a set
of principles,® instead of offering a prescriptive
set of practices or dictating conformance to a

FEBRUARY 2010 29:2

model. These principles encompass not only res-
ident care practices, such as elimination of phys-
ical restraints, but alse organizational and hu-
man resource practices and design of the phys-
ical environment. At the facility level, culture
change is often described as a journey, with fa-
cilities progressing through different stages of
change.®* They typically move further or more
quickly in one area than in another—such as
the use of self-managed work teams and envir-
onmental modifications. As with contnuous
quality improvement, there is always room to
do ntore, and to do it better,

Early in the culture-change movament, there
was a lack of agreement as to precisely how all of
these changes would manifest themselves in a
nursing home transformed by culture change. A
gathering of stakeholders’—including consumer
advocates, CMS representatives, and large trade
associations—reached consensus that the “ideal”
facility® would feature the following.

RESIDENT OIRECTION Care and all resident-
related activities should ke directed as much as
possible by the residens, For example, residents
would be offered choices and encouraged to
make their own decisions about things person-
ally affecting them, such as what to wear or when
to go to bed.

HOMELIKE ATMOSPHERE Practices and structures
should be designed to be less institutional and
more homelike. Small “hougeholds” of ten to
fifteen residents would be the organizational
unit. Meals would be prepared on the units,
and residents would have a¢cess to refrigerators
for snacks. Such institutional features as over-
kead public address systems would be
eliminated.

CLOSE RELATIONSHIPS Relationships between
residents, family members, staff, and the com-
munity should be close. For example, the same
nurse aides would always care for a resident {a
practice known as "consistent assignment”), be-
cause this appears to increase mutual familiarity
and caring.

STAFF EMPOWERMENT Work should be organized
to support and empower all staff to respond to
residents’ needs and desires. For example, team-
work would be encouraged, and additional staff
training provided to enhance efficiency and
effectiveness,

COLLABORATIVE DECISION MAKING Management
should enable collaborative and decentralized
decision making. Flattening of the typical nur-
sing home hierarchy and participatory manage-
ment systems would be encouraged. Aides would
be given decision-making authority. These strat-
egies appear to have positive effects on staff turm-
over and performance.?

QUALITY-IMPROVEMENT PROCESSES Systematic

Downlpaded from content.healthaffairs.crg by Health Affairs on March 5
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processes would be established for continuous
quality improvements that would be comprehen-
sive and measurement-based. Culture change
would be recognized as far more than offering
amenities or making superficial changes.
Rather, itwould be treated as an ongoing process
affecting overall performance and leading to spe-
cific, measurable outcomes.

Awareness Of Culture Change Grows
Awareness of the culture-change movement
grew slowly at first. As late as 2005, a Common-
wealth Fund survey of health care opinion lead-
ers showed that 73 percent of respondents were
unfamiliar with culture change.'* But in 2008,
when the survey was repeated, only about 34 per-
cent reported unfamiliarity with the movement.”
Providers in particular became very aware of cul-
ture change, in part because of the CMS's
“Eighth Scope of Work" contract with the na-
tion’s quality improvement organizations. That
contract specifically used the term “culture
change" and required that quality improvement
organizations work with nursing homes in cach
state “to collectinformation onresidentand staff
experience/satisfaction with care and staff turn-
over by engaging in activity that is likely to im-
prove organizational culture.”? These acts of
recognition and promotion have given the move-
ment considerable legitimacy and made it vir-
tually impossible for providers to ignore.

STATE INMITIATIVES State initiatives have also
helped encourage the adoption of culture
change. Efforts to “rebalance” the mix of long-
term care services and supports offered in insti-
tutional and community settings, coupled with
Medicaid coverage for assisted living, are giving
consumers alternatives to nursing homes—
thereby forcing traditional nursing homes to re-
assess what they must offer to stay competitive.

RESEARCH DEMONSTRATES RESULTS Research has
now begun to demonstrate results—specifically,
that the application of culture-change principles
and practices can make life better for residents
and improve working conditions for staff. Rela-
tively simple interventions can produce measur-
able results—for example, keeping shower
rooms warm can make bathing a more pleasur-
able experience for residents, reducc staff stress,
and save time *" Several management studies
support the link between strategic human re-
source management and organizational perfor-
manee,"™® lending support for the organiza-
tional redesign called for by culture-change
proponents. Similarly, research on facility de-
sign is providing evidence of the advantages of
more homelike surroundings, such as single
rooms, and the financial feasibility of these

designs over the long term."”

In addition, measures now exist to describe
objectively what, if anything, has changed when
a home claims to have adopted culture change.
Tools such as the CMS's Artifacts of Culture
Change enable providers to assess readintss
for, implementation of, and sustainability of per-
son-centered care. Defined measures, such as
those for staff turnover and consistent assign-
ment, can be used for practice improvement,
incorporated into reimbursement methodolo-
gies,”™ or made publicly available for consumers.

INITIATIVES EVALUATED Several culture-change
initiatives have now been carefully evaluated.
Wellspring'® uses ongoing learning collabora-
tives among groups of eight to ten facilities to
share expertise among management and em-
power staff. Another, the Eden Altermative,®
one of the earliest culture-change models, uses
environmental and social enrichment to over-
come boredom, feelings of helplessness, and
loneliness among residents. Beverly Enter-
prises, the first publicly traded, for-profit nur-
sing home chain to introduce deep system
change, transformed a group of its facilities
through its Resident-Centered Care Initiative.!

Lastly, Green Houses? use free-standing
small group homes, not large facilities, where
residents are cared for by a consistent group of
direct care staff with much expanded work re-
sponsibilities, such as activities, light house-
keeping, and meal preparation, in addition to
personal care. Studies of Green Houses, prob-
ably the most rigorous to date, found that resi-
dents’ quality of life surpassed that of residents
at control facilities, which were owned by the
same operator as Green Houses but which were
very typical large non-culture-change facilities,
while clinical outcomes were equal or better.
Green House staff were more satisfied, turnover
rates dropped, and the homes did well on their
annual federal inspections. With suppert from
the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, NCB
Capital Impact, and Green House developer Bill
Thomas, the model is spreading.™ This is despite
the fact that its model—a somewhat higher rato
of staff to residents and better pay for staff than is
the norm in nursing homes—faces difficulties in
states with low Medicaid reimbursement rates.”

To be sure, the number of pertinent studies is
still limited, many arc only descriptive or repre-
sent single case studies, and it is sometimes nec-
essary to extrapolate findings from research per-
formed outside the long-term care field. A large
information gap still exists on the costs of cul-
ture change and the sitrength of the “business
case” for it. Researchers are working to provide
answers to these and other questions, to enlarge
the empirical base to support culture change.
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Adoption Lags Behind Awareness
Despite widespread recognition of the move-
ment, deep culture change is relatively rare.
The Commonwealth Fund’s 2007 National Sur-
vey of Nursing Homes™ found that only 5 percent
of nursing directors said that their facilities com-
pletely met the deseription of a nursing home
transformed through culture change. Only
10 percent reported that they had initiated at
least seven or more culture-change practices.
All told, about one-third reported adoption of
some culture-change practices, and another
third said that they were planning to follow suit.
But the rest of the respondents said that they
were neither practicing nor planning to com-
mence culture change.

Several aspects of the nursing home industry,
including its workforce, regulation, and reim-
bursement, have conspired to limit the initation
of culture-change practices. Culture change re-
quires dedicated leadership over a period of
years, a stable workforce, the buy-in of nursing,
and funds for environmental improvements.
These features represent substantial invest-
ments in time, effort, and often money. The in-
dustry comes up short on a number of these
parameters. Nationally, the annual turnover
rate, for example, is more than 50 percent for
licensed administrators.” For directors of nur-
sing and nurse aides, annual turnover rates aver-
age about 40 percent and 65 percent, respec-
tively,® The nursing profession is largely
unprepared for the new roles expected of
nurses,” and funds for capital improvements
are in short supply. Incompatible state regula-
tions’—such as requiring that beds must pro-
ject into the room, making it impossible for res-
idents to arrange their furniture as they wish, or
forbidding open kitchens, so residents are un-
able to fix a snack—can hamper innovation un-
less providers are able to obtain waivers from
state agencies from existing regulations.

Despite federal requirements,” moreover,
most nutsing homes remain far from the ideal-
ized visions of nursing home reformers. Quality
continues to be criticized,”? Research suggests
an association between poor outcomes for nur-
sing home residents, such as decline in func-
tHonal levels, and inadequate preparation for
nurses, minimal training for nurse aides,®
and too few hours of nursing per resident per
day relative to care needs. s What's more, most
nursing homes are "homes” in name only and
retain a distinctly clinical orientation. Most are
buikt to resemble hospitals, and most of the care
is provided by aides and nurses, which skews
priorities toward clinical care. The current reg-
ulatory process, which exerts enormous influ-
ence over nursing home behavior, further rein-
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forces the clinical model. Nursing home
surveyors frequently cite quality-of-care prob-
lems (such as weight loss and falls), instead of
focusing on such areas as whether nursing home
personnel honor residents’ rights. A recent
study™in Rhode Island found that almost 90 per-
cent of providers thought that the surveyor’s
highest-priority area was detecting and eliminat-
ing deficiencies in the quality of care. In addi-
tion, various quality “report cards,” including
the one used by the CMS Nursing Home Compare
program, tend to emphasize clinical data.

Many of the circumstances that direct atten-
tion toward physical care and organizational
needs at the expense of residents’ overall well-
being can, at least in part, be addressed though
such policy interventions as payment incentives
tied to lower personnel turnover rates, creden-
tialing of nurses practcing in nursing homes,
code revisions, and tax credits or interest rate
reductions to encourage upgrading of physical
plants. Still other areas remain amenable to pol-
icy interventions,

DIRECT ENGAGEMENT Some states are actively
fostering organizational and environmental
change, workforce improvement, and resident-
centered practices. They are encouraging state
officials to participate in culture-change coali-
tions, workgroups, and taskforces.” Many states
are using Civil Monetary Penalty funds, legisla-
tive funding, Medicaid dollars, or grants, or
some combination, to help groups spearheading
culture.change activities, A set of state culture-
change case studies is in preparation, and a
culture-change toolkit for policy makers is
poasted on the Web site of the American Associa-
ton of Homes and Services for the Aging.®

PAYMENT INCENTIVES States can incorporate cul-
ture<hange criteria into payment models to pro-
vide incentives for the adoption of person-
centered care. Or they can earmark rate adjust-
ments to increase staffing levels.

FACILITY REPLACEMENT Many nursing home
structures are becoming obsolete. Policy makers
can revise construction cades to remove barriers
to person-centered environments and further
encourage design innovations by creating tax
credits, targeted grants, or interest rate reduc-
tions to make capital costs more manageable.

REGULATORY APPROACHES Rhode Island’s survey
agency familiarized surveyors with culture
change and tested a way to assess quality of life,
residents' rights, and quality of care with equal
tigor.* It also piloted a process of collaboration
with quality improvement organizations that
bears further examination by state and federal
regulators.

PUBLIC REPORTING AND RECOGNITION PROGRAMS
Although few currently do it, states can gather
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and report information on such important qual-
ity indicators as resident satisfaction, staffing
levels, staff turnover rates, tenure of facility ad-
ministrators, and use of per diem workers.
Award programs for innovation, such as the Pro-
moting Excellent Alternatives in Kansas (PEAK)
program, also appear to motivate providers.

WORKFORCE ENHANMCEMENTS The number-one
challenge in long-term care today is securing a
large enough and adequately trained work-
foree.*? Labor departments, [ocal Workforce In-
vestment Boards, and state departments of edu-
cation can help policy makers improve entry-
leve! training; lead job redesign, a critical neces-
sity for culture change; revise licensing require-
ments to permit more flexible use of staff; and
extend credentialing to nurses working in nur-
sing homes.? States can likewise mandate in-
creased training for nurse aides.

rReSEARCH Although there is a growing body of
evidence on the impact of culture change, many
guestions remain. Policy makers can facilitate
access of researchers to data sets; participate
in or conduct surveys; sponsor research; and
use the resuits of research to change statutes,

regulations, and policies to promote person-
centered nursing home care.

Conclusions

The outgrowth of many years of work on the part
of consumers, policy makers, and providers, cul-
ture change has brought a diverse group of stake-
holders together around the principle of person-
centered care in nursing homes. Although
awareness of the movement has grown, the dif-
ficulties of operationalizing and maintaining
culture change remain daunting. Yet they are
not insurmountable. With a policy environment
conducive to innovation, and supportive of both
initial and sustained adoption of new models, it
is possible that—before the baby-boom genera-
tion needs long-term care—nursing homes will
have become a better value proposition. The cul-
ture-change movement has shown that provision
of high-quality nursing home care, individua-
lized to meet cach resident’s needs in a setting
that maximizes self-determination and well-
being, can be a vision made real. =
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1125.330
ALTERNATIVES TO THE PROPOSED PROJECT

After reviewing the alternative options set forth below, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
determined that the proposed project is the most effective alternative for meeting the long term
care needs of the population serviced by the project. The Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
considered the following options with respect to the proposed project:

1. Do Nothing

2. Add Sprinklers to the Existing Olson Pavilion

3. Demolish the Olson Pavilion in its Entirety and Rebuild it
4, Proceed with the Proposed Project

Alternative 1: Do Nothing

The Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. considered the alternative of doing nothing;
however, this is not a viable alternative. On August 8, 2008, the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (“CMS”) promulgated a new regulation requiring all long-term care facilities
to have complete sprinkler systems in place by August 8, 2013. (42 C.F.R. § 483.70(2)(8)).
Presently, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. is not fully sprinklered and must install a
sprinkler system to comply with the CMS’ conditions for participation in the Medicare program.
Failure comply will not only be costly for the facility but creates safety concerns for its residents.

Additionally, this option does not address the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.’s
concerns about increasing the quality of care to its residents. Without adding an addition to the
existing Olson Pavilion, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. would not be able to install
private bathrooms, which would allow the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to more effectively
control infections, such as MRSA and the flu. In addition, this alternative would not permit the
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to increase the size of its physical therapy area. The existing
therapy center is antiquated and does not have sufficient square footage to meet the needs of the
Lutheran Home’s residents.

Further, this option would not permit the Lutheran Home to replace its outdated systems,
included water piping and fire suppressant systems. This would lead to the Lutheran Home for
the Aged, Inc. to be continuously “under construction” as the facility repairs these systems as
they deteriorate. This would not only be costly for the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc., but it
would create continuous disruptions for the residents.

While there are no immediate capital costs associated with this alternative, over the long
term, this alternative would be more costly as it would have Medicare compliance issues and
would have to constantly repair its other aging systems.
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Based on the foregoing considerations, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. rejected
this alternative.

Alternative 2: Add Sprinklers to the Olson Pavilion

As set forth above, all long-term care facilities must have complete sprinkler systems in
place by August 8, 2013, The Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. considered the alternative of
installing sprinkler systems to comply with this requirement without modemizing the remainder
of the Olson Pavilion. While this option permits the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to
comply with the sprinkler requirements of 42 C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8), it does not address the issue
of repair and replacement of the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. other aging systems, such as
water piping and fire suppressant systems. This would lead to the Lutheran Home for the Aged,
Inc. to be continuously “under construction” as the facility repairs these systems as they
deteriorate. This would not only be costly for the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc., but it
would create continuous disruptions for the residents.

Additionally, this option does not address the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.’s
concerns about increasing the quality of care to its residents. Without adding an addition to the
existing Olson Pavilion, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. would not be able to install
private bathrooms, which would allow the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to more effectively
controt infections, such as MRSA and the flu. In addition, this alternative would not permit the
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to increase the size of its physical therapy area. The existing
therapy center is antiquated and does not have sufficient square footage to meet the needs of the
Lutheran Home’s residents.

While this alternative is less costly compared the alternative selected, over the long term,
this alternative would be more costly as it would result in Medicare compliance issues and
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. would have to constantly repair its other aging systems.

Based on the foregoing considerations, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. rejected
this alternative.

Alternative 3: Demolish the Olson Pavilion in its Entirety and Rebuild it

The Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. considered the alternative of demolishing the
Qlson Pavilion in its entirety and then rebuilding it completely. While this alternative would
have allowed the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to upgrade its facilities to replace its aging
equipment and systems and also permitted the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to equip the
new facility with sprinkler systems in compliance with 42 C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8), this option is
more costly than the proposed project, does not address quality of care concerns and would limit
resident/patient access.

Demolishing the Olson Pavilion in its entirety and rebuilding it is more costly than the
proposed project because the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. would have to decrease its
patient census in the Olson Pavilion down to zero in order to demolish the building, Since the
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. historically has an occupancy rate greater than 90%, the
residents in the Olson Pavilion would need to be relocated to another facility as there would not
170833M\200377135 2
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be enough beds available on the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.’s campus to relocate them.
This loss of census would create a huge financial burden on the Lutheran Home.

In addition to the cost of this option, this option would also greatly decrease resident
access to care. Since the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. would not be able to continue to
serve a majority of the residents in the Olson Pavilion once the building were demolished, these
residents would have to be located to other facilities, which would restrict their access to care.

This alternative would also not be able to address the quality concerns related to shared
bathrooms because rebuilding the Olson Pavilion without any additional space would not permit
the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to continue to serve the same number of residents and also
install private bathrooms. Private bathrooms will allow the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to
more effectively control infections, such as MRSA and the flu, which will improve patient
outcomes and reduce the number of readmissions to hospitals. In addition, this alternative would
not permit the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to increase the size of its physical therapy area.
The existing therapy center is antiquated and does not have sufficient square footage to meet the
needs of the Lutheran Home’s residents,

This alternative is more costly and will decrease census in the Olson Pavilion to zero. It
would also take far more time to complete.

Based on the foregoing considerations, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. rejected
this alternative.

Alternative 4: Proceed with the Proposed Project

Proceeding with the proposed project contemplates that the Olson Pavilion will be
completely gutted and a new addition will be added to the existing Olson Pavilion. The project
will be phased so that the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. does not have to drastically reduce
its census in the Olson Pavilion, which allows the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to continue
to operate on a financially sound basis throughout construction.

This alternative best addresses the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.’s goals of
continuing to serve residents in the community, while updating its facilities to comply with the
sprinkler system requirements of 42 C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8). In addition, this alternative best
addresses the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Ind.’s need to install private bathrooms in each
resident room, which will allow the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to more cffectively
contro! infections, such as MRSA and the flu and will improve patient outcomes and reduce the
number of readmissions to hospitals.

In addition, the proposed project will allow the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. to more
effectively serve its residents who are in need of physical therapy. The project will permit the
Lutheran Home to improve the quality of physical therapy provided to its residents and also to
expand its wellness programs.

Accordingly, based on the above considerations and the Lutheran Home for the Aged,
Inc.’s desire to continue to provide quality care to its residents, the Lutheran Home for the Aged,
-3-
170833 11\20037W7135
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Inc. elected to pursue this option, which is the best, most cost-effective way to address regulatory
compliance, resident needs and quality care.

1708333\12003747135
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
SIZE OF PROJECT

The amount of physical space proposed for the Project is necessary and not excessive. As set
forth in the Review Board Rules, the project size standard applicable to the modemization of
general long term care facilities is 350-570 DGSF/Bed. The DGSF for the proposed Project is
426.9 DGSF/Bed, which is 143.1 DGSF/Bed less than the State standard for general long term
care modernization projects. Accordingly, the amount of physical space proposed for the Project
meets the State standard and is not excessive.

ATTACHMENT 14
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CON APPLICATION

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

The table below documents that in the second year of operation, the annual occupancy of the
Applicant shall meet or exceed the State standards:

UTILIZATION
YEAR DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION STANDARD | STANDARD
{PATIENT DAYS)
{TREATMENTS)
ETC.
2009 | General LLong 90% Yes
Term Care 111,011 Patient Days
2010 | General Long 90% Yes
Term Care 112,830 Patient Days
2016 | General Long 117.033 Patient Days 90% Yes
Term Care
2017 | General Long 117,033 Patient Days 90% Yes

Term Care

The rationale which supports the projected occupancy rates included above is that the demand
for admission into the Lutheran Home has historically been, and continues to remain, high. In
2011, the Lutheran Home received 2,094 patient inquiries regarding its skilled nursing beds. The
Lutheran Home believes that this high rate of interest will continue and the Lutheran Home will
continue to have a utilization rate above the State standard.

As indicated above, in each of 2009 and 2010, the Lutheran Home maintained an average annual
occupancy rate of 94.5% and 92.6% respectively. Faced with steadily increasing demand, the
Lutheran Home projects that it will meet the occupancy standard of 90% for both the first and
second full years of operations with projected occupancy rates of 96% and 96% respectively.

1682662\520037W7135
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1125.608

BED CAPACITY

The Luthcran Home for the Aged, Inc. is currently licensed by the Illinois Department of
Public Health for 392 total beds (274 skilled nursing beds, 60 intermediate care beds, and 58
sheltered care beds). While the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. exceeds the maximum bed
capcity set forth in 1125.600, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. is not increasing the total
number of beds as part of this project. Additionally, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
provides personalized quality patient care as evidenced by its four star Medicare rating. The
modernization of the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. will increase the ability of the Lutheran
Home for the Aged, Inc. to provide personalized quality patient care because the renovated
Olson Pavilion will organize residents into person centered households, which includes new
living, dining and social spaces in order to create a home-like setting. Additionally, the private
bathrooms in the completed project will increase the quality of care provided at the Lutheran
Home, by allowing the Lutheran Home to more effectively control infections, such as MRSA
and the flu, which will improve patient outcomes and reduce the number of readmissions to

hospitals.

1707396\2\2003 T4 7135 ATTACHMENT 28
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1125.610

COMMUNITY RELATED FUNCTIONS

The Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. has cooperated and continucs to cooperate with
community groups within its primary service area. Please see the attached letters of support
from various community organizations, including the Mayor of Arlington Heights and the
Arlington Heights Chamber of Commerce.

ATTACHMENT 28
170742820037 7135
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Village of Arlington Heights

33 South Ariington Heights Road
Arlington Helghts, lilinols 60005-1499

February 28, 2012

Mr. Philip G, Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Qakton Street
Arlingten Heights, IL 60004

Re: Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Appiication

Dear Mr. Hemmer:

I am writing to offer my support far Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc.’s Certificate
of Need Application concerning its proposed modeimnization project.

The Lutheran Home has served both Ariington Helghts and its surrounding
communitles with high quality care since its establishment in 1892, The
Lutheran Homa's commitment to offering our community’s seniors high-quailty
care is exemplified: by both its: outstanding reputation. throughout the area as
well as Its 4-star rating by the Center for Medicare and Medicald Services.

Furthermore; the Lutheran Home:-is a valued member of the Arlington Helights
community due to the compasslonate care It provides to our seniors, including
those with limited financial resources. Misslon-based arganizations like the
Lutheran-Home are vital to ensuring the well-belng of our seniors, and 1
whoieheartedly support the Lutheran Home’s application for a Certificate of Need

permit to modemize its faciilties.

The letter does not waive any of the Village’s authority regarding zoning and
tand use considerations.

Sincerely,

Arlene J, %iﬁer

Mayor
oh Mr. Dale Galassie ATTACHMENT 28
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ARLINGYON HEIGHTS

arlingtonheightschamber.com

Friday, February 24, 2012

Mr. Phiiip G. Hemmer
Administrator.

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street
Arlington Heights, IL 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr, Hemmer,

The Arfington. Heights Chamber of Commerce adds its support to your efforts to
modemize the long term care facilities of the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. {"Lutheran
Home”}, It is important to our membars to know that there Is a high-quality senior living fadlity
based In the communlty that offers compassionate care in the Lutheran tradition.

The Lutheran Home has been a Chamber member for many years and they participate in many
community events that we hold. They sponsored our annual prayer breakfast this vear both
financlally and by asking staff members to be on the planning and welcoming committee. They
are a3 great business partner in our town and have been for 120 years since 1892. We are

grateful for thelr participation and services to our community.

Lutherany Home extends their care for others beyond thelr facility walls. They are a community
care center that values belonging to the community they serve. Lutheran Home offers high-
quality, compassionate: care for all of its residents; regardless: of thelr particular religious
denomination; and especially to those of limited financlal means. Accordingly; | belleve that
the proposed modemization of the Lutheran Home's facilities will serve to benefit not only the
Lutheran members of our community, but all of cur community’s senlars. For these reasons, |
am pleased. {0 extend the support of the Arlington Heights Chamber of Commerce to your

Certificate of Need Application.

Sincerely,

on S, Ridler
Ariington Helghts Chamber of Commerce
Executive Director

ATTACHMENT 28
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Luz A. Feldmann, MD-
1100 West Ceatrai Road Suite 307 ¢ Adington Helghts lilinois 60005
Telophone 847-256-7246 - Fax 847-265-6231

Troating Pain.
Transforming iives

March 1, 2012

M. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Qakton Street
Arlington Heights, IL 60004

Re: Support for the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Ine. CON Application

Dr Mr. Hemmer,

I wish to offer you my support for the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc’s (*Lutheran
Home™) application for a Certificate of Need (“CON™) to modernize its facilities. 1am
aware of the important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our community, not only for
its Lutheran members, but for all seniors, regardicss of their religious beliefs..

The Lutheran Home is a special place in that it offers grace-filied living for its residents,

including those in need. Because of its warm, compassionate environment, the Lutheran
Home is truly an asset to our community’s seniors; who benefit from its high-quality,

mission-focused care..

I am happy to offer my support for the modernization project which will enable the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors.

Sincerely,

Luz A Feldmann; MD
Pain Management

Cc: Mr. Dale Galassie

ATTACHMENT 28
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BAO West Cortral Rusd, Sulte 4300

Speech and Hearing Center Led, Adingron Roight, IL 60008
Vaice/TTY: 847-392-2250
Fax: B47-39222 10
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March 02, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator '
Lutherann Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Qakton Street
Arlington Heights, [1. 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr, Hemmer,

I wish to offer you my suppornt for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc’s (“Lutheran Home”)
application for a Certificate of Need (*CON™) to modemize its facilitics. 1 am aware of the
important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our commumity, not only for its Lutheran
members, but for all seniors, regardless of their religious beliefs.

The Lutheran Home is a special place in that it offers gmce-filled living for its residents,
including those in need: Because of its warmm, compassionate environment, the Lutheran Home
is truly an asset to our community's seniors, who- benefit. from its high-quality, mission-focnsed
care. We see many patients at Lutheran Home and truly appreciate the care that the patients
receive through this wonderful organization.

{ am happy to offer-my support. for the modemization project which will enable the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors.

Sing:miy,
/ Sl L .
}")?Jf &ﬁdéd% ) M'D'
Mary Ca Im, Au.D., CCC-A
Director

ce:  Mr. Dale Galassie
ATTACHMENT 28
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MR. ROBERT IMMEN
730 Creekside Dr #101
Mt. Prospect, IL 60056

March 1, 2012

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr, Hemmer,

[ write to add my support to your ciforts to modernize the long term care facilities of the
Lutheran Home for the Aged; Inc. (“Lutheran Homine™). It is important to:our. members to know:
that there- is a high-quality senior living. facility: based:. in. the community that- offers
compassionate care in the: Lutheran tradition. The- faitli-based environment: provided: by: the
Luthersn Homs is important to our members wha can be comnforted. knowing that- they may
continue to practice their faith should they come to reside in a long term care facility,

Furthermore, ] am aware that the Lutheran Home offers high-quality, compassionate care
for all of its residents, regardiess of their particular religious denomination;. and especially to
those of limited financial means. Accordingly, I believe that the proposed modermzation of the
Lutheran- Home's facilities. will- serve: to. benefit. not: only, the- Lutheran: members- of. our
community; but ali- of our community’s seniors: For these reasons,. I amr pleased .to offér my
support to your Certificate. of Need Application.

smw@/u@,ﬂﬂ.&/
Robert Iintnen
cc: Mr, Dale Galassie

ATTACHMENT 28
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Village of Arlington Heights

33 South Asiington Heights Road
Arlington Hedghts, Illinols 60005-1499
(847) 368-5000

Website: www vah.com

February 22, 2012

Mr, Phil Hemmer

Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 W, Qakton

Arlington Heighis, IL 60004

Regarding: Certificate of Need for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

This letter comes as my support for Lutheran Home's application for a Certificate of
Need to renovate its facilities. This construction project will enhance Lutheran Home's
ability to continue to provide quality care for its residents, their families and senior

members of our community.

Lutheran Home has eamed its standing as a venerable institution in our community and a
leader in the field of aging. A faith based mission driven provider can accomplish so
much in our industry and Lutheran Home helps keep that standard high. They offer their
home and services to the elderly and their families without regard to religious affiliations

or beliefs,

Being a frequent guest, both personally and professionally at' Lutheran Home; [ bave
always been impressed with the facility, thie truly home like- ambiance, the programs,.
services, and the level of staff concern for its residents and their guests:

Respectfully,

Alm ) /érz‘&m
Karen Hansen
Senior Center Manager
Arlington Heights Senior Center
Village of Arlington Heights,

CC: enclosed for Dale Galassie

ATTACHMENT 28




Richard A Mannion MD
Spinal/Bsick Surgery
Joint Replacament
Gonerat Orthopadics

Gerard R Marty MD.
Padiatrié Orthopedics
Geanmaraf Orthopadics

Thomas C Tingle MD
Sports Madicine &
Arthroscopy -
Ganaral Orthopadics

Sergey M Kachar DO
Joint Replacemsnt
Reconstruction:
Generat Qrihopedics/Trauma

Mailk Abraham DPM
FostAnkie injurtes
Certifisd (n Reconstructive

Rearfoot/Ankis Surgery

Richard S Tuttie MD
Physical Madicins &
Rehnbliitation
Elscirodiagnostio Medicine

Northwest Orthopedic Surgery, S.C.

1120 N. Arlington Helghts Road
Ariingtomr Helghts; ifinofs 60004
84T 870-4200: Fax 847-870-0058
www.nworthopadic.com
www.hwos.Info

February 23, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, inc.
800 Wast Oakton Street
Arlington Helghts, IL 60004

Re: Support for Lutheran Home for the Agad, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer:

| wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, inc’s ("Lutheran
Homa") application for a Cariificate of Need ("CON") to modemize its facilities. | am
aware of the important role that the Lutheran Home plays In our community, not only
for its Lutharan members; but for all seniors, regardlesa of their religious beliefs.
The Lutheran.Home s a special place [n that it offers grace-filled Iiving for its

residents, Including those in need.. Because of its warm, compassionate-
environment, tha Lutharan Home is truly an assat ta our community’s seniors, who

benefit from its high-quality, mission-focused care.

| am happy, to offer my support for the modemization project, which wilt enable the.
Lutheran Home to ¢ontinue to provide quaiity cara for our saniors.

Sincer /

ard S. Tuttle/ M.D.

cc: Mr, Dals Galagsle

ATTACHMENT 28
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Our LADY OF THE WAYSIDE PARISH

February, 14,2012

Mr, Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street
Arlington Heights, [L. 60004

Re: Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

1 wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc’s (*Lutheran Home™)
application for a Certificate of Need (“CON™) to modernize its facilities. | am aware of
the important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our community, not only for its
Lutheran members, but for all seniors, regardless of their religious beliefs.

The Lutheran Home ig a special place in that it offers grace-filled living for its’
residents, including those in need. Because of its warm, compassionate environment, the
Lutheran Home is truly an asset to our community’s seniors, who benefit from its high-
quality, mission-focused care,

I am happy to offer my support for the modernization project which will enable the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors.

Sincerely,
Rev. Eaniel J. Brady

ATTACHMENT 28
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Discerning Data Solutions

February 23, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street
Arlington Heights, IL 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr, Hemmer,

I write to add my support to your efforts to modemize the long term care
facilities: of the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. (*Lutheran Home") It is
important to our members to know that there is a high-quality semior living
facility based in the community that offers compassionate care in the Lutheran
tradition. The feith-baged environment provided by the Lutheran Home is
important to our members who can be comforted knowing that they may continue
to practice their individual faith should they come to reside in a long term care

facility.

The Lutheran Home is a great supporter of the Rotary Club of Arlington Heights
and they are also a club member. They help with sponsorships of our fundraisers
in town and their staff: help in all kinds of ways to.improve our community, We
could not be more pleased with how the Lutheran Home actively demonstrates its
commitment to our community through it support of our Rotary Club. It is a
mode] for other businesses and organizations in Arlington Heighita:

Furthermore, I am. awere that the Lutheran Home offers high-quality,
compassicnate care for ail of its residents, regardless of thelr particular refigious
denomination, and especially to those of limited financial means. Accordingly, |
believe that the proposed modemization of the Lutheran Home's facilities will
serve to benefit not only the Lutheran members of our community, but all of our
community’s seniors. For these reasons, I am pleased to offer my support to your

Certificate of Need Application.

Sincerely,

HP N C?g‘_-—r-—
Tim Corrigan
Rotary Club of Arlington Heights

President, 2011-2012
ATTACHMENT 28

115 North Arlingten Heights Road - Suite 102 » Artington Helghis « 1lHfnois 60004
H17.304.0206h fax: B47.394.2802 www.corriganinc.com

0000352




Wisdom Investments, Inc.

Investments, Tex and Financdial Conralting
Registared Investmant Advisor

Foe ( T8V Orjy

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Adiministrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West QOakton Strect

Arlington Heights, IL 60004
Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

1 wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc’s (*Lutheran
Home”) application for a Certificate of Need {“CON"] to modemize. its- facilities, | am-
aware of the important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our community; not only
for its Lutheran members, but for all seniors, regardliess of their religious beliefa.

The Lutheran Home is a special place in that it offers grace-filled living for its
residents, including those in need. Because of its warm, compassionate environment,
the Lutheran Home is tnily an asset to our community’s seniors, who benefit from its
high-quality, misasion-focused care. As an Arlington Heights resident, I am aware of
the care and help that Lutheran Home provide to many scniors and their families
without funds or who run out of funds.

The Lutheran Home staff is a great supporter of the things that I care about in
Arlington Heights. also:. 1 know several of the key management staff and see them at
functiona throughout Arlington Heights that make our village as great as it ia.

As a.financial advisor [ have:the opportunity to interact with many seniors who
truly benefit from the services: provided: by the lutheran Home and similar
organizations. Having had the opportunity to visit The Lutheran Home with some my
current clients and potential Lutheran Home clients I have experienced a degree of
warmth and friendlinesa that everyone would want for their senior parents, friends

and neighbors.

I am happy to offer my support for the modernization project which will enable
the Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors.

Sincerely,

Wm. 8. Kmiecik, Jr.
Pregident
Wisdom Investment, Inc. ATTACHMENT 28

2018 §, Aringten His. Rd. - Sulte 113 - Arington His,, IL 0005 - Fhone 847-200-0733 - Fax 847-280.0703
emall - smardecisions@wisdominvestiments.cam

000083



b\“ ’” . Palatine Township 505 South Quentin Road ¢ Palatine, Winols 60067
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February 27, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oskion Street
Arlington Heights, IL 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, {nc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

1 write to add my support to your efforts to modemize the long term care facilities of the
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. ("Lutheran Home™). It is important 1o our members to know
that there is a high-quality senior living facility based in the community thet offers
compassionate care in the Lutheran tradition. The faith-based environment provided by the
Lutheran Home is important to our members who can be comforted knowing that they may
continue to pmctice their faith should they come to reside in a long term care facility.

Furthermore, | am aware that the Lutheran Home ofTers high-quality, compassionate care for all-
of its residents; regardiess of their particular religious denomination, and especially to those of
limited financial means. Accordingly, | belicve that the proposed modemization of the Lutheran
Home's facilities will serve to benefit not oniy the Lutheran members of our community, but alj
of our community’s senjors. For these reasons, [ am pleased to offer my support to your
Certificate of Need Application.

Sincerely,

Lust rengen

Executive Director

ce: Mr. Dale Galaasie

A ool thae X athara dpncil 1ar. Nong

ACCRIDITED BY
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF
SINIOR CENTIRY
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WHEELING TOWNSHIP

1818 N. Arlington Heights Road + Arfington Heights, illinois 60004
B47-259-7730 « fax 847-259-1570
www.wheslingtownship.com

February 27, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Osakion Street
Arlington Heights, IL, 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

I wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc’s (“Lutheran Home”)
application for a Certificate of Need (“CON™) to modemize its facilities, I am aware of the
important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our community, not only for its Lutheran
members, but for all seniors, regardless of their religious beliefs.

Thie Lutheran Home is a special place in that it offers grace-filled living for its residents,
including those in nzed. Because of its warm, compassionate environment, the Lutheran Home
is truly an asset to our community's seniors, who benefit from its high-quality, mission-focused

care;

I am happy to offer my support for the modemization project which will enable the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors,

Sincerely,

e et

Michael B. Schroeder
Supervisor.

cc: Mr. Dale Galassie
ATTACHMENT 28
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ARLINGTON PARK RACECOURSE

February 17, 2012

Mr. Phillp G. Hemmer

Administrator
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.

800 Wast Cakton Street
Arlington Helghts, iL 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Appiication

Dear Mr. Hemmaer,

| wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc’s (*Lutheran Home") application for a
Certificate of Need ("CON") to modernize its facilities. | am aware of the Important role that the Lutheran
Homae plays in our community, not only for its Lutheran members, but for all seniors, regardless of their

refigious beliefs,

The-Lutheran - Home is a special place In' that, it offers grace-filled llving. for its residents; including those.in.
need. Because. of Its warm, compassionate environment, the. Lutheran Home: is truly an: asset to our

community’s seniors, who benefit from its high-quality, mission-facused care,

The Lutheran Heme and Lutheran Life Communities participate in many activities at Arlington Park.. Their staff
is Invoived in many community outreach programs and clubs such as Rotary, the Chamber of Commerce, the
Mayor's Annual Prayer Breakfast and the Fourth of July Parade in which Arington Park also participates, We
are grateful to be a business partner with them in our community. They offer help and people to accomplish
great things in Arlington Helghts and thay are a true community partner,

| am happy to offer my support for the modernization project which will enable the Lutheran Home to
continue to provide quality care to our senlors.

ige M, Stabler
ington Park Racecourse

Vice President, Community Affairs ATTACHMENT 28
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February 21, 2012

Mr. Philip Q. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street

Arlington Heights, IE. 60004
Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged; Ine. CON Application
Dear Mr. Hemmer,

I wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc's (“Lutheran Home™)
application: for & Certificate. of Need (“CON”™) to' modemize its. facilities. I am aware of the
important role that-the Lutheran Home plays in our community, not only for its Lutheran
members, but for all seniors, regardless of their religious beliefs.

The Lutheran Home and Lutheran Life Communities are wonderful business partners in

our communify and thsy support many of the same community outreach events that we do, They
offer- help and. people. to accomplish great things in Arlington Heights and they are a true.
community pariner. -

I am:happy to offer my support for. the modemization project which will enable.the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors:

Sincerely,

Dennis J. Kalka
Executive Vice President
Village Bank and Trust

ATTACHMENT 28
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February 23, 2012

Mr Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street
Arlington Hts, IL 60004

RE: Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

| wish to offer you my support for the Lutheran Home for the Aged, In¢’s
{“Lutheran Home"} application for a Certificate of Need (“CON") to modernize its
facilities. | am aware of the important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our
community, not only for its Lutheran members, but for all senlors, regardless of

their religious beliefs.

The Lutheran Homae is a special piace in that it offers grace-filled living for
its residents, Including those in need. Because of its warm, compassionate
environment, the Lutheran Home is truly an asset to cur community’s senlors,
who benefit from its high-quality, mission-focused care.

| am happy to offer my support for the modernization project which will
enable the Lutheran Home to continue to.provide quality care to our senfors.

Sincerely, -~
o ___\|\\[\_)

Dr Michael H. Warheit DPM

ATTACHMENT 28
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" Sait Peter

LUTHERAN CHURCH & SCHOOL: LoMS
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February 27, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Qakton Street
Ariingtor Helghts; iL 60004

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

I write to add my support to your efforts to modernize the iong term care facilities of
the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. ("Lutheran Home”). It Is important to our members to.
know that there s’ a high-quality senior living-faclilty based in the community that offers
compassionate. care in the. Lutheran tradition. The falth-based environment provided by tha
Lutheran: Home: s Important to our. members: who. can be comforted knowing. that they may
continue to practice thelr faith should they come to reside in a long term care faciiity.

Furthermore, | am aware. that the tutheran Home offers high-quality,. compassionate
care for all of its residents; regardliess of their particular religious denomination, and especiaily
to those of Iimited financlal means:. Accordingly, | believe that the proposed modernization of
the Lutheran Home's facilitles: will serve to- benefit: not only the tutheran members of our
community, but alt of our community’s seniors. For thess reasons, | am pleased to offer my

support to your Certificate of Need Application,

Sincerely,

ol i

Rev. Micah Grelner

cc: Mr. Dale Galassie
ATTACHMENT 28
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KERRY W, PE‘ARSON
ATTORNEY AT LA

1216 EAST RDAD, SUITE 201

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS; IL, 66005-285%9

mxar_yrméam Phoxe; (847)S77-5000
Kerry@KerryPearson.com or kwplaw@eartbiink.net Faxz (847) 5775048

Pebraary 20, 2012

Mz, Philip G, Hemmer

!‘ ! L. | I l
Lutheran Homs for the Aged, Inc.
300 Weést Oakton Strect

Arlington Heights, IL 60004
Rs:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

1 wish to offer you roy support for Luthersa Home for Aged, Inc’s (“Lutheran Home™)
application for a Centificats of Neod (“CON™) to modemize ity facilitiss. [ am awsre of the
important role that the Lutheran Home plays in our community, ot only for its Lutheran members,
but for all seniors, regardliess of their religious beliefs,

Because of it warm, compassionate environment, the Lutheran Home is troly an asset to our
comumunity's senfors, who benefit from its high-quality, misston-focused care. [ have witnessed the
wonderfis} and: cering: job; the: Lutiseras. Home: has: doner boths from s personal and professional.
standpaint. My mother spent the last few yearw'of her lifeé residing in the Luther Homs, and while-
visiting her on an almost datly basis I could see fitat hund not only how she was trested, but also how
other: residenty were treated., As sa sttomey who has fived and had my lsw office in- Aslington.
Haights for 304 yeurs [ have had mamny clients and scquaintances who have resided in the Lutheran .
Home; all of whom have spokes highly of ity cars and services, and of what a worthy and wonderfil
community partmer it has been in our community.

[ am happy to offer my support for the modernizstion project which will enable the Luthenm
Homs to continue to provide quality care to our seniora.

Very truly yours,

m: :j.v. Pearson
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ROBERT AND ELEANOR HORDER
1206 E: Fairview St. #203-
Arlington Heights, IL. 60004

March 1, 2012

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer,

I write to add my support to your efforts to modemize the long term care facilitiés of the
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. (“Lutheran Home?).. It is important to our membess to know
that..there: is: a- high-quality senior -living: fiicility- based: in the community: that offers
compassionate care in the: Lutheran tradition. The faith-based environment provided by the
Lutheran: Home is important to our members who can be comforted knowing that they may
continue to practice their faith should they come to reside in a long term care facility.

Furthermore, 1 am aware that the Lutheran Home offers high-quality, compassionate care
for all. of its residents, regardless of their particular religious denomination, and especially to
those of limited: financial means:. Accordingly, I believe that the proposed modernization of the
Lutherany- Home’s facilities: will. serve to- benefit- not only: ther Lutheran members of our
community, but. all: of our community’s seniors, For these reasons, I am pleased to offer my
support to your Certificate of Need Application. .

Sincerely,

Rodot- & Elsanr Neorddon

Robert and Eleanor Horder

cc: Mr, Dale Galassie

ATTACHMENT 28
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SMITH- HEMMESEH BURKE & KACZYNSXI
10 SOUTH LASALLE STRERT.» SUITE 2660 ¢ CHICAGO,; ILLINOIS 60603
P (312) 939-0100 » P (312) 939-7768

www.shbb-law.com
WrLIAM L. SMITE, JR
Denato F. HEMMIH, Jo THOMAS . Baantae
Revin P. . RoGam J. GuaziN
February 20, 2012

Mr. Philip G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 West Oakton Street

Arlington Heights, IL 60004

RE: Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged; Inc. CON Application

Dear Mr, Hemmer,

I wish to offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc’s (“Lutheran Home™)
application: for a. Certificate of Need (“CON™) to modemize its facilities. As an Arslington
Heights resident, and: baving worked in the community as an Assistant Cook County State’s
Attorney, I am well aware of the important:role that the Lutheran Home. plays in our community,
not only for its Lutheran members, but for ail seniors, regardless of their religious beliefs:

The Lutheran Home i3 a special place in that it offcrs grace-filled living for its residents,

including those in need. Because of its warm, compassionate envirooment, the Lutheran Home
is truly an asset to our community’s seniors, who benefit from its high-quality, mission-focused

Care.

1 am happy to offer my support for the modernization project which will enable the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors.

Sincerely,
~
Qn- 6. \ZW("
Christopher B. Kaczynski
CBK/sme
ce:  Mr. Dale Galassie ATTACHMENT 28
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L o L R A
Thsodore Homa MD CME.+~
Intermol Madicine; Gerlatriocs and
long Term Care.

2/22/12

Mr. Phiitp G. Hemmer
Administrator

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc.
800 W Qakton

Ariington Heights, ik 60004

RE: Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, inc. CON Application

Dear Mr. Hemmer:

We are writing to offer our support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc’s (“Lutheran Home?”)

Cenrttficate of Need (*CON") Application concemning its proposed modemization project.

The Lutheran Home has served both Ariington Heights and its surrounding communities with
high quailty care since its establishment in 1892. The Lutheran Home’s commitment to offering
our cammunity’s senlors high-quality care is exempiified by both its sterling reputation throughout

the area as well as its 4-star rating by the Center for Medicare and Med!cald Services,

Furthermore, the Lutherar Home is a valued member of this community due to the compassionate
care it provides to our senfars, including those with limited financlai resources, Mission-based

organizations ilke the Lutheran Home are vital to ensuring the well-being of our senlors, and we

ATTACHMENT 28
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wholaheartedly support the Lutheran Home's application for a CON permit to modernize its

facilities,
Sincerely,
%M%/M’ M ~don _Hae. L
ecdore Homa, MD Sandra Garretson, MD Steven Kim, MD

cc: Mr. Dale Galassie
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DSY DENTAL CONSULTANTS, PG
8800.N; Bronx - -
Sulte #2084
Skoldé; ). 60077
847/85764812 (phone)
347/878-8802 (fax)-
dsydental@yshog.com

March 2, 2012

Mr. Phillp G. Hemmer:
Administrator:

Luthicran:Home far the Aged, Inc.
300 West Otktors Street.
Arlington Helghts; 1L 60004-

Re:  Support for Lutheran Home for the Aged, Ina. CON Application

' Dear Mr. Heaner:

I wish ta offer you my support for Lutheran Home for Aged, Inc's: (“Lutheran Home™)
application for a Certificats of Need (“CON"™) to modemizs its facilities. I am aware of
the important role that the Lithersn Homo plays in our commmumity; not only for its
Luthersn members; but for all aeniom, regardiess of their religious beliefa.

Thic Lutheran Home 1s & special plece in that it offéry grecerfilled living for its residents;.
including those in need.: Because of its warm, compassioaste enviranment, the Lutherun
Home: is truly an:asset to owoommunity‘aseuion. who- benefit: from its high-quality,

mission-focused care:

I am' happy to offer my support for the. modunizaﬁon'pmject which will enable the
Lutheran Home to continue to provide quality care to our seniors.

Sincerely,

David 8. Yudkowuky, DD§
President

ect Mr. Dale Galassie
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1125.620

PROJECT SIZE

The amount of physical space proposed for the Project is necessary and not excessive. As set
forth in detail in Attachment 14, the DGSF is 426.9 DGSF/Bed, which is 143.1 DGSF/Bed less
than the State standard for modernization projects.

ATTACHMENT 28
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1125.630
ZONING

Building height for the project is governed by the existing Village of Arlington Heights PUD
(#88-93) and is limited to 40 feet by the PUD Ordinance. In addition, the zoning ordinance of
Arlington Heights contains a 45 foot height restriction for areas zoned institutional, which is the
applicable category for the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. One part of the Project may exceed
45 feet in height (by approximately one foot), so the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. is
currently in the process of seeking an amendment to the PUD and a variance under the zoning
ordinance related to the building height of the proposed expanded portion of the Olson Pavilion
with the Village of Arlington Heights. The existing Olson Pavilion and other buildings on the
Lutheran Home campus were constructed prior to the 40 foot requirement, and actually exceed
40 fect. In addition, the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. will seek a variance to a zoning
ordinance limit on the height of fences to 5 feet to accommodate a seven foot high fence.

ATTACHMENT 28
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«ELutheran Home

A Lutheran Life Community

March 6, 2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2°¢ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application — Assurances

Dear Ms. Avery,

In compliance with section 1125.640 of the Review Board Rules, Lutheran Home for the Aged,
Inc., as operator of the Project, hereby attests that, to our understanding, by the second year of
operation after the completion of the Project, Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. will achieve and
maintain the occupancy standards for the general long term care category of service specified in
section 1125.210(c) of the Review Board Rules.

Sincerely,

LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

SR

Roger W. Paulsberg, Chair

Notarization:
Subscribed and swoimn to before me

this _) day of A, 2012

SON
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF JLuols |
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 032115 §

Seal O AAMAANAAARAAARAAAAA

S S o
- - /j_:} g -—-*"T-:w
oo Vibrant, , grace: ﬁ[led lzvmgw' i
across all gmemrzons

iy

800 West Oakton Street - Arlington Heights, IL 60004

_.-;" .

(847) 368-7400 - fax (847} 368-7412
wwishehsranFonee.org ATTACHMENT 28
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
CRITERION 1125.650

MODERNIZATION

The Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. proposes to modernize the Olson Pavilion due to
the following factors, which are described in greater detail below: (1) to meet current regulatory
codes; (2) to repair and replace systems that have reached the end of their useful life; (3) to
adjust for changes in the standard of care; and (4) to add additional space necessary for physical

therapy purposcs.

(1)  Compliance with Current Regulatory Requirements

Effective as of August 13, 2013, all long term care facilities that receive any type
of Medicare/Medicaid funding are required to be compliant with Federal Register
mandate 42 C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8), which requires that such facilitics be equipped with
sprinkler systems. The Olson Pavilion does not currently have a sprinkler system, As
part of the project, the Olson Pavilion will be fully equipped with sprinkler systems
meeting the requirements set forth in 42 C.F.R. §483.70(a)(8).

(2)  Repair and Replace Systems

The Olson Pavilion was originally constructed in the 1970s. The Olson Pavilion
currently consists of 252 skilled nursing beds. Duc to the age of the building and its
systems, the Olson Pavilion is in need of substantial upgrades and medernization. In
2009, the Lutheran Home engaged Reserve Advisors to do a study of its facility and to
document specific problems and conditions, along with providing an analysis of the
reserves available for such issues. In its report, Reserve Advisors identified 234 major
common elements that are likely to require capital repair or replacement by the Lutheran
Home. The following sets forth a description of the major items identified by Reserve
Advisors as being in need of repair and replacement with respect to the Olson Pavilion:

. The water piping in the Olson Pavilion is approximately 40 years old and
is in poor condition. There is significant interior and exterior rust on the
piping system and the piping system has a reduced water flow.
Accordingly, the water piping system neceds to be completely replaced.

. The Lutheran Home’s fire suppressant systern requires an upgrade. In
addition, the Lutheran Home is not currently equipped with hard wired
smoke detectors. As part of the project, hard wired smoke detectors will
be installed, the fire suppressant system will be upgraded and the
emergency call system will be completely upgraded.

J The Lutheran Home maintains a flat roof at the Olson Pavilion. This stone
ballasted roof systcm makes it very difficult for the Lutheran Home to
determine the origin of leaks in the roof, which makes replacement of the
roof a more economical option than continuously repairing the roof.

1707516200377 135 ATTACHMENT 28
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Accordingly, as part of the project, the entire roof of the Olson Pavilion
will be replaced.

. The Lutheran Home maintains approximately 10,700 square feet of
aluminum and vinyl frame windows at the Olson Pavilion, which date
back to the 1970s. Aluminum frame windows have a useful life of up to
35 years and vinyl frame windows have a useful life of up to 45 years.
These windows are not energy efficient and have outlived or are close to
outliving their useful lives. Accordingly, as part of the project the
windows in the Olson Pavilion will be replaced with new energy efficient
windows.

. The HVAC system at Olson is near the end of its useful life. There are
valves in the HVAC system that do not function properly, which prevents
management from closing off certain sections. This makes it difficult to
appropriately regulate the temperature of the Olson Pavilion, which can
have an impact on patient care. Accordingly, the HVAC system in the
Olson Pavilion will be entirely replaced as part of the project.

» Changes in Standards of Care

When the Olson Pavilion was constructed in the 1970s, the design was based on a
medical model, which is focused purely on the delivery of health care in an institutional
setting. Today, health care is more focused on person-centered care models, which create
a home-like setting in which individuals receive their health care. As part of the project,
the renovated Olson Pavilion will organize residents into person centered households,
which includes new living, dining and social spaces in order to create a home-like setting.
Please see the attached article regarding person-centered care for nursing home residents.

At the completion of the project, cach resident in the existing Olson Pavilion will have a
private bath that includes an ADA accessible shower, Each resident room in the new
addition attached to the Olson Pavilion will also have a private bath that includes an
ADA accessible shower. The current Olson Pavilion only has a communal bathing area,
which is shared by all of the residents, and two rooms currently share a common
bathroom with a toilet and sink. The private bathrooms in the completed project will
increase the quality of care provided at the Lutheran Home, by allowing the Lutheran
Home to more cffectively control infections, such as MRSA and the flu, which will
improve patient outcomes and reduce the number of readmissions to hospitals.

(4)  Additional Space for Physical Therapy

The new addition will be connected to the existing Olson Pavilion with a single
story addition to accommodate expanded wellness and therapy services for residents of
the Lutheran Home. When the Lutheran Home's existing therapy center was built in the
1970s, the Lutheran Home was providing therapy services to approximately 25 residents
per day. Today, the Lutheran Home provides physical therapy services to approximately
75 residents per day. The existing therapy center is antiquated and does not have
sufficient square footage to meet the needs of the Lutheran Home’s residents or the
regulatory requirements for physical therapy facilities. The project will permit the

-72-
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Lutheran Home to improve the quality of physical therapy provided to its residents’ and
also to expand its wellness programs.

Documentation
Please see the following attached documentation:
€3] IDPH/CMMS inspection reports from medicare.gov;

(2)  Copies of invoices regarding service and repairs for the HVAC and plumbing
systems at the Olson Pavilion; and

3) Copies of relevant sections of the Reserve Report documenting various
deficiencies in the facility’s physical plant.

Please note that the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. does not have any reports from accrediting
agencies,

Occupancy Standards

Lutheran Home for the Aged will meet or exceed occupancy standards for the general long term
care category of service by the second year of operation after completion of the Project.

-3.
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Medicare.gov - Nursing Home Compare - Previous Health Inspection Results

r vio

Previous Health Inspection Results
Below 15 a side-by-slde comparison of the total number of deficlencles found during the Tast 3 inspections and
those found during complaint investipations for this nursing home. The Information Is presented by category type.
Detalled informatlon about the deficlencles, Including the leve! of harm and residents affected, Is available by
either scroliing down the page or clicking an the date at the top of the chart.

Page I of 4

Total Number of Deficiencies Found During the Last 3 Inspections and from
Complaint Investigations by Category

LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED

As of 01/13/2011

800 WEST OAKTON STREET
ARLINGTON HTS, IL 60004

(847) 253-3710
Mapping & Directions

Survey Date; Survey Date: 02/25/2010 | Survey Date: 01/28/2009
Deticency Categary | o0 | o e | e e ans-
11/30/2011 08/31/4010 08/31/2009

Mistreatment 0 o] 0

Quality Care 0 2 o

Residont Assessment ] 0 0

Resldent Rights 0 0 0

Nutritlon and Dietary 1 1 0
Pharmacy Service 1 1 o
Environmantal 2 2 1.
Administration ] 0 i
Reportad Between 0 0 0
Inspections

Detailed Results for Inspection on 01/13/2011 and Complaint Reporting Period of
09/01/2010 through 11/30/2011

—

Date of last standard health Inspection:

Quality Indicator Survey

Dates of Complaint Investigations:

No

01/13/20¢t1 )

09/01/2010 - 11/30/2011

Total number of Health Deficiencies for this nursing home: 4
Average number of Health Dellclencles In llinois! B
Average number of Health Deficlencles In the Unlted States: 8
Range of Health Deficiencles in Illingls: 0-45
How to Read a Health / Fire Safety Deflclency Chart
ATTACHMENT 28
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Medicare.gov - Nursing Home Compare - Previous Health Inspection Results

Nutrition and Dietary Deficiencies

Page 2 of 4

Resldents Affected

Inspectors determined that the | Inspection Pate of Level of Harm
nursing home failed to: Date Correction (Least - (Few -> Some -
> Most} > Many)
1. Store, cook, and give out food 01/13/2011 | 02/23/2011 |2 = Minimal harm Many
in a safe and clean way, or potential for
actual harm
Pharmacy Service Deficiencies
Inspactors determined that the | Inspection Date of Lavel of Harm Residents Affected
nursing home failed to: Date Correction (Least - (Few -> Some -
> Most) > Many)
2. Properly mark drugs and other 01/13/2011 | 02/23/2011 |2 = Minimal karm Some
simitar products, or potential for
a¢tual harm
Environmental Deficiencies
Inspectors determinad that the | Inspection Date of Level of Harm Residents Affected
aursing home falled to: Date Correction (tLenst - (Few -> Some -
> Most) > Many}
3. Mave a program to keep 01/13/2011 | 02/23/2011 |2 = Minimal harin Few
Infectlon from spreading, or potential for
actual harm
1] ]3]]
4, Make sure that the nursing | 01/13/2011 | 02/23/2011 (2 = Minimal harm Some
home area Is free of dangers that or potential for
cause accldents, gctual harm
nan

Detailed Results for Inspection on 02/25/2010 and Complaint Reporting Perlod of
09/01/2009 through 08/31/2010

/"“M-\

Date of last standard health Inspection:

Quality Indicator Sorvey
Dates of Complaint Investigations:

Total number of Heaith Deficiencles fer this nursing home:

Average number of Health Deficlenc)

es In Ilinols:

Average number of Health Deficlencies In the United States:

Ttbems Jhamirr meadinnea nnuﬁﬁTTJr‘nmm-afc'nnfnﬂafrlnfr:nanannﬁhrnnni:nnnfnmv rirvichoaolthincms

No

6
8
8

09/01/2009 - 08/31/2010

ATTACHMENT 28
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Medicare.gov - Nursing Home Compare - Previous Health Inspection Resuits

Range of Health Deficiencies in Illnois: 0-45"

How to Read a Health / Fire Safety Deflclency Chart

Page 3 of 4

Quality Care Deficiencies

Inspectors detarmined that the | Inspection Date of Level of Harm Residents Affected
nursing home failed to: Data Correction (Least - (Few -> Some -
> Most) > Many)
1. Give professional services that G2/25/2010 | D3/05/2010 (2 = Minimal harm Some
meet a professional standard of or potentlal for
quallty. actual harm
[1]2]3]4]
2. Make sure that each resident's 02/25/2010 | 03/05/2010 |2 = Minimal harm Few

nutritional needs were met,

or patential for
actual harm

gaaan

Nutrition and Dietary Deflciencles

Residents Affectod

Inspectors determined that the | Inspection Date of Level of Harm

nursing home failed to: Date Correctlon (Least - (Few -> Soma -
> Most) > Many)

3. 1) Provide 3 meals dally at 02/25/2010 | 03/05/2010 |2 = Minimal harm Few

reguiar times; or 2) serve or potentlal for

breakfast within 14 hours after actual harm

dinner; or 3) offer a snack at ’

bedtime each day. II l'.l

Pharmacy Service Deficlencles

Inspectors determined that the | Inspection | Date of Level of Harm Residents Affected

nursing home falled to: Date Correction (Least - (Few -> Some =
> Most) > Many}

4, Keep the rate of medlcation 02/25/2010 | 03/05/2010 (2 = Minimal harm Few

errors {wrong drug, wrong dose,
wrong time) to less than 5%,

or potential for
actual harm

Environmental Deficiencies

Residents Affected

Inspectors determined that the | Inspection Date of Level of Harm
nurging home falled to: Date Corraction (Least - (Few -> Some -

> Most) > Many)
S. Make sure that the nursing 02/03/2010 | 03/05/2010 |3 = Actual harm Few
haome area Is free of dangers that .
cause accidents, ll
6. Make sure that the nursing 02/25/2010 | 03/05/2010 |2 = Minimal harm Some
home area Is frea of dangers that or potential for
cause accidents. actual harm
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Medicare.gov - Nursing Home Compare - Previous Health Inspection Resulis

Page 4 of 4

Detailed Results for Inspection on 01/28/2009 and Complaint Reporting Period of

09/01/2008 through 08/31/2009

.

Date of last standard health Inspection;

Quality Indicator Survey
Dates of Complaint Investigations:

Total number of Health Deficiencles for this nursing home:

Average number of Health Deficlencles In Iliinols:

Average number of Health Deficlencies In the United States:

Range of Health Deficlencies in IHinols:
How to Read a Health / Flre Safety Defidency Chart

-

|8

01/28/2009 )

No
09/01/2008 - 08/31/2009
2

8
0-45

Environmental Deflciencies

Inspectors determined that the | Inspection Date of Level of Harm Residents Affected
nursing home failed to: Date Correction (Least - (Few -> Same -
> Most) > Many)
1. Have a program to keep 01/28/2009 | 03/06/2009 |2 = Minimal harm Few
Infection from spreading. or potentlal for
actual harm
Administration Deflciencies
Inspectors determined that the | Inspection Date of Level of Harm Residents Affected
nursing home fallaed to: Date Correction {Least - (Few -> Soma -
> Most} > Many)
2. Make sure that nurse aides 01/28/2009 | 03/06/2009 (2 = Minimal harm Few
show they have the skills to be or potential for
able ta care for resldents. actual harm

Data Last Updated: January 4, 2012

Tatbuns Hivmrerar vaadinave ana /AT ananavn f;nn]nr’lnfr‘a\qgggpﬁnn finenentinne/mrevianchealthinene
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HVAC SERVICE GROUP Inc.

_ PO Box8s7?
Bioomingdale, IL 80108
830-850-3600
FAX 830-529-9B00 .
To: Jim Skoufes voice 847-368-7441
% Lutheran Home and Services fax 847-368-7303

From: Joe Lobraco
Date: 0172412042
Re:. ltemized Contracted Service Totals for the Olson Wing at the Lutheran Home,

Mr. Skoufes:

As per your request, we prepared an approximate cost breakdown of the Contracted
Services that we have completed in or related to the Olson Wing at your facility. We
have broken down this list to the new construction items and the repairs. These are

the results:
NEW CONSTRUCTION RETROFIT/REPLACEMENT PROJECTS
YEAR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
2005 | Replace and retrofit two-80 ton chillers and pumps for the "A" wing Olson $128.,500.00
2006 | Replace and retrofit one 100 ton chilers and pumps for the “B” wing Olson $144,000.00
2009 | Refurn air blower replacement for RTU-42 . $ 15,900.00
2011 | New Steamn boiler for the Kitchen ' . $108,700.00
2011 | New refrigeration compressor/icondensing units for the Kitchen $ 56,800.00
TOTALS FOR NEWCONSTRUCTION AND RETROFITS 2005-2011 $465.000.00
EMERGENCY AND REPAIR SERVICES
YEAR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
2005 | Refrigeration, RTU, Heating & Cooling Service, Hand rail repairs, efc. $ 530000
2008 | Refrigeration, RTU, Heating & Cooling Service, Valgnce (eaks, plumbing
leaks, fan coil replacement, kiichen ventllation service, stc, 3 9.300.00
2007 | Plumbing repairs hot water mixing valve & system, refrigeration, RTU,
Heating & Cooling service, exhaust fan repairs, ete. frash chute repairs $ 18,800.00
2008 | Piumbing repairs hot water, refrigeration, RTU, Heating & Cooling service
pnaumatic control repairs for valence syslem, etc. trash chute repairs $ 21,700.00
2009 | Plumbing repairs hot water, refrigeration, RTU, Heating & Cooling service
_pneumatic control repairs for valence system, etc. trash chute repalrs $ 24900.00
2010 | Plumbing repairs hot water, refrigeration, RTU, Heating & Cogling service
pneumatic control repairs for vatence system, chilled water riser {eak $ 26,300.00
2011 | Rafrigeration repalrs on evaperator coils, heating system leak repairs,
RTU and heating cooling service. Air compressor and syslem service _$ 28,800.00
TOTALS FOR EMG. SERVICE AND REPAIRS 2005-2011 $1356,000.00
If you have any questions, feel free to call.
Best Regards,
Joe Lobraco
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BUILDING

RESTORATI!ON CONTRACTORS

ILLINDIS: P.O. BOX 86 + ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60006-0086 1 TOLL FREE +8B8-3HOLT

April 18, 2005

Proposal Submitted To: Project Site:
Lutheran Home & Services Pavilion
800 West Oakton Street

Arlington Heights, IL 60004

Atn:  Mr. Jim Skoufes
Director, Ptant Operations and Security

We hereby propose to furnish, labor, materials, equipment and insurance complete in
accordance with the following specifications.

EXTERIOR RESTORATION

The north, south and west exterior elevat:ons as inspected with Jim on 4-6-05, from roof
coping to grade, to include the courtyard walls, nosth and south elevations of the cuter
wing of the northwest corner and entrance canopy on the south, have been thoroughly
inspected by this contractor, It is our opinion that the proper procedure for repair should
be as outlined in the following specifications.

TUCKPOINTING OF BRICK MASONRY

All exterior face brick masonry shall be inspected and tested for soundness. Mortar joints
which are visibly loose or eroded from adjoining brick masonry shall be cut out with a
power-driven abrasive wheel to a minimum depth of three-quarter inch (3/4”) and as
much more as conditions require. After cleaning and flushing with water or compressed
air, joints which have been cut out and all voids in mortar shall be filled with special
tuckpointing mortar and finished off with a tooled surface to match adjoining areas as
closely as possible. Completed work shall be wet down to ‘insure proper curing of the
mortar, NOTE: Hairline cracks in mottar shall not be deemed defective and are not

included in the quote.

STRUCTURAL CRACK REPAIRS

The two (2) large structural cracks in brick on the southwest corner shall have retro-tie
anchors installed on both sides of crack prior to cracked brick removal. After ties are
installed, all cracked brick shall be removed and replaced with brick to match.
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ANCHORING OF LIMESTONE VENEER CORNERS

All limestone outside corner panels (7) shall have eight (8) 5/8" holes driiled equally
spaced apart into the limestone and approximately one inch {1} into back up masonry.
Brass anchors manufactured by Dur-a-Wall shail be installed into holes and tightened
firmly securing limestone, ALL CORNER STONES ON ELEVATIONS OF
BUILDING SHALL HAVE 10" BRASS ANCHORS INSTALLED ON EVERY STONE
ON CORNERS DUE TO FEAR THAT BACK-UP VENEER MAY HAVE EXCESS

MOISTURE DAMAGE

ANCHORING OF LIMESTONE VENEER PANELS

Al) thirty (30) limestone panels above the windows on the north and south elevations of
the outer wing on the northwest comer shall have eight {8} 5/8” holes drilled equally
spaced apart into the limestone and approximately oné inch (1) into the back up
masonry. Brass anchors manufactured by Dur-a-Wall shall be installed into holes and

tightened firmly securing limestone.

EXTERIOR CAULKING OF ALL ALUMINUM FRAME WINDOW OPENINGS

Exterior perimeter of all aluminum frame window openings abutting brick and limestone
masonry where previously caulked shall have all present caulking removed in order to
attain a sound base. Joints shall then be sealed with a one part urethane sealant. This will
be applied directly from a pressure type gun, sealing the joints completely,

EXTERIOR CAULKING

All exterior movement and structural cracks in brick masonry, located on the north, south
and west elevations shall have these areas routed out one-quarter inch {1/4") in order to
attain a neat and uniform appearance. Joints shall then be sealed with a one part urethane
sealant. This will be applied directly from a pressure type gun, sealing the joints

completely.

RESEALING OF HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAIL CONTROL JOINTS

Horizontal and vertical control joints in brick and limestone masonry shall have present
seajants removed. After inspection of current backer system, these areas shall be resealed
with a one part urethane seaiant. Joints shall then be dusted with a fine grade lake sand

so as to attain the appearance of mortar,

CAULKING OF HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL JOINTS IN LIMESTONE

Herizontal and vertical joints in limestone masonry shall be routed out one-quarter inch
(1/4"). After proper preparation, these areas shall be sealed with a one part urethane
sealant. Joints shall then be dusted with a fine grade lake sand so as to attain the

appearance of mortar,
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WATERBLASTING OF LIMESTONE MASONRY

Limestone masonry located on the courtyard walls shall be water-blasted with high
pressure (2500 PSI) water so as to remove dirt, discolorations and carbon deposits as best

as possible,

EXTERIOR CAULKING IN THE FOLLOWING AREAS

1) All vertical and horizontal (outside) joints in limestone copings
NOTE: All existing sealants shalf be removed prior to sealant application

The above mentioned areas shall be sealed with Tremco Dymonic, a one part urethane
sealant.

Sealant shall be white or colored as required 1o match existing‘ work.

Joint backing where necessary shall be close-cell, non-scain.ing polyethylene in round or
square shapes, such as ethafoam joint backing. Joint backing shall be compatible with

sealants used,

PREPARATION OF JOINTS

Building joints shall be examined prior to application and any conditions detrimental to
achieving a positive weather-tight seal shall be remedied.

All openings, joints or channels to be sealed shall be thoroughly clean, dry and free from
dust, oil, grease or any other foreign matter.

Where joints are deeper than 1/2”, polyethylene joint backing shall be used and packed
into the joint at within 1/2" of the surface. A size shall be selected so as to allow for a
minimum of 30% compression of the backing when inserted into the joint. Where joints
are 3/4" wide, the backing shall be placed so the depth of the joint to receive the sealants

does not exceed 1/4”,

ATTACHMENT 28

000109



APPLICATION OF SEALANTS

Sealants shall be gun applied through a nozzle of such diameter so the full bead of
sealant is gunned into the joint, filling the joint completely.

All beads shall be tooled immediately after application to insure firm, full contact with
the inner faces of the joints. Excess material shall be struck off with a tooling stick or

knife.

The finished bead shall be flush with the surfaces or as otherwise indicated. Caulking
shall be outlined with masking tape so as to obtain a neat and uniform appearance.
Movement and structural cracks which are caulked shall be dusted with a fine grade lake

sand so as to attain the appearance as ¢losely as possible of mortar.

COST BREAKDOWN

A, North Elcvation $ 13,975.00
B South Elevation to include the Entrance Canopy $ 15,720,060
C. East Elevation $ 11,940.00
D West Elevation $16,960.00
E North & South Elevations of the cuter wing on the
Northwest corner $10,980.00
F. South and East Elevations in the Courtyard
1. Masonry Repairs $ 16,940.00
2, Clean Limestone % 6,935.00
G. North and West Elevations in the Courtyard
1. Masconry repairs $16,765.00
2. Clean Limestone $ 6,815.00
H. Seven (7) Corners for anchoring $ 11,865.00
L. Repair Two (2) Cracks on Southwest Corner $ 2,945.00

T 13350
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Holton Brothers Affirmative Action Policy

Holion Brothers, Inc. does not discriminate in any manner contrary 10 law or justice on the basis of race, color, sex,
gge. handicap, veterans status, religious belief or nationat origin in its employment, hiring and retention practices. At
the same time, Holtor Brothers. Inc. cherishes its right and duty to seek and retain qualified, skilled eraftsprople tha
will muke a positive contribution 1o its character, goals and mission,

Workmanship

All work shall be in strict accordance with manufacturer's technical data specifications for type of materials, No
materia! wilt be used without reading and complying with manufacturer’s recommendations, All work shall be by
skilled workmen having not less than three years experience. All materials shall conform to FS standards. When
materials are available in various colors, color shall match adjacent surfeces as closely as possible. Cuntractor shult

supply all necessory barricades and covering as above stated work progresses.

Insurance
The contractor shall pay workmen's compensation, employer’s liability and motor vehicle lizbility insurence. and

pravide certificate of insurance stating such.

Cleaning Up Premises

Premises shall be left in a clean and orderly candition consistent to that which existed prior to intliation of job, We
appreciate this opportunity to guote you. If we are favored with your organization, we will do our best to insure your
complele satisfaction,

AS REQUIRED BY THE WISCONSIN CONSTRUCTION LIEN LAW, BUILDER HEREBY NOTIFIES OWNER THAT
PERSONS OR COMPANIES FURNISHING LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION ON QWNER'S LAND
MAY HAVE LIEN RIGHTS ON OWNER'S LAND AND BUILDINGS IF NOT PAID. THOSE ENTITLED TO LIEN RIGHTS.
IN ADDITION TO THE UNDERSIGNED BUILDER, ARE THOSE WHCQ GIVE THE OWNER NOTICE WITHIN 60 DAYS
AFTER THEY FIRST FURNISH LABOR OR MATERIALS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, AND SHOULD GIVE A COPY OF
EACH NOTICE RECEIVED TO HIS MORTGAGE LENDER, IF ANY BUILDERS AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH THE
OWNER AND HIS LENDER, [F ANY, TO SEE THAT ALL POTENTIAL CLAIMANTS ARE DULY PAID,

If accepied, please sign and return one copy. Thank you.

WE PROPOSE hereby to furnish material and jabor - complete in accordance with sbave specifications. for the sum af:

SEE COST BREAKDOWN

FAYMENT TO BE MADE WITHIN 30 DAYS OF COMPLETION OF WORK - Or a 1 1/2% Service Charge

per month for any past due amount along with all atterney fees involved with collection,

Al materia) is guarenteed to he as specified. All work o be completed in a workmanlike manner according fo standard praciices. Aay heations or
deviation from abave specifications invalving exirs costs will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an exirs chargye pver and sbove the
estimate. All ogreements contingen? upon strikes, accidents or delay beyond ovr contrel. Dwmer ta carry fire, tlomado end mher necessary insurance. Our

workers are fully covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance.

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL The sbove prices, specifications and conditions are satisfzccory and ore hereby accepeed. You are ausherized ta da
the work 35 specified; payment will be made as ocutlined above,

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

M\J\:\ va

JOHN HOLTON, VICE-PRESIDENT
HGLTON BROTHERS, INC.
NOQTE: This propose! moy be withdrawn by us if not acecpted within 30 {thirty} duys

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE/DATE
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OLSON 8SUILDING PLUMBING REPAIRS

Year Description Amount
Replace sectlons of rotted water pipes rodding for
2011 main sewer back up into building § 4,364
Replace sections of rotted water pipes rodding for
2010 main sewer back up into building $ 5,083
Replace sections of rotted water pipes rodding for
2009 main sewer back up into building s 7,092
Repiace sections of rotted water pipes rodding for
2008 main sewer back up into building S 1,281
Replace sections of rotted water pipes rodding for
2007 main sewer back up into building $ 5,077
Replace sections of rotted water pipes and sewer
2006 rodding for main sewer back up into building $ 9,875
Replace sections of rotted water pipes rodding for
200% main sewer back up into building S 2,674
$ 35,446
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involes #
12312011 20111763
8l To Job Locatlon
LUTHERAN HOME & SBRVICES 800 W QAKTON
VIA EMAILL TO: AH .
luthernnlife@easyaccassap.com CALL JOHN ON WAY
PO BOX 4276 347-312-1119
SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276
r P.O. No. Terms Dus Date " Rop Sarvice Dale Project
VERBAL-JOHN. | Duoonreceipt | 12372011 DR 127212011
Dascription Qty Rata Amount
4" CAST LRON SANITARY LINE LEAK:
STORAGE ROOM, EMPLOYBE ENTRANCE DOCK - REPLACED ROTTED 4" CAST
IRON PIPE AND PITTINGS WITH CAST IRON NO HUB,
SERVICE CALL 08.00 98.00
MATEBRIAL 208.00 208.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 5 148.00 . 740.00
Total $1,046.00
Balance Due - §1,046.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAYL INDUSTRIES

610 S. ARTHUR AVENURE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005

Invoice

Dele

Involce #

i 1/14/2011

20110645

8l To

Job Locallen

LUTHERAN HOME & SBRVICES
VIA BMAIL T0O;
lutheranlife@easynccessap.onm

PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

800 W OAKTON
AH
847/253-3710

P.Q. No, Torms Due Date

Rep

Sarvica Dale

Project

VEBRBAL Dug on recei)f 117142011

M35

11/5/2011

Dascripitan

Qty

Rata

Amount

LOWER LEVEL LEAK ON COLD WATER FIPE:

114711 - FOUND LEAK ON 2" COPPER WATER PIPING IN STORAGE ROOM #L.
114411 - INSTALLED NEW SECTIONS OF 2" COPPER PIPING, FITTINGS AND 2°

COPPER BALL VALVE ON COLD WATER LINE IN MIDDLE OF ROOM
ENTRANCE. CHECKED FOR LEAKS ON NEW CONNECTIONS - DKAY,

SBRVICE CALL
MATBRIAL
HOURLY RATETFGR PLUMBRR

7.5

98.00
3§9.00
148.00

98.00
319,00
[,if0.00

Total

$1,527.00

000115

Balance Dixa

50.00
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involce #
' 8372011 20111159
Bll To Job Logallon

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES 800 W OAKTON

VIA BMAIL TO: AH

lutheranlife@ensyaccessap.com SEL CASEY OR JIM

POBOX 4276 . 847/253.3710

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.0O. No. Terms Due Date Rep Sarvice Dala Project
VERBAL Due on receipt 8972011 MS 8/5/201t
Description Qty Rote Amount
REVIEW WORK REQUINED TC REPAIR 2" HOT WATER LINE LEAKING IN
KITCHEN:
UNWRAPPED HOT WATER PIPING IN KITCHEN CEILING ARBA NEAR BACK
ENTRANCE AND FOUND 3 CLAMPS ALREADY ON 2" GALVANIZED WASTE
LINB, TNSTALLED CLAMP PROVIDED BY CASEY TO STOP LEAK UNTIL
PERMANENT REPAIRS ARE MADE. TOOK MATERIAL LIST SO WE CAN
PROVIDE BSTIMATE AND SCHEDULE REPAIRS,
SERVICE CALL 98.00 98.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 1.25 148.00 185,00
Total £283.00
Balance Dus $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES
610 8, ARTHUR AVENUE

Invoice

000117

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, 1L 60005 Date Involes #
2102011 20011009
Bl To Jab Locatlon

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES 800 W QOAKTON

VIA EMAIL TO: AH

lutheranlife@easyococssnp.com SEE CASEY

" | PO BOX 4276 847/253-3710

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-427§

P.O. No. Terms Duse Date Rep Setvice Dale Profact

VERBAL Due on receipt 7212011 DIH 22011

Descripllon Qly Rate Amount
2" COFPER L.INE WITH VALVE LEAKING:
DOMBSTIC HOT WATER FEED MECHANICAL ROOM OFF OF GARAGE, HAD TQ
REMOVE HANDLE ON BALL VALVE AND MANUALLY TURN VALVE STEM A
LITTLE TO SHUT QFF, REMQVED SECTION OF PIPE FROM BALL VALVE.
"ROUND BAD SWEAT JOINT. ALSO SEAT OF BALL YALVE ]S DETERIORATING.,
LEBFT BALL VALVE [N, REPLACED SECTION OF PIPE AND ADDED UNION,
TBSTED-0K.
SERVICE CALL 98.00 98,00
MATERIAL 1760 117.60
HOURLY RATE FOR FLUMBER 3 148,00 444,00
Total $659.60
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28




DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Qale involce #
613072011 20110930
Bl To Job Lacation

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES 800 W OAKTON

VIA BMAIL TO: AH

luiherantifeBensynctcssap.com SBE CASEY

PO BOX 4276 847/253.3710

SOUTH BEND, IN 46534-4276

P.QO. No. Torms Bue Dala Rep Service Dale Projact
VERBAL Dup on receipt 63072011 MS 6/29/2011
Dascription Qty Rate Amount
MAIN KITCHEN DRAIN CLOGGED: RODDED MAIN KITCHEN DRAIN LINE ’
PROM 6* OUTSIDE CLBANQUT ON WEST SIDE OF BUILDING BACK INTO
KITCHEN 180' USING 4" AND THEN 6" CUTTER. HAD AVERY HARD TIME
GETTING ROD CUTTERS THROUGH SEWER DUE TO YERY HEAVYY BUILDLIP OF
GREASE AND OTHER DEBRI, ALSO PULLED BACK LARGE QUANTITY OF
SANITARY NAPKINS, WIPES AND OTHER PAPER GOODS, RAN WATER TO
CHECK POR PROPER WATER FLOW THROUGH CLEANOUT-QOK AT THIS TIME.
NOTE: SEWER IS ROTTED AWAY IN DIFFERENT AREAS IN KITCHEN. FLOOR
15 OPEN AND SEWER IS TO BE REPLACED UNDER CONTRACT, CLEANOUT IN
KITCHEN ABOUT 40' BACK FROM OUTSIDE CLEANOUT 1S HOLDING WATER
SLIGHTLY, COULD BE THAT LINE MAYDE BACKPITCHED, IF ANY FURTHER
TROUBLES THEN LINE SHOULD BE IETTED.
SERVICE CALL 98.00 98.00
ROD CHARGE 85.00 85.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 4.5 148.00 666,00
Total $849.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date tnvolce #
1172222010 20101340
Bl To Job Locatlon
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
VIABMAIL TO: SEE CASEY
lutheranlife@easyaccestap.com 847/253-3710
PO BOX 4276
SOUTH BEND, IV 466344276
P.O. No. Tarms Due Date Rep Service Dale Project
VERBAL Dae on receipt 1122210 MS F1/19/2016
Description Qy Rata Amount
REPAIR LEAK IN WALL:
HAD TO OPEN UP BLOCK WALL MORE THAN WHAT WAS ALREADY QPENED
TO REMOVE BAD SECTION OF 2¥ PVC PIPING AND RITTINGS FOR DISFQSAL
DRATN LINE. INSTALLED NEW SECTION OF 2" PYC PIPING AND FITTINGS.
TISTED FOR LEAKS ON NEW CONNECTIONS - OKAY. ANY FURTHER
TROUDBLES, THEN PROBLEM WQULD HAVE TO BB CHECKED FURTHER.
NOTE: SUGGEST WALL BE LEFT OPEN FOR A COUPLE OP WEEKS 50 WATER
BETWEBEN WALLS CAN HAVE A CHANCE TO DRY QUT.
SERVICE CALL 95.00 $5.00
MATERIAL 79.00 79.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMDER 144.00 288.00
' Total $462.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES
610 S, ARTHUR AVENUE

Invoice

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Irvolco #
111472010 20101270
Bill To Job Locallon

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA BMAIL TO: . SEE CASDY

lutkerantilc@casyrccossap.com 847/253-310

POTOX 4276

SQUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.C. No, Tarms Due Date Rep Sarvice Dalo Project
YERBAL Due an receipt 114472010 MS 114372040
Descriplion Qly Rats Amount
TELEVISE DOWN WALL FOR LEAKING DRAIN Ot VENT LINE:
TELEVISED PLUMBING WALL TN KITCHEN ARBA - POUND STAGNANT WATBER
SITTING BETWEEN WALLS, RAN LOTS OF WATER TO CHECK FOR LEAKS IN
DRAIN LIN2 IN WALL, COULDNOTFIND ANY LBAKS AT THIS TIME. DID FIND
WATER POOLING UP ON OUTSIDE WALLS - FOUND CLEANCUT IN FLOOR BY
GARBAGE DISPOSAL WITH POOQL OF GREASY WATER ON TOP OF COVER,
REMOVED COVER AND CHECKED DRAIN FOR PROPER DRAINAGE - OKAY AT
THIS TIME, BELIEVE WATER 18 SEEPTNG BETWEEN WALLS FROM SEAMS
ABOVE PLOOR AND GOING BETWEEN WALLS. SUQJGEST FLOOR TO BE DRIED
AND WATER PROOF SILICONE USED TO SEAL SEAMS AT FLODR LEVEL, ANY
FURTHER TROURLES, THEN BRICK WA{LL WOULD HAVE TO BE OPENED TO
PURTHER INVESTIGATE PROBLEM,
SRRVICE CALL 95.00 95.00
RIDGID SEE SNAKE CAMERA BQUIPMENT 150,00 150.00
HQURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 225 144.00 324.00
Total £569.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S, ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date involco #
/3072010 20101108
Blll To Job Location

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA EMAIL TO: SEE CASEY

lutheranlife(@easyacecssap.comn 847/253-3710

PO BOX 4276

SOUTE BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.0. No. Terms Puas Date Rep Service Date Prajact
VERBAL Due on recoipt 9/30/2010 DIH 072012010
Dascriplion Qty Rate Amount
PIPE LEAKING IN WALL IN RESIDENT ROOM #127:
LOOSENED UNIONS (DIELECTRIC) FOR COIL. CLEANED PACES OF UNION
HALVES AND INSTALLED MAINTENANCE SUPPLTED GASKETS,
RETIGHTENED UNIONS (APPLIED THREAD COMPOUND TC THREADS FOR
BASE OF REMOVAL AND INSTALLATION). TURNED WATER ON AND BLED
QUT AIR, NOLEAKS AT THIS TIME,
SERVICE CALL 95.00 95,00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 144,00 288.00
Total $383.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 600035 Date Involce #
972112010 201010H
Bili To Job Locallon

LUTHERAN HOME & SBERVICES SAME

VIA BMAIL TO: HRARTHWOOD BUILDING

lutherenlife@ensyaccessap.com SER CASBEY

PO BOX 4276 . 847/253-3710

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.0. No. Terms Due Date Rep Servico Date Project
VERBAL Due on receipt 9/21/2010 DIH 9/20/2010
Dascrlplion Qity Rate Amount
BMERGENCY CALL - ROD KITCHEN LINE: ’
RODDED FROM DISHWASHER FLOOR DRAIN 50°, BLOCKAGE IN HORIZONTAL
RUN BETWEEN HAND WASH SINK/PREP-SINK AT ENTRANCE TO DINING
AREA. PLOOR DRAIN AT DOORWAY WAS NOT BACKED UP. RAN WATER TO
FLUSH OUT.
SBRVICE CALL 95.00 95.00
ROD CHARGE 45,00 45.00
OVERTIME HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 3 194,00 582.00
Total $722.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 8. ARTHUR AVYENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Oate involco #
¥E32010 20101048
Bil To FJub Location
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
. [VIA BMAILTO: HEARTHWOQOD BUILDING
Tutheren)lfe@easyaccessap.com #47/253-3710
PO BOX 4276
SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276
P.0, No, Terms Dus Date Rep Service Date Projasl
YERBAL-ED Due on receipt 9/t3/2010 MS 9/11/2010
‘ Desctiption Qly Rate Amount
EMERGENCY SERVICE CALL:
RODDED DOTH FLOOR DRAINS IN KITCHEN AREA NEAR DISHWASHER
SEVERAL TIMES TO CLEAR BLOCKAGES, RAN LOTS OF WATER TO FLUSH
DRAINS AND CHECK FOR PROPER DRAINAGE - OKAY, ANY FURTHER
TROUBLES, THEN PROBLEM WOULD HAVE TO BE CHECKBED FURTHER.
SERVICE CALL 95.00 95.00
ROD CHARGE 50.00 s0.00
QVERTIME HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 4 194,00 77600
Total $921.00
Balance Due $0.00 |
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S, ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Dato Invoice #
3312010 20100076
Bili To Job Location

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA EMAIL TO; COMMONS BUILDING

lutheranlife@casyoccessap.com 847/253-37110

PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.0. No. Terms Due Date Rep Service Dala Projact
VERBAL Due on receipt al2elo DJH 3726/2010
Qascrplion Qty Rale Amount
EMBRGENCY CALL - BAST KITCHEN:
RODDRD FROM FLOOR DRAIN NEAREST DOOR WAY TO DINING ARBA WITH 1
1/4" CUTTER AND 1 3/4" CUTTERS 45. BLOCKAGE AT (¥ AND (5
APPROXIMATELY, PULLED CABLE OUT, SEWER BACKED UP AGAIN,
RODDED AGAIN WITH [ 3/4* CUTTER, SEWER OPENED UP AT
APPROXTMATELY 30. RODDED IN AND QUT 45 THREE TIMES WITH WATER
RUNNING. THEN RODDED THREE OTHER PLOOR DRAINS, DISHWASHER,
PREP SINK, AND STEAMER DRAIN,
NOTE: STEAMER DRAIN HAS SOMETHING IN IT LARGE ENQUGH THAT 1 347
CUTTER WON'T PASS THROUQH. REPLACED BROKEN DRAIN GRATE FOR
STEAMER DRATN,
RECOMMENDATION - 4" CLEAN-QUT SHOULD BE INSTALLED IN LINE 80
THAT LARGER CUTTERS CAN BE USED TO CLEAR DRAIN AND TO PREVENT
DRAIN PROM ROTTING QUT,
SERVICE CALL 92,00 92.00
ROD CHARGE 50.00 50.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBRR 3 182.00 546,00
Total $638,00
Balance Duo $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involce #
2072010 20100121
Bill Yo Job Location

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA EMAIL TO: COMMONS BUILDING

Tutheranlife@earyscccssap.com B471253-3710

PO BOX 4276 ,

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.Q. No. Taerms Due Dale Rap Service Date Project
Dire on receipt 21272040 DIH 21200
Deseriplion Qly Rale Amount
KITCHEN DRAINS NEED TO BE RODDED - BACKING UP;
TRIED RODDING FROM CLEAN-OUT IN KITCHEN AND WATER STARTED
BACKING UP (DID NOT WANT TO FLOOD OUT CARPET). RODDED FROM
CLEAN-QUT IN SERVING AREA, NORTHWEST CORNER. RODDED 90' WITH 3*
FOUR BLADE CUTTER. DRAIN OPENED AT 75. OBSTRUCTIONS FROM 55' .75,
SERVICE CALL 92,00 £2.00
ROD CHARGE 85.00 85.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 3 139.00 417.00
Total $594.00
Balance Duse $0.00 j
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005

Invoice

Data

Invalco #

1/18/2010

20100051

Bill To

Jab Locatien

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

ViA EMAIL TO:
Intheranlife@ensyrccessap.com
PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-427¢

847253-3710

|

F £.0. No, Torms Due Data Rap

Service Date

Projact

Due on receipt 1/18/2010 DIH

t/16/2010

S

Description

Qty Rele

Amouht T

EMERGENCY CALL FROM ED WITH FACILITIES MAINTENANCE ON
SATURDAY, 1/16/2010 @ 7:45 AM - KITCHEN DRAINS BACKING UP:

RODDED DRAIN AT DOCK ENTRANCE FROM FLOOR DRAIN WEST SIDE TO
MAIN 40, BLOCKAQE AT 30", TESTED WITH WATER - OKAY, WASHBD DOWN
AREBA, CHRCKED MANHOLES OUTSIDE, PAMER GOODS ACCUMULATING
ACROSS STREET AT CITY MAIN.

NOTE: PULLED BACK CLOTH TYPE MATERIAL ON CABLE.

SERVICE CALL
ROD CHARGE
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER

92.00
85.00
3 139.00

92200
85.00
567,00

Total

$744.00

000126

Balance Due

5000

ATTACHMENT 28



DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUR
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involco #
' 12/31/2009 20091754
Bl To Job Location

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA EMAIL TO: SEB CASEY

lutheranlife@easyacoessap.com 8471253-3710

PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634.4276

P.0, Na. Terms Due Date Rep Sarvie Date Projact
Dus on recelpt 12/3172009 MRW 1212272009
Degocriplion Qty Rale Amount
HOT WATER LEAK IN STORAGB ROOM KITCHEN;
REPIPED AND REPLACBD LEAKING 3/4" GALVANIZED 90 ON HOT WATER
RETURN IN KITCHEN STORAGE ROOM CRILING.
SERVICE CALL 92.00 92.00
MATERIAL 41.50 41.50
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 139.00 417.00
Total $550.50
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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AHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES I nVOi ce

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 ‘ ~ Date Invoice #

1472009 20090610-7

Bl To Joh Lacatlon
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
VIA EMAIL TO: 847/253.3710
tutheranlife@easynceessap.com
PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 4663442756

P.0. No. Terms Dus Dele Rep Service Dals Profact
L Due on recelpt 57412000 auB /412009
Description Qty Rate Amount

LABOR AND MATERIAL PER ATTACHED PROPOSAL NO. LH-42909 DATED 6,387.00 6,387.00

04/29/60
Total $6,387.00
Balance Due $0.00

ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES
610S. ARTHUR AVENUE

Invoice

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involce #
2/512009 20090207
Bill To Jab Logatlon
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
YIA BEMAIL TO: 847/253-3710
luthcranlife@ensyaccossap.com
PO BOX 4276 .
SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276
£.0. No, Tarms Due Date Rep Service Date Project
Duconseceipt | 2152009 MRW 2/5/2009
Cescriptlon Qfy Rata Amount
HOT WATER LINE CLOGGED TAKE APART AND CLEAN - REYIEWED JOB WITH
CASEY, ADDITIONAL WALLS TO BE OPENED AND PIPING INSULATION NEBDS
TO BE IDENTIFIED FOR ASBESTOS
SERVICE CALL §5.00 89.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 0.5 132,00 66.00
Total $155.00
Balance Due $0.00 J
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involce #
12/12/2008 20082020-2
8iit To Job Location

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA BMAIL TO: 847/253-3710

Jutheranlife@easytecessap.com

PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, TN 46634-4276

P.O. No. Terms Due Data Rep Service Dele Profact
Due on receipt 12/12/2008 PJH 12/12£2008
Description Qly Rate ~ Amount
ROD MAIN SEWER FROM 6" CLEAN-OUT IN KITCHEN 120 FEET TO MANHOLE
IN WEST DRIVEWAY.
SERVICE CALL 89.00 £9.00
ROD CHARGE 85.00 35.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER i 132.00 264,00
Total $438.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE :
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Oate Involca #
10/15/2008 20081700-1
Bill To Job Locatlon
LUTHEBRAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
VIA BMAIL TO; ’ 84772533710
luthemnlifef@ensyncoessap.com
PO BOX 4276
SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276
P.0O. No. Terms Duo Dato ' Rop Service Date Project
Duo on recelpt 10/15/2008 MRW 1071572008
Dascription Qly Rate Amount
REPAIN 4% DRAIN AT MAIN ENTRANCH - REMOVED BROKEN 4 [NCH CAST
IRON 1/4" BEND AND REPLACED IN DRIVEWAY CONSTRUCTION AREA. HAD
TO BREAK CONCRETE TO MAKE WAY FOR REPAIRS,
REPLACED WITH NBW 1/4 BEND AND NG-SHEAR FERNCO CLAMP.
SERVICE CALL 89,00 89,00
MATEBRIAL 153.00 153.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 25 132.00 330.00
Total $572.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005

Invoice

Date tnvolca #

6/4/2008 20080889-5

000132

Blll To Job Locailon
LUTHERAN HOMET & SERVICES EMERGENCY CALL
VIA EMAIL TO: SAME ~
lutheranlife@ensynccessap.com 847/253-3110
PO BOX 4276
SQUTH BEND, IN 46634.4276
r P,0. No. Terms Due Date . Rep Service Date Project
Due on reccipt 67412008 DR /412008 .
Deaacription Qty Rala Amount
EMERQENCY CALL - 2" HOT WATER LEAKING - STOPPED AT SHOP AND
PICKBD UP CLAMPS MAINTENANCE STOPPED LEAK WHEN ) QOT THERE,
LOOXED AT REPAIRED PIPE, REVIEWED ADDITIONAL PIPING FOR FUTURE
REPLACEMENT.
SERVICE CALL 89.00 39.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER i 182.00 182.00
Total $271.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28




DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Dato Involce #
12/5/2007 20072127
Bili Te Job Locatfon

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA EMAIL TO: 847/253-37110

luthermliife@easyaccessap.com

PO BOX 4275

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634.4276

P.Q. No, Tarms Bue Date Rep Service Dale Project
Due on recclpt 12/5/2007 MRW 12/5/2007
Description Qly Rata Amount
ROD AND TELBVISE LINE - ATTEMPTED TO TELEVISE §" SANITARY SEWER
LINE IS FULL OF GREASE. TRIED TO ROD SEWER, QOT AT ABOUT 60 FERET
FROM MANHOLE ON EAST SIDE QF STREET. REMOVED ROD AND FOUND
LARGE AMOUNT OF PAPER TOWELS OR WIPES ON ROD, RODDED 3 MORE
TIMES, COULDN'T GET PAST 60 FEET WITH 4% CUTTER. REMOVED LARGE
AMOUNT OF PLASTIC BAGS ON ROD. SEWER NEEDS TO BE CLEARED WITH
LARGCE VACTOR EQUIPMBNT IN ORDER TO BE TELEVISED TO DETERMINE
SBWER CONDITION. .
SBRVICE CALL 85.00 85.00
ROD CHARGE 85.00 8500
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 4 [25.00 508.00
Total $670.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Dals Involce #
11/30/2007 200720872
Bill To Job Locetion

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAMA

YIA EMAIL TO: 847/253-3710

latherandife@ensyrocessap.com

PO BOX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 46614-4276

P.0. No. Taerms Due Date Rep Service Dats Projact
Due on recelpt 1173072007 MRW 117302607
Description Qty Rala Amount
BMERGENCY SERVICE - JETTED SANITARY MAIN PROM WEST SIDE OF
KENNICOTT TO MANHOLE ON EAST SIDE OF KENNICOTT. WAS ABLE TO GET
HOSB ALL THE WAY THROUGH THIS TIME, APPEARS SANITARY MAIN S
PARTIALLY COLLAPSED AT CBENTER OF KENNICOTT, RECOMMEND
EXCAVATING AND REPAIRING SANITARY MAIN TO AVOID FUTURE
PROBLEMS,
SERVICE CALL 85.00 85.00
EQUIPMENT - SPARTAN JETTER 325.00 325,00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 125.00 250.00
Total $660.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES
610 S, ARTHUR AVENUE

Invoice

000135

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date lavolca #
11/24/2007 20072045-5
Bl To Job Lecatlon
LUTHERAN HOME 8§ SERVICES EMEROENCY CALL
VIA EMATL TO: SAME
Iutheranlifo@easysccessap,.com 8471253-3710
PO BOX 4276
SOUTH BEND, TN 46634.4276
P.0. No, Tarma Dug Date Rep Service Date Project
Dug on receipt 11/2472607 MRWY 11/24/2007
. Description Qty Rate Amount
JBT SANITARY MAIN FROM MANHOLE ON EAST SIDE OF KENNICOTT TOQ CITY
MAIN ON WEST SIDE OF STRBET. THERE IS AN OBSTRUCTION IN THE MIDDLE
OF THE STREET CAN'T GET JATTER HOSE THRQUGH, BUT GOT SEWERR TO
FLOW. ’
SERVICE CALL 85.00 25.00
EQUIPMENT - SPARTAN 758 JETTER 275.00 27500
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 4 178.00 712,00
Total $1,072.00
Balance Dug " $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28




DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

000136

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, 1L 60005 Date Involce #
10/27/2007 20071878-1
Bill To Job Locatlon
LUTHBRAN HOME & SBRVICES BMERGENCY CALL
VIA EMAIL TO: SAME
lutheranlife@easysgcossap.com SEE JOHN LACO
PO BOX 4276 8472533710
SOUTH BEND, IN 46614-4276
P.C. No. Terms Due Date Rep Seorvice Date Project —{
‘ Duconreoslpt | 102772007 DIH 1072772007
Descriplion Qty Rate Amount
BMERQENCY CALL - FOUND SANITARY HAD BACKED UP BOTH EAST AND
WEST 1ST PLOOR WINGS, LAUNDRY AND KITCHEN. FOUND CLEAN-QUT AT
END OF HALLWAY (NORTH EAST) CHECKED MANHOLE OUTSIDE . OK.
COULD NOT ROD FROM CLEAN-QUT NORTH IN HALLWAY, FOUND
CLEAN-OUT UNDER COUCH UNDER CARPET. SOUTH BEND OF HALLWAY
WHERE HALLWAYS TEE INTERSECT, RODDED FLOOR DRAIN IN LAUNDRY
ROOM 45 GOING PAST CLEAN-QUT IN HALLWAY, RODDED FROM HALLWAY
135 NORTH WITH 3" CUTTER, RESTRICTIONS AR CLEAR-QUT (DOUBLE ‘Y’
COMBO OR TBE AT THIS POINT AND MOST OF THE WAY DOWN THE
HALLWAY), PULLED BACK CLOTH. REPLACED CLEAN-QUT PLUG.
SERVICE CALL §5.00 85.00
RODCHARGE 85.00 85.00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER - QVERTIME 4.5 176.00 792.00
L Total $962.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28




DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005

Invoice

Date

involce #

11812007

20071659

Bl To

Job Location

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES
VIA EMAIL TO:
huthemnlife@casysccessap.com
POBOX 4276 ‘

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

SAME
SBE JOHN LACO
847/253-3710

P.Q. Na. Torme Due Dato

Rep

Sarvice Datlo

Projact

Duc on receipt /1812007

DIH

9/18/2007

Description

Qty

Rale

Amaunt

PLATE AND SCREW.
SERVICE GALL

MATERIAL

| EQUIPMENT - HILT:

HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER

4" CLEAN QUT ON STACK IN KITCHEN AT HAND SINK - BROKE OPEN WALL.
FOUND CLEAN-QUT TEE. REMOVED PLUG AND RODDED 45", USED 3 1/2*
CUTTER AND 4" - 2 BLADE CUTTER. RARD TO GET THRCUGH WITH 4"
CUTTER. A LOT OF BUILD-UP ON WALLS OF PIPE. WAS ABLE TO GO 45"
INSTALLED NEW CLEAN-OUT PLUG. TAPPED PLUQ AND INSTALLED WALL

8500
63.50
45.00
125,00

35.00
63.50
45.00
500.00

Total

$693.50

QoOo137

Balance Due

$0.00

ATTACHMENT 28




DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Dato Involce #
4/2312007 20070708
Bl Te - Job Location
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
ViA EMAIL TO: SEE JOHN LACO
lutheraniife@easyrccessap.com 847/253-3210
PO BOX 4276
SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276
P.O. No. Terms Dua Date Rep Service Date Projact
Dup on recoipt 4/21/2007 M$ 427/2007
Deseriplion Oty Rals Amount
REPAIRED 1 172" DOMESTIC WATER LINE
SERVICE CALL 85.00 85.00
MATERIAL 292,00 292,00
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 17 119.00 833.00
Total $1,210.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES
610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE

Invoice

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Invoice #
312612007 20070527
Biil To Job Lacalion

LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME

VIA EMAIL TO: SBE JOHN LACO

lutheranl ife@ensyaceessap.com 84772533710

PO DODX 4276

SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276

P.O. No. Terms Dug Date Rep Service Date Prafect
Due on receipt 3126/2007 M3 3/26/2007
Dascriptlon Qty Rate Amaount
REVIEW JOB - 2" GALVANIZED DOMESTIC WATER PIPE LBAKING - REMOVED
INSULATION FROM 2", 1 172" AND 34" GALVANIZED WATER PIPING IN
RALLWAY CEILING BY INFECTION CONTROL/DIET OFFICE. INSTALLED TEMP
CLAMP ON 1 1/2" GALVANIZED WATER PIPING TO STOP LEAK FOR NOW,
TOOKX MATERIAL LIST - WILL CALL WITH PROPOSAL.
SERVICE CALL 85.00 85.00
MATERIAL 3875 3875
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 119,00 357.00
Total $480.75
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES

Invoice

610 8. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involce #
6212006 20061047
Bl To Job Locafion
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
V1A BMAIL TO: SEE JIM SKQUFES
luthenanlife@@casyeccessap.com PAQER 847/206-8280
PO BOX 4276 847/368-744¢
| SOUTH BEND, IN 46634.4276
P.Q. No. Terms Dus Date Rep Sorvice Date Project
50410 Due on receipt 61112006 MRW 61712006
Descriplion Qly Rato Amount
LABOR AND MATERIAL PER PROPOSAL DATED 02/28/06 9,875.00 9,875.00
of
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Total £9,875.00
Balance-Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES lI‘IV Oi ce

610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Inveice #

10/36/2005 20052095

Bl To Job Leeation
LUTHERAN HOME & SERVICES SAME
YIA EMAIL TO: SEE JIM SKOUFES
lutheranllfe@ensynccessap.com PAGER 847/206-8280
PO BOX 4276 847/368-7441
SQUTH BEND, IN 46634.4276
P.C. No. Terms Due Dale Rep Sarvice Dats Projoct
Due on receipt 10/30/2005 MRW 10/30/2005
Dascriplion Gty Rate Amaunt

EMHERGENCY CALL - RESPFONDED TO COMPLAINT OF WATEBR BACKING UP IN
KITCHEN, WATER WAS NOT BACKING U? ON ARRIVAL, JETTED FROM
CLBAN.OUT NEAR DISHWASHER TO MIDDLE OF KITCHEN BY DESK AND
FROM CLEAN-OUT BY DESK TO SANITARY MANHOLE QUTSIDE. WEST END
QF BUILDING, RAN LARGE AMOUNTS OF WATER THROUGH DISH\WASHER
AND TWO DISPOSALS TO TEST, DRAIN WELL AT THIS TIME,

CALLED BACK AT ;00 PM, NOW WATER 18 BACKING UP IN FLOOR SINKS AND
CLEAN.OUTS IN DISHWASHER ARBA, JETTED THROQUGH TWQ DIFFERENT
CLEAN-OUTS AT LEAST 20 TIMES BUT WATER WILL NOT GQ DOWN. TRIED
RODDING FROM FLOOR SINK NEAR KITCHEN DESK, ROD ONLY WENT N FIVE
PRET OR SO AND CAME OUT VERY SHINY AND FULL OF GRAVEL INDICATING
PLOOR DRAMN TRAP HAS ROTTED AWAY AND ROD WENT QUT OF PIPE.
RODDED FROM CLEAN-OUT BY DISPOSERS HIT STOPPAGE APPROXIMATELY
70 FEET OUT AND WATER WENT DOWN. RAN DISHWASHER AND BOTH
DISPOSALS FOR APPROXIMATELY 10 MINUTES, WATER DRAIN WELL
REMOVE NO DEBRIS ON ROD CABLE,

85.00 85.00

SERVICECALL
ROD CHARGR 80.00) 80.00
SPARTAN 758 JETTER 275,00 27500
HOURLY RATE FOR PLUMBER 6 164.00 984.00
Total $1,424.00
Balance Due $0.00

ATTACHMENT 28
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DAHME MECHANICAL INDUSTRIES
610 S. ARTHUR AVENUE

Invoice

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS, IL 60005 Date Involce #
&/6/2008 20051108
Biil To Jab Locatlon
LUTHERAN HOME & SBRVICES SEE JIM SKOUFES
VIA BMAIL TC: B47/368-7441
Tutheranlife@ersyaccessap.com SAME
PO BOX 4276
SOUTH BEND, IN 46634-4276
~.0. No, Torms Duys Dale Rep Service Date Project
200644 Duo on receipt 6/6/2005 Dos 6/612005
. Descripfion ‘Qty Rate Amount
LABOR AND MATERIAL PER PROPDSAL 1,250.00 1,250,00
Total $1,250.00
Balance Due $0.00
ATTACHMENT 28
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Lutheran Home
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i RESERVE

Aowsms

Page 55

Piping, Domestic Water, Olson - The galvanized steel domicstuic water piping in Olson is
in poor condition it an age of up to 40 years. The Facility Manager reports significant interior
and exterior cust, amd reduced water flow. Page 28 of Exhibit A Photwpraphs depicts this
condition. The exact locations and conditions of the pipes were not ascertained due 10 the nature

of their location and the non-invasive nature of our inspection.

The usehid tite of palvanized domestic plumbmg pipes s up 10 75 years.  Although the
rate of butld-up varies based on flow rates, minerals in the waler, 1wemperature, ete., occlusions
from deposits evenually develop that can clog pipes and greatly reduce water pressure. The first
piping system usually to experience problems is domestic water. Galvemzed pipe 1 zine coated
steel which stows oxidahon or rusting. The galvanized pipe provides a surface texture for

ATTACHMENT 28
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ADVISCRS Page 56
minerals such 2s calcium and magnesium {water hardness minerals) to adhere, These minerals
build-up at a faster rate on galvanized piping when compared to copper piping. Also, corrosion
of these pipes will eventually resull in pilling of the inilerior surface and pinhole leaks. We
recommend the property budget funds to replace this galvanized water piping with copper piping.

Copper piping is the predominant type of pipe used in new construction for domesiic water

piping.

Due to the condition, the Facility Manager anticipates a phased replacement of the
domestic water piping in Olson beginning by 2012 and concluding by 2014. We depict Lhis

information on Line ltem 436 of Exhibit B Reserve Expenditures.

ATTACHMENT 28
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Reserve Advisars, Inc.
Exhibit A Photographs

000146

Page 28

Domestic waler piping in Olson

ATTACHMENT 28




T RESERVE
B ACVISORS Page 52

Fire Suppression System, Olson, Improvement - The faciiity manager inlorms us hat
the fire suppression system in Qlson requires an upgrade to include al) interior arcus by 2012,
We base cur cost on Line Ttem 427 of Exhibit B Reserve Expenditnres on a hudgelary cost

provided by the facility manager.

ATTACHMENT 28
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4R RESERVE
L ADVISORS Page 19

Roefs, Flat - Lutheran Home maimains 535 squares of flal roofs at the Chapel, 460
squares at Neighborhoods, 340 squares at Olson and 70 squares at Shepherd's Flock, These tlat
roof areas include both vinyl, EPDM and modified bitumen.

The remaining roofs are in
good 1o fair condition at ages of up to 13 years with a hmited history of leaks and areas of
slanding water. Pages 5 and 6 of Exhibit A Plhotographs depict these conditions.  The useful

life of a Rai roof s trom 15- 10 20-years.

The time or nced to replace roofs becomes apparent with muitiple or recurring leaks.
Lutheran Home should determine whether the origin of the leaks is from the membrane or

{lashings. Lutheran lMome may incur less cost by repairs to the fiashines than replacement of an

"We quantify the roof area in sguares where one square is equal 1o 100 square feet of surface area.

ATTACHMENT 28
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RESERVE
ADVISORS Page 20

entire roof. One disadvaniage of a stone ballasted roof system is the difficulty in finding the

source of leaks. Water travels to the lowest point and opening in the roof structure, sometimes
finding its way dozens of feet from the origin of the leak in the membrane. The stone ballast,
membrane and insulation impede the process of finding a break in the membrane. Therefore,
because the difficulty in finding several or many breaks in 8 membrane, replacement eventually

becomes ihe more economical option rather than repair.

Lutheran Home should budget for a phased replacement of

the Olson roofs beginning by 2017 and concluding by 2018, We recommend the
property replace the existing roofs with the most economical type of flat roof with consideration
given 10 competitive bids and proposals from several roofing contractors. We depict this

information on Line Jtems 105 through 108 of Exhibit B Reserve Expenditures.

"The terms scalam and canlk are vsed interchangeably throughout this text and :hrouihout lhcﬁg}ljiﬂtﬁT 28
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Reserve Advisors. Inc, Page 6

Exhibit A Photegraphs

Flat roof at Building A. Olson
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Reserve Advisers, Inc, Page 7
Exhibit A Photographs

flashing
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Windows and Deors - Lutheran Home maintaing approxinalely
10,700 square feet of aluminum and vinyl frame windows at Olson,

These quantities include any
related panels. We were informed that the windows, doors and panels at Olson date back 1o 1971

and 1977,

We anticipaie a usefu] dife of up to 45 years for
aluminum frame windows and a useful life of up t 35 vears for vinyl frame windows., The
uselul life of the windows and doors is dependent on the occurrence of waler infiliration, thermal
inefficiencics compared to present technology. type of {rame, availability of replacement parts

and aesthetics.

ATTACHMENT 28
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T RESERVE
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Praperly designed window and door assemblies anticipate the penetralion of some storm

Page 28

water beyond the gaskets. This infiltrated water colleets in an intemal drainage system and
drains, or exits. the frames through weep hofes. Occasionally these weep holes became clogged
with din or arc improperly disgnosed as a source of water iniiliration and purpesely, bui
inappropriately. seaied. We recommend Lutheran Home periodically venify all weep holes are
unobstructed and tund this cxpense through the operating budget. However, as window frames,
paskets and seatunts deleriorate, leaks become more frequent. The windows and doors will

eventually need replacement or major capital repairs to prevent water infiltration and damage

from wind driven rua.

The thenmal efficiencies of the window and duor assemblies are affecied by their design
and vonstruction components.  These compenents include glazings. thickness of air spacy
between glazings. low-conductivity gas. tinted coatings, low-e coatings and thermal barricrs. We

discuss each compenent of an cffective design below,

Gluzing - Glazing 15 the plass surface, or pane. in the assembly. An increase it the
number of plazings resuits in an increase in thermal efliciency. Dual glazing insulates
ncarly twiee as well as single glazing. Adding s third or fourth layer of glazing results in
fwrther improvement but also increases the cost of the system. We recommend the use of
dual glazing (duzl pane windows) as the most cost effective and thermal efficient

replacement system.

Thickness uf dir Space - As the thickness of the air space between dual panes increases.
the ihermal efficiency of the system also increases. The ideal air space thickness is aboul
one-hall el or more. However, il the air space is too wide & convection loop berween
e lavers of glazing oceurs. An air space thickness beyond approximately one inch does
nor result in an increased energy performance.

Low Concluctivity Gas - The use of a denser, lower conduciivity pas, such as argon, in the
space between dual panes results in an increase in thermal cfficiency. Argon is the most
cost effective type of low conductivity gas. Argon is inexpensive, nonloxic, nonreactive.
clear and oadorless, Krypton is also a low conductivity gas occasionally used in window
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and door assemblics. Kryplon 1s more thernually efficient. However, it 15 also more
expensive 1o produce.

Page 29

Timted Glass Coarings - Tinted glass coatings reduce solar heat gain without reducing
visibility. These coatings are typically used in climares with a nced for building cooling.

Low-e Coatings - The use of thin, transparent coatings of silver or tn oxide permit visible
light to pass through the glazings and reflect infrared heat radintion back imio the
building. A variety of types of low-e {low emissivity} glass are available te suit different
climate zones, Law-e glass with high solar heat gain coellicients are appropriate for
northern climates while low-e glass with low solar hcat pain coefficients are appropriate
for sowthem climates.
Thermal Barriers - Thermal barriers are typically comprised of rigid polyurethane,
siltcone foam or butyl rubber. Conductivity i a primary concern with aluminum frame
windows. Aluminum has extremely high conductivity and therefore provides a thermal
bridge for the exchange of heated or cooled air between the inside and outside
temperatures.  Thermal bamers interrupt this thermal bridge and improve the thermal
cfficiency of the aluminum assembly.

A combination of the ubove design and construction components will greatly increasc the
thesmal efficiency of the assembly.  Lutheran Home should thoroughly investigate thesc
component options at the time of replacement. Some manutucturers may include these
components as parl of the standard product and other manufacturers may consider these
components as options for an additional cost. Lutheran Home shonld review the specifications
pronided by the manufacturers w understand the thermai design and construction components of
the proposed assemblies.  For reserve budgetary purposes. we use 2 it cost lor replacements

with typical thermal efficiencies and quality of construction to achieve therr cstimated usefu!

Ty es.

The lrames of windows and doors are wpically constructed of wood, vinyl. aluminum and

fiberglass. We discuss the advantages and disadvantages of these [rame 1ypes in the following

narrative.
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Wand - Wood is 1he wraditional frame maserisi because of its availability and ease of
milling miv complex shapes, Wood s iypically preferred in wood frame, low rise
residential applications becavse of its appearance and traditional place in home design,
Wood frame assemblies offer good thermal qualities but require periodic paint
applicanons to maximize their useful fife. Vinvl or aluminum ofadeding, or coverings. can
be applicd to the exterior of the wood frame to minumize maintenance.

Page 30)

Vinpd - Vinyl, or polyvinyl chloride (PVC), frames have good insulating values. Viny)
frames arc resistant to moisture and are maintenance free, Normal deterioration mainly
relates to discoloration of the extertor fimish from exposure 1o sunlight, weathering and
air pollutanis. Vinyl frames are also susceptible 10 damage, primarily as the frames age
and become bnitle,

Aluminum - Aluminum frames are light. strong, durable and can be extruded inio
complex shapes.  These frames are available wm anodized and factory-baked ename)
finishes that are durable and Jow-maimenance. However, these lypes of frames do not
offer good thermal qualities due to aluminem’s high conductivity. Thermal bamiers
within the framcs increase the thermal ciliciencies of the system as discussed in o
previous narative,

Fibergluss - Fiberglass frames are the most energy efficient frames available. Fiberglass
frames are resistant 10 moisture, are maintenance free and can alse be painted. In
addition. fiberglass frames expand and contract a1 nearly the same rate as the glass,
minimizing seal lailures. However, fiberglass frames are relatively new, are not yet
widely avmiable, their long term performance is unknown and they are imore expensive
than the previously listed frames.

Aesthetics can be the primary reason for replacement of windows and doots.  The
windows and doors will cventually appear outdated and wom. The Jrame finish will eventually

deteniorate, resulting in an unpleasant appearance.  This discretionary time of replacement can

have a significant impact on the remaining uscful life.

Based on the above Jactors, we recommend the propeny budget for replacement of the

alwminum frame wndows and doors . Qison by 2016,
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Encrgy Management System - The building includes an energy management system for
the monnoring of the HVAC (heating, ventilating and air conditioning) systems.  The system is
in tair condition and offers only limited monitoring of certain equipment. We anticipate a useful
tife of up to 20 years of this system and recommend the property budget for replacement in 2011,
We depict this information an Line ltem 426 ol Exhibit B Reserve Expenditures. Lutheran

Home should fund upgrades to the system and replacement of the sensors through the operating

budget.
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Dale Galassie

Chair

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2nd Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Lutheran Home CON Application

Dear Chairman Galassie:

As Senior Vice President, Corporate Finance/Chief Financial Officer for Lutheran Life
Communities, I wish to document the Availability of Funds for the Project for purposes of the §
1125.800(c) review criterion. The availability of our debt financing is evidenced by the attached
letter of Ziegler, our Financial Advisor on this project. Ziegler has also previously advised us in
several previous issuances of tax-exempt revenue bonds.

As to the cash and securities portion of the financing, I draw to your attention our balance
sheet in the attached audited financial statements as of June 30, 2011.

This balance sheet shows funds that are available within the Assets lines. There is cash
available from Lutheran Life Communities of approximately $9.2 million, Board Designated
Investments of approximately $6.6 million and Investments of approximately $9.3 million.

Sincerely,

LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES

ool Podlfdy

Carl W. Moellenkamp
Senior VP, Corporate Finance/CFO

-
—_
-

Vibrant, grace-filled living ..

across all generations -

o
' 1‘?' S

3150 Salt Creck Lane - Arlington Heights, IL 60005 ’ e

(847) 368-7400 - fax (847) 368-7320 : ' .

wwwibsrthezandaifeismmunities.org ATTACHMENT 39 -
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2 Tiegler Sz

Chicago, IL 60606
Phone: 312-263-0110
Toll-free: 800-366-8899
Fax: 312-263-5217
www.ziggler.com

March 6, 2012

Stephen W, Johnson
Managing Director
Senior Living Finance

Dale (alassie

Chair

Health Facilities and Services Review Board
Illinois Department of Public Health

525 West Jefferson Street

Second Floor

Springfield. IL 62761

Dear Chairman Galassie:

This tetter is to advise you that Ziegler is currently engaged as underwriter by Lutheran Home for the Aged.
Inc. The proceeds from the proposed bond issue will be utilized 1o finance the redevelopment of portions of its
existing campus located in Arlington Heights, Illinois.

Lutheran Home for the Aged. Inc.. Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc. and Lutheran
Foundation for the Aged, Inc. form the obligated group under their existing Master Indenture through which they
borrow the proceeds of tax exempt bonds (the “Borrowers™). Ziegler is in the process of developing with the
Borrowers a plan for the issuance of Revenue Bonds for the purposes of funding the campus redevelopment. [t is
conemplated that the Financing will be structured principally with the tax exempt bends and is currently expected to
include fixed rate, tax exempt bonds. It is anticipated that the fixed rate. tax exempt bonds will be unrated and
unenhanced. Although we do not anticipate vsing vaciable rate debt. if a portion of the debt is variable rate. it will
be backed by a letter of credit. Financing proceeds are expected to be in the range of $74 million. We anticipate the
interest rate of the fixed rate bonds to be in the range of 7% (0 9%. and that the interest rate for any variable rate
bonds would be in the range of 4% to 5%. The par amount of the bonds issued under the Financing, bond maturity,
as well as other structural features of the Financing, will be agreed upon as other material details of the Financing
are established.

The market for non-rated senior living credits continues to be very cfficient and access to capital in the
nen-rated markets very strong. Ziegler maintains substantial relationships with high-yield bond investors.
Please feel free to contact us with any questions, or if you should require further information.
Sincerely.

I

Stephen W. Johnson
Managing Director - Senior Living Finance

cc: Daniel I. Hermann
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Financial Statements and Schedules
June 30, 2009 and 2008

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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KPMG LLP

303 Enst Wacker Drevg
Chicagg, iL 60601-5212

{ndependent Auditors’ Report

The Boards of Dircclors
Lutheran Life Communities and Subsidiarics;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance shects of Lutheran Life Communities and
Subsidiaries (the Corporations) as of Junc 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net asscts, and cash flows for the vears then ended. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Corporations’ management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statemenis based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Siates of
Amcrica. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the cffectiveness of the Corporations’
internal control over financial reponting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
cxamining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statemnents,
agsessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evalualing the overall financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for cur opinion,

In vur opinien, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respeets, the financial position of the Corporations as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their
operations, changes in npet asscts, and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporations adopted the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, 157, Fair Valfue Measuremenis, Statement of Financial
Accounting Standaeds No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liobifities, and
Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position Ne, 117-1, Endowments of Not-for-Profit
Organizations: Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version of the Unifornt Prudent
Management of Instinutional Funds Act, and Enhanced Disclosures for All Endowment Funds, as of July 1,

2008.

KPMG LLP, n U5 Wmited Kabilty patnarshlp, i the U 5.
mambar bim ol KRMG i, 2 Swiss ooop
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Our audits were made for the purposc of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a whole. The consolidating information included in schedules 1 through 4 is presented for purposes of
additionat analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position and
results of operations of the individual corperations. The consolidating information has been subjected to
the auditing proccdures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a wholc.

KPMe LLP

October 27, 2009
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Assets 2009 2008
Curreni assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,758,664 4,857,111
Assets whose use is limited or restnicied — required for
current Habilities i1,866,593 12,011,999

Resident accounts recejvable, net of allowance for
doubtful aceounts of $672,300 and $607,700 in

2009 and 2008, respectively 8,100,446 7,033,554
Other receivablcs 1,002,263 642,255
Inventory of supplics and other 737,758 582,601

Total current assets 26,465,726 25,527,580

Assels whose use is Limited or restricted, net of amounts required
for current liabilities:

Heid by trustee under bond indenture agreement 6,057,047 7,821,673
Donor restricted investments 7,221,427 3,085,537

Total noncurrent assets whose use is limited
or resiricted 13,278,474 10,907,210

Lang, buitdings, and equipment, net of aceumulated

depreciation and amortization 107,737,576 87,661,811
Coslts to acquire initial continuing care contracts 3,374,764 2,854,338
Investments 7,058,776 13,678,100
Agency funds 60,131 60,342
Deferred financing caosts, net 1,572,898 1,673,394
Other assets 1,847,248 1,408,732
Total essets $ 161,395,590 143,771,507

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements.
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Liabilities and Net Assets 2009 2008

Current liabilities:

Current instaliments of long-term debt 5 1,386,235 1,268,736
Long-term debi subject to short-tertn remarketing arrangements 10,480,358 10,617,614
Line of credit 4,503,905 2,100,000
Current portion of obligations under capital leases 294,160 170,888
Accounts payable 4,492 540 4,279,184
Accrued interest payable 1,731,263 600,754
Accrued compensation and other liabilities 5,208,297 5,117,384
Total current liabilities 28.096,758 24,154,560
Long-term debt, excluding current installments and unamortized
bond discount and premium 74477612 56,986,614
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion 283,826 174,364
Deferred revenue from nonrefundable entrance fees 751.7L5 642,436
Residents’ custodial assets 345933 339,90)
Resident entrance fees 15,158,089 13,209,495
Reserve for funeral éxpenses 27,300 36,270
Resident deposits 2,116,512 2,075,327
Charitable gift annuity contracts 531,122 559,197
Agency funds 60,131 60,342
Fair value of interest rate swap agreemenis 812,735 385,073
Total liabiltlies £22,661,733 98,623,579
Net assets:
Unrestricted 20,743,283 41,747 913
Temporarily restricted 4,957,625 153,067
Permanently restricted 4,032,949 3,246,948
Total net assets 38,733,857 45,147,928
Total liabilities and net assets $ 161,395,590 143,771,507
4
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Operating revenue:
Net resident service revenuc $ 71,628,057 65,536,638
Other revenue 7,349,043 8,300,862
Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 631,601 79,268
Total operating revenue 79,608,701 73,916,768
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 41,051,187 39,017,07}
Employee bencfits 10,471,777 9,954,268
Support services 10,856,803 10,447,743
Dietary services 3,846,026 3,776,685
Program serviccs 4,689,787 3,698,254
Administrative services 5,719,308 5,497,438
Community services 1,490,158 1,846,361
Fund-raising 197,585 279,950
Interest 3,483,503 2,781,942
Depreciation and amortization 5,997 481 4,605,498
Provision for bad debts 473,209 205,702
Total operating expenses 89,176,824 82,070,912
Loss from operations (9,568,123) (8,154,144)
Nonoperating gains and Josses:
Investment income 425,907 2,048,627
Unrestricted contributions 564,836 585,143
Bequests and legacies 360,000 3,165,381
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on trading securitics (4,053,919) €2,214,052)
Change in fair valuc of derivative insiruments (427,662) —
Other, net 694,331 1,577,301
Total nonoperating (Josses) gains, net {2,436,507) 5,162,400
Revenue and gaing deficient of expenses and losses (12,004,630) (2,991,744)

Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Change in fair value of derivative instruments — (544,703)
Net assets released from restriction for land, buildings, and

equipment acquisitions — 34,839
Decrease in unrestricted net assets $  (12,004,630) (3,501,608)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
5
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Stalements of Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Deerease in nnrestricted net assets $  (12,004,630) (3,501,608)
Temporarily restricted net asse(s:
Net contributions for specific purposes 5,436,159 —
Release of restricted net asscts for operations (631,601) (79,268)
Net assets rejeased from restriction for land, building, and
equipment acquisitions — (34,839)
Increasc {decrease) in temporarily restricted net assets 4,804,558 {114,107)
Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions 786,001 98,645
Change in net assets (6,414,071) {3,517.070)
Nei assets at beginning of year 45,147,928 48,664,998
Net assets at end of year s 38,733,857 45,147 928
Sce accompanying notes (o consolidated financial statements.
6
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statementa of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities and gains:
Change in net assets S (6,414,071) {3,517,070)
Adjustmenis lo reconrile change in net assets to nel cash provided by (used in)
opcrating activities and gains:
Depreciation and amortization 5,997,481 4,605,498
Amortization of entrance fees 2nd refundable deposits (168,329) (104,505)
Provision for bad dehts 473,209 205,702
Change in fair value of derjvative instruments 427,662 544,703
Change in net unrealized gains and losses 4,053.91% 2,214,052
Change in ectuarizl value of gift annuity obligations 94,781 46,076
Cantributions of permanently restricted net assets (786,001) (98,645)
Changes in assats and liabilities:
Resident nccoumnts receivable (1,540,101) (2,003,947
Other receivables {360,010} 68,160
Inventory of supplies and oher 245,054 {1,969,520)
Other nsscts (438,516) —
Accounts payable 213,356 1,100,147
Accrued interest payabie 1,130,509 (32,385)
Accrued compensation and alher liabilities 87,764 (2,202,057
Deferred occupancy ond care revenue and refundable deposits 32),584 945 008
Net cash provided by (used in) operating ectiviticy and gains 3,338,291 {199,194y
Cash flows from investing aclivilies:
Net (purchases) sales of assets whose use it limited or resiricted (440,232 4,967,939
Net safes of invesiments 779,779 189 641
Acquisition of land, buildings, and equipnient, net (26,073,246) {10,926,010)
Costs 10 sequire inilial continving care contracts {520,423} (1,234,236
Increase [decrease) in resident deposils 41,185 {1,100,791)
Mer cash used in investing activities {26,212.937) {7.903,457)
Cash flows from financing activilies:
Proceceds from issuance of long-term debt 20,420,000 —
Repaymeni of long-term debr (2,948,759 (3,227,604
Nel repaymeni of obligations under capital lesses 232,734 {37,331)
Procecds from entrance fees and refundable deposits 2,898,739 9,442 934
Refunds paid on entrance fees and refundable deposils (994,t21) {506,110}
Payments for deferred finuncing cosls 100,496 15,128
Nel draws on line of credit 2,403,905 2,100,000
Contributions of permanenily restricted nct assets 786,001 98,645
Nel repayments of charitable gift annuity contracis (122,856) (85.932)
Ner cash provided by financing activitics 22,776,139 7,799,730
Net decrease in cash wnd cash eguivalents (98,507 (302,921}
Cash and cash equivalents ot beginning of year 4,857,171 5,160,092
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yeor H 4,758,664 4,857,171
Supplemenial disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for inlerest, nel of amounis capitalized 5 1,824,391 2,263,493
Supplemenial divelosure of noncash transaciions:
5 584,561 250,959

Asscts acquired under capital feaye

See accompanying notes 1o consolidated finsncial stalements.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND StIBSIDIARIES
Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
Jung 30, 2009 and 2008

Organization and Purpose

Lutheran Life Communitics {the Parent} and i1s subsidiaries werce established through a common religious
heritage with the Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod to provide nursing and residential living arrangements
for the aged. Lutheran Life Communities is affiliated with both the Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod and
the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. The Parent and its subsidiaries alse sponsor programs and
activities that provide counseling, education, outreach, home care, day care, and other support services to
the community. The affiliated organizations (collectively with the Parent to be referred to as the
Corporations) are under the commeon control of the Parent, and include the following entities:

Lutheran Life Communities (LLC) is an [llinois not-for-profit corporation formed in 2005 for the
purpose of developing new and innovative services for seniors, establishing a senior living system,
and providing day-to-day supervision and management to the facilitics.

Lutheran Life Communities Foundation (LLC Feundation} coordinates fund-raising activitics that
support the benevolent carc and other programs at Luthcran Life Communities and all of is
subsidiarics. The LLC Foundation was formerly known as St. Pauls House Foundation.

Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc. (LHSA) provides managcment services 1o its
consolidaled affiliates and other affiliated entitics in 1llinois and also operates a 100 unit senior

congregate housing facility.
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. {the Home), located in Arlington Heights, lllinois, is comprised of

262 skilled and 60 intennediate licensed nursing care beds, as well as 70 licensed sheltered carc
units, providing nursing and other services associated with daily living to residents of the Home.

Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. (the LFA Foundation) coordinates fund-raising activities that
support the bencvelent care and other programs at the Home.

Luthcran Communily Services for the Aged, Inc. (LCSA) offers family support services, child care
services, home health services, and counscling to residents of the Home, their famities, staff, and the

surrounding community.

Wittenberg Lutheran Village, Inc. {WLV}, located in Crown Point, Indizna, ts comprised of
155 skilled nursing care beds providing nursing and other services to its residents.

Wittenberg Litheran Village Endowment Corporation (WLVEC), located in Crown Point, Indiana,
is compriscd of 2 60 cotiage retirement community and a 32 unit assisted living facility providing
scnior living and community based scrviees to its residents.

Pleasant View Luther Home, In¢. (Pleasant View) became affiliated with Lutheran Life
Communities in 2005 and operates a rerirement facility in Ottawa, [llinois, comprised of 36
independent living units and a 132 bed skilled nursing facility.

The Arington of Naples was incorporated in 2008. Effeceive July 18, 2008, this corporation
purchased a parcel of land 10 develop a new facility in Naples, Florida for $17,800,000. The debt 1o
purchase the land is funded by the Lutheran Church Exiension Fund and amounts to $19,489,579 as

of June 30, 2009,

8 (Continucd)
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notcs to Consolidated Financia) Statements
Junc 30, 2009 and 2008

Luther Oaks, Inc., (Luther Oaks) located in Bloomington, Illinois, is & continuing car¢ retirement
community (CCRC) comprised of 90 independent living uniis and 58 assisted living units.

St Pauls House and Health Care Center (St Pauls) became affiliated with Lutheran Life Communities
in 2006 and operates a retirement facility in Chicago, llinois, comprised of 68 assisted living beds
and a 110 bed skilted nursing facility.

Lutheran Management Services, lnc, is a for-profit corporation, which was incorporated in 2006,
VeriSpring, Inc. is a not-for-profit corporation, which was incorporated in 2007. The purpose of both
corporations was to develop new innovation in senior care that mects the desires of seniors wanting
1o remain in their homes as they age and helping them to maintain their independence while
improving their well-being, In fiscal year 2008, the operations of VeriSpring, Inc. were combined
with the operations of LCSA. Lutheran Management Services, Inc. has had no activity since
incorporation and both corporations are currently dormant.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies |

The following significant accounting policies of the Corporations are utilized in presenting the
consolidated financial statcinents:

{w)

(6}

Revenue and Gains Deficient of Expenses and Losses

The consolidated statements of operations inciude revenue and gains deficienm of ¢xpenses and
losses. Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
resident care and community suppon services are reported as revenue and expenses. Transactions
incidental to the provision of resident care and community support scrvices are reported as
nonoperating gains and losses. Changes in unrestricted net asse1s excluded {rom revenue and gains
deficient of cxpenses and losses, consistent with industry practice, include change in fair value of
derivative instruments that arc highly effective and are designated and qualify as hedging
instruments, changes in unrealized gains (fosses) on other-than-~trading sccuritics, transfers of assets
amang affiliated not-for-profit entitics for other than goods or services, and contributions of
long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restrictions were to
be used for the purpose of acquiring such asscts).

Donor Restrictions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other asscts are reported at fair value at the date the promise
is received. Unrestricted contributions, bequests, and legacies are recorded as other revenue of the
Home and LCSA and as nonoperating gains of the LFA Foundation, LLC Foundation, and WLVEC.
Contributions are reported as cither temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limi1 the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction cxpires, that
is, when a stipulated time restriction cnds or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unresiricted net assets and repornied in the consolidated
statements of operations as net assets released from restriction. Net assets rcleased from restriction
for operating purposes arc included with other revenue. The receipt of gifts of cash or other assets

9 {Continued)

ATTACHMENT 39

000170



(c)

()

{c)

LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

that musi be used to acquire long-lived assets arc reported as restricted net assets. Expirations of
donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service,

Restricted Net Assels

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose usc has been limited by donors for a specific time
period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assels are those whose use has been restricted by
donors in perpetuity. Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2009 and 2008 principally
represent amounts restricted for the purpose of acquiring long-lived zssets or for specific operating
purposes. Permanently restricted net assets represent investments 1 be held in perpetuity, the income
from which is unrestricted and is expendable to support operations.

In August 2008, the Financial Accounting Standurds Board (FASB) isswed Staff Position No. 117-1,
Endowments of Not-for-Profit Organizations: Nect Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an
Enacted Version of the Uniform Prudent Managemcent of Jnstitutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), and
Enhanced Disclosures for All Endowment Funds (FSP 117-1). FSP 117-1 provides guidance on the
net asset classification of donor restricted endowment funds for a not-for-prafit organization and
reguires additional disclosure about endowmnent funds (both donor restricted ond board designated).
The Corporations have adopted FSP 117-1 as of July 1, 2008.

Effective June 30, 2009, the State of Niinois adopted UPMIFA, which establishes guidelines for the
prudent spending and preservation of endowment funds through the establishment of a UPMIFA

compliant endowment spending policy.

The Corporations classify as permanently restricicd net assets the original value of gifts donated to
the permanent endowment, the original value of subscquent gifts to the permanent endowment, and
accumutations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument. Investment returns in cxcess of spending are classified as increases in
temporarily restricted net assets until appropriated for expenditure by the Corporations.

Endowment funds are cormamingled with the pooled invesiment fund administered by the
Corporations, The Corporations rely on 2 towl return strategy in which investment relurns are
achicved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrcalized) and current yield (interest and
dividends). The Corporations target a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on
equity-based investments to achieve its long-term retumn objectives within prudent risk constraints,

Charity Care

The Corporations provide charity care to residents who meet certain criteria under their benevolent
care policies without charge or at amounts less than their established rates. Because the Carporgtions
do not pursue collection of amounis determined 10 qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenues,

Irvestments

Investment income, realized gains (losses), and unrealized gains and losses on trading sceourities
classified as unrestricted investments are rccorded a5 nonoperating gains {losses) of the
Corparations. Investment income and realized gains (Josses) from temporarily restricted investments
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June 30, 2009 and 2008

are recorded as other revenue of the Corporations. Investment income and realized gains (losses)
from permancntly restricted investments arc recorded as nonoperating gains (losses) since such
income (loss) is unrestricted by the donors. Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on other-than-
trading investments are excluded from revenue and gains deficient of cxpenses and losses in the
accompanying consolidaled staicments of operations. All of the Corporations’ investments are
classified as trading securitics.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limiled or restricted include: assets assigned 1o the Corporations by residents to
cover the cost of their fulure care and services, including assets held by a trustee under bond
indentuze agreements and all donor restricted asscts.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

For purposes of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, demand deposits, and money market funds,

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Lard, buildings, and cquipment arc stated at cost, or if donated, at fair veluc at date of donation, Iess
accumuolated depreciation. Assets acquired under capital lease are recorded at the net present value of
minimum lease payments, Depreciation is provided over the cstimated useful life of each class of
depreciable asset and is compuicd on the straight-fine mcthod. Amortization of assets under capital
lcase is provided over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the respective lease term,

Inventory

Inventory of suppiies is reported at the lower of cost {first-in, first-out) or market.

Costs to Acguire Initinl Continning Care Contracts

Costs fo acquirce initial continuing care contracts {the Costs) consist principally of marketing and
advertising costs incurred dircetly in relation 10 the initial acquisition of continuing care contracts
related 1o the new CCRC being developed through The Artington of Naples, Luther Oaks and the
CCRC expansion at WLV. These entities capitalize costs incurred in connection with direct response
advertising whose primary purposc is 1o sccure deposits from residents who are shown to have
responded specifically to the advertising. Such advertising costs include acwspaper, magazine,
television, radio, brochures, and other costs. The Costs are amortized using 1he straight-line method
over the expected stay al the CCRC of the first residenl group, beginning in the first period in which
revenues associated with the Costs are cammed. Upon occupancy of the first resident group, additional
Costs arc expensed as incurred.

Entrance Fees

Entrance fees, which are nonrefundable, are reported as deferred revenue from nonrefundable
entrance fees and included in long term liabilities. These fees are amorntized over the life expectancy
of the residents, Entrance fees received by Pleasant View and Luther Oaks under residency contracts
are refundable at various amounts in accordance with the terms of the individual contracts. Pleasant

11 (Continued)
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View and Luther Oaks are required to repay the refundable cntrance fee less amounts owed by the
resident following centain timeframes after the termination of occupancy under the residency
contract.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing cosis represent issuance costs for outstanding long-term debt. Deferred financing
costs and bond discounts and premivms are amortized on the straight-line basis over the life of the
respective bonds, which appreximetes the effective interest method. Deferred financing costs and
bond discounts and premiums for the Corporations’ variable rate demand revenue bonds with put
options arc amortized over the terns of the letter of credit agreement for each respective bond series.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Corporations record derivatives and hedging activities at their respective fair values in the
consalidated balance shects. Changes in the fair value of a derivaiive that is highly effective and that
is designated and qualifies as a cash-flow hedge are recorded directly to unrestricted net assets to the
extent that the derivalive is effective as a bedpe. Any ineffective ponion of the change in fair value
of a derivative instrument that qualifies as a cash-flow hedge is reported as a component of interest
expense in the consolidated statements of operations. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is
not designated as a cash-flow hedge are recorded directly to nonoperating gains and losses.

Estimaies and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities a1 the date
of the consolidated financial siatements. Estimates also affect the reported amounis of revenue and
expenscs during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

On July 1, 2008, the Corporations adepted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Meosurements, Tor fair value measurements of financial
agsets and financial liabilities and for fair vaiue measurements of nonfinancial items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. SFAS No. 157
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer 2 liability in
an orderly tmpsaction between market participants at the measurement date. SFAS No. 157 also
cstablishes 2 framework for measuring fair vailve and expands disclosures sbout fair value

measurements,

Starting July 1, 2008, the Corporations arc required to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 157 to fair
value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or

disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecurring basis.

Effective July 1, 2008, the Corporations also adopted the provisions of SFAS No. |59, The Fair
Value Option for Financial Assets ond Financial Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 gives the Corporations
the irrevocable option to report most financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value on an
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instrument-by-instrument basis, with changes in fair value reported in eamings. The Corporations’
management did not clect to measure any additional eligible financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value and as a result, adoption of SFAS No. 159 did not have an cffect on the results of
operations or financial position of the Corporations.

(P} TaxSiatus
The Corporations, other than Lutheran Management Services, Inc., qualify as not-for-profit
organizations as described in Section 5G1(c)(3) of the Iniernal Revenue Code (Code) and arc exempt
from federal income taxes on rclated income pursuant to Scction 501(a) of the Code, except the
Foundation, which is ¢cxempt from taxes under Section 50%a)(}) of the Code.

{q) Reclassificarions
Certain 2008 amounts bave been reclassified to conform to the 2009 consolidated financial statement
presentation,

Investments

The Corporations report investments in equity sccurities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments jn debt sceurities at fair valve. Fair value is determined primarily on the basis of quoted
market prices. A summary of the composition of the Corporations’ investment portfolio at June 30, 2009
and 2008 follows:

2009 2008
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,288,828 9722985
Common stocks and rmulual funds 12,527,164 16,778,523
Corporate bonds and notes 9,729,516 9,921,520
U.S. govemment agency securities 2,704,966 213,114
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies 13,500 £9,500
$ 32,263,974 36,657,651

Investments are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows:

June 30
2009 20068
Assets whose use is limited or restricted — required for
current liabilities $ 11,866,593 12,011,999
Assets whose use is limited or restricied, net of amounts
required for current liabilities 13,278,474 10,907,210
Investments 7,058,776 13,678,100
Agency funds 60,131 60,342
32263974 36,657,651
13 (Continued)
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The composition of investment retum on the Corporations’ investment portfolio for the years ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009 2008
Interest and dividend income s 238,438 1,030,772
Net realized gains on sale of investments 155,392 1,247,664
Realized gains on redemption of insurance policies 9,062 12,373
Changes in net unrealized losses on trading securities (4,053.919) (2,214,052)
3 {3,651.027) 76,757

Investiment rewms are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the years
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 as follows:

2009 2008
Other revenue b (23,015) 170,548
Investment income 425,907 2,048,627
Net unrealized losses on trading securities (4,053,919 (2,214,052)
interest income of fset against capitalized interest expense — 71.634
§ (3,651,027 76,757

Fair Value Mcasurement

(2) Fair Yalue of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporations in cstimating the fair velue of its
financial instruments:

The camrying amount reported in the consolidated balance shects approximates fair value because of the
short maturities of these instruments for the following: cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable,
acerued compensation and other lisbilitics, and estimated payables under third-panty reimbursement
programs.

Fair values of the Corporations' investments held as asscis limited as to use or restricted assets,
investments, and agency funds are estimated based on prices provided by its investment managers and
its custodian bank. Fair valuc for cash and cash equivalemis, common stock and mutual funds,
corporate bonds and notes, U.S. government agency securities, and the cash surrender value of life
insurance policics are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date muitiplicd by the

quantity held.

Fair value of fixed rate long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or
similar issucs or on the current rates offered 1o the Corporations for debt of the same remaining
maturities. For variable rate debt, carrying amounts approximate fair value. Fair value was estimated
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ATTACHMENT 39

000175



LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemcnts
June 30, 2009 and 2008

using quoted market prices based upon the Corporations’ current borrowing rates for similar types of
long-term debe securitics.
¢ Fair value of interest rate swaps is determined using pricing models developed based on the LIBOR

swap rate and other observable market data. The value was determined after considering the potential
impact of collateralization and netting agrcements, adjusted 1o refiect nonperformance risk of both the

countcrparty and the Corporations.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporations’ financial
instruments not carried at fair value at June 3G, 2009 and 2008.

2009 2008
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
Fixcd rate long-term debt $ 32516414 28411108 31,815,725 28,848,737

(b) Fair Value Hicrarchy

The Corporations adopted SFAS No. 157 on July 1, 2008 for fair value measurements of financial assets
and financial liabilitiecs and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial jtems that arc recognized or
disclosed a1 fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. SFAS No. 157 cstablishes a fair
value hicrarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques vsed to measure fair value. The hierarchy
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities
{Level I measurements) and the lowest priorily to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy arc as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Corporations have the ability 10 access at the measurement date.

» Level 2 are obscrvable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable marker dala for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

. Level 3 inputs are unchservable inputs for the asset or liability.

5 (Continued)
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The following table presents the Corporations” fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured

at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2009;

Fair Fair va)ue measurements at June 30 usin
value Level 1 ~ Level 2 Level 3
Assels:
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,288,828 7,288,828 —_ —
Common stocks and
mutual funds 12,527,164 12,527,164 — —
Corporate bonds, notes,
and fixed income
muiua) funds 9,729,516 7,480,534 2,248,982 —
U.S, government agency
securities 2,704,966 — 2,704,966 —
Cash surrender value of
life insurance policics 13,500 13,500 — —
Total 3 32263974 27.310,026 4,953,948 —
Liabilitics:
Interest rate swaps 812,735 — 812,735 —
Total $ 812,735 — 812,735 e

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Corporations grant credit to its self-pay residents as well as those that are insured under third-party
payor agreements. The mix of receivables from residents and third-party payors as of June 30, 2009 and

2008 is as {ollows:

Medicare
Medicaid
Self pay and commercial insurance

16
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2009 2008
20% 15%
23 29
57 56
100% 100%
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Land, Buildings, and Equipment
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment a1 June 30, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009 2008

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost depreciation Cost depreciation
Land and land improvements $ 23,037,190 1,368,424 5,198,12] 1,193,602
Buildings 115,291,734 44,470,454 110,479,203 41,123,395
Furmilure, fixtures, and equipment 26,950,371 18,857,682 28,730,184 16,668,375
Construction in progress 7,114,84) — 2,239.673 —
3 172394136 64,656,560 146,647,183 58,985,372

—————— T

Construction in progress primarily consisis of costs incurred by The Arlinglon of Naples, Pleasant View,
and WLV as they prepare for expansions and renovations, At June 30, 2009, there are no additional
contractuzl amounts for any of these projects. Inlcrest cost is capitalized as a component cost of significant
capital projects to the extent thal such intcrest expense cxceed$ interest income eamned on any project
specific borrowed funds. The Corporations’ capialized interest cost of 31,198,308 offset by capitalized
interest income by $0 al June 30, 2009 and capitalized interest cost of $804,503 offsct by capilalized
interest income of $71,634 a1 June 30, 2008.

Refundablc Deposits, Entrance Fees, and Deferred Revenue

Residents moving into certain facilities of the Corporations in the past were able o ¢lect to assign their
assets 1o an irrevocable trust maintained by an independent third party. The Corporations may draw against
the assets of the (rust 10 pay for the cos! of carc provided 10 the residenis. When a resident expives, lhe
remaining assets in the trust, if any, are distributed in accordance with the resident’s agreement. These
assels are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial siziements as they are not under the

control of the Corporations.

Refundable deposits represent amounts thal residents place with the Corporations Lo secure services and a
living arrangement in one of the Corporations' facilities. Entrance fees are deposiled with subsidiaries,
which provide independent Jiving units to residents. Entrance fee contracts provide for various refundable
and nonrefundable amounts. Deferred revenues include both nonrefundable entrance fees and amounts
billed in advance of the service being provided or performed.

Net Resident Service Revenue

The Corporations have agrecments with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement al amounts
different from their established rales. Estimated contractual adjusiments ansing under third-pany
reimbursement programs represent the differences between the Corporations’ billings at esiablished rates
and the amounis reimbursed by third-party payors, principally Medicaid and Medicare. They also include
any differcnces between cstumated relroactive third-parly reimbursement seitiements for prior years and

subsequent final selilements.
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The Cosporations have obtained Medicaid certification for a portion of their nursing beds and receive
all-inclusive per diem rates for Medicaid-ehigible residents. To the extent that charges or related costs
incurred for services rendered to Medicaid beneficiaries exceed the per diem rales, they are pot recoverable
from the Mcdicaid program or its beneficiaries. Medicaid reimbursement methodologies and payment rates
are subject te change bascd on the amount of funding available to the States of Illinois and Indiana
Medicaid programs, and any such changes could have a significant effect on the Corporations' revenues.

The Corporations have also oblained Medicare certification for a pornion of their nursing beds. The
Corporations are reimbursed by Medicare under a prospective payment syslem based primarily upon a
clinical classification system for Medicare residents. To the extent that charges or related costs incurred for
services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries exceed the per diem rates, they are not recoverable from the

Medicare program or jts beneficiaries.

A summary of gross and net resident service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 follows:

2009 2008
Gross resident service revenue b 88,791,928 81,228,838
Less provisions for:
Estinated contractual adjustments arising under third-party
reimbursement programs 15,494,934 14,311,501
Charity care charges foregone 1,668,937 1,380,609
Net resident service revenue § 71,628,057 635,536,638
18 {Continued)
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(9) Long-term Debt
A summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:
June 38, 2004 June 30, 1008 2009 eflective TN e B eetive
Bond veries bulance balsncy Interes rype Do oty Interest rate inder it rure
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Series Hour? ey
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L[
lzmary |5, 014
Ecrevnpie Devdrprrere 562,643 A4 Varisble imored e ol Muzily pracipa) T3 N
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S 190K [ ey
of 518,000
tyough
Tarnaary 15, 2015
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Wk by Adidable Rt o & Lz exemyx vwiahiz Aupug 15, 2011
Revernae P, Seres 5K e doneymin weekly
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Wirews Firwnee Authonty 500,000 S0GIKN Foverl emie Aumra 15, By L% i) LY.
Unlerbible Ranr Adjusable
Seruriths Revenae
Burnby, ricy 25
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Porpage loun, WLV 2M2.55 Fatiy i¥) Fizad o torest rate by 1, 2026 [ %77 4375
Moppe ko, WLH 239174 2470304 Fized iracreyt mite Juty |, M2 L1 5¥7
Mortgnpe kan AMOM Lo 19453 59 —_ Wariallc {nteres e bty 18,2013 &394 -
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31 368X 8555048
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Ao remraketing
T 10480,358 ULELTH4
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sl pravaug 207,37 018
Lawyg forem ke net of cunmera
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uraiyyned bord
rscaning wit prewim % 75860 M7 54,155,350

During December 1997 and January 1998, WLV and WLVEC entered into an Economic Development
Commission loan for a total commiiment of $4,800,000. Under the Series 1997 and 1998 bond indeniurcs,
WLV and WLVEC are required to maintain certain reserve funds with their bond trustee. The Series 1997
and {998 bonds are sccured by cerizin property and rea) esiate of WLV and WLVEC.
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On Scptember 12, 2001, Series 2001 bonds were issued in the amount of $13,200,000 on behalf of LHSA,
the Homne, LCSA, and the LFA Foundation {collcclively, the LHSA Obligated Group) pursuant to a Master
Trust Indenture. As of December 1, 2007, LCSA withdrew from the LHSA Obligated Group in accordance
wilh the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture. The LHSA Obligated Group has obtained a letier of
credit, which expires on August 15, 2010 as collateral for the Series 2001 bonds,

On November 10, 2003, the lllinois Health Facilities Authority issued variable rate demand revenue
refunding bonds, Serics 2003, in the amount of $14,350,000 on behalf of the LHSA QObligated Group. The
Scries 2003 bonds were issued pursuant 10 the Master Trust Indenture. Principal payments are duc each
November 1, and interest is payable monthly, The Series 2003 bonds were issued principally 10 advance
refund the then-outstanding Series 1996A bonds, The LHSA Obligated Group has obtained a letter of
credit, which expires on November 15, 2012 as collateral for the Series 2003 hongds.

Certain assets of the LHSA Obligated Group are pledged as collatera) for the bonds and the letter of credit.
Holders of the Series 2001 and Series 2003 bonds have a put option that allows them 1o redeem the bonds
prior to maturity. The LHSA Obligated Group bas an agreement with an underwriler to remarket any bonds
redeemed through the excreise of put options. The Serics 2001 and Series 2003 bonds arc accclerable in
the event the LHSA Obligated Group is unable to extend or replace the letter of credit seeurilizing the

bonds.

For bonds issued under the Master Trust Indenwure, the LHSA QObligated Group is required to maintain
certain reserves and sinking funds with its bond trustee, The LHSA Obligated Group is alse required o be
in compliance with specified debt covenants and financial ratios. Bonds issucd under the Master Trust
Indenture are alse secured by the unrestricted receivables of the LHSA Obligaied Group as well as certain
teal property of the Home, Management believes the LHSA Obligated Group is complianl with Lhe
specified debt covenants and financial ratios.

On April 19, 2006, Luther Oaks entered inio a Master Trust Indenture under which Luther Qaks is the only
Obligaied Group member {the Luther Oaks Obligaied Group). The purpose of the Masier Trust Indenture
is to provide a mechanism for the cfficien! and economical issuance of notes by the Luther Oaks Obligated
Group member, The Master Trust Indenture requires the member of the Luther Ozks Obligated Group to
make principal and interest payments on noles issued for its benefit and to pay such amounts as are
otherwise necessary 10 enable the Luther Oaks Obligated Group to satisfy all obligations issued under the

Master Trust Indenture.

On April 19, 2006, Serics 2006A Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds, Scrics 20068 Exiendable Rate Adjustable
Sccurities Revenue Bonds, and Series 2006C Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (collectively referred
Lo as the Series 2006 bonds) were issued pursnant to a Master Trust Indenture in the aggregate amount of
$30,460,000 on behalf of the Luther Oaks Obligated Group. The Serics 2006 bonds are secured by a
leasehold morigage in the property, the new CCRC building and equipment, and future revenue streams lo
be provided by the CCRC. The Series 2006C bonds are also secured by an irrevocable transferable letier of
credit issued by a commercial bank, in an amount equal 1o the principal amount of the bonds and accrued
intercst on such principal. Holders of the Series 2006 bonds have & pui option thal allows them to redecm
the bonds prior to maturity. The Luther Oaks Obligated Group member has 2n agreement with an
underwriter to remarket any bonds redeemed through the excrcise of pul options. The loan agrecinents
cutrcntly comain quarterly covenants related to the number of presales and occupied units, The loan
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agrecments also coniain financial covenants, which are initially effective the earlier of the first full year
afier stabilized occupancy is obtained for the new CCRC or 2011,

In March 1993, 8t Pauls issued $6,500,000 of Varable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (the 995 Bonds)
under the provisiens of a Bond Trust Indenture {St Pauls Indenture). Intercst is set al a weekly rate as
defined by the agreement. The 1995 Bonds are secured by a transferable jrrevocable direct pay letter of
credit, which expires in February 2012, and is required to be replaced with another Jeiter of credit upon
expiration. The lefier of credit is secured by the real and personal property of St Pauls, St Pauls is required
10 be in comphance with specified debt covenants and financial ratios based on the 1995 bond agrecment.

WLV maintained a $2,800,000 revolving line of credit and permancnt loan agrecment with the Lutheran
Church Extension Fund-Missouri Synod, which was to expire on July 1, 2006. On July 1, 2006, the
then-outstanding principal balance converted lo a 20-year term loan with monthly payments of principal
and intcrest at the lender's cost of capilal plus 2%, which was 6.375%. The Joan agreement is secured by

certain WLV real cstate.

In July 2006, Pleasant View entercd into a 20 year promissory note agreement for $2,600,000 with the
Mission Investment Fund of The Evangelical Lutheran Chureh in America. The promissory note is secured
by certain property and real estate related to the nursing facility on the Pleasant View campus. The
Evangelical Lutheran Church in America has the nght {o review and adjust the interest rate on July 2,
2011, July 1,2016, and July {, 2021,

In November 2006, LLC entered into a 25 year pramissory note agreciment for $3,100,000 with the
Mission Investment Fund of The Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. The Evangelical Lutheran
Chureh in America has the right 1o review and adjust the interest rate on December 1, 2011, December 1,
2016, December 1, 2021, and December 1, 2026, The note is guarantced by LHSA.

In July 2008, The Arlington of Naples, Inc. entered into a five year promissory note agrcemen for
$19,500,000 with the Lutheran Church Extension Fund (LCEF.) The promissory note is secured by
approximatcly 39 acres of Jand in Naples, Florida. The LCEF has the right to review and adjust the interest
rale each month. Two million dollars of the note is guarameed by LLC,

In March 2009, The Arlington of Naples, Inc. entered into a [§ year promissory note agrecment for
$920,000 with MainSource Bank. The note is secured by an office building in Naples, Florida. MainSource
Bank has the fight 1o review and adjust the interest rate on March 10, 2014 and cvery 60 months thercaficr,
The note is guaranteed by Lutheran Life Communitics.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Siatements

Junc 30, 2009 and 2008

The Corperations have variable rate demand notes Lhat have put options available 1o the creditor. If the put
oplion is exercised, the bonds are presented to the bank, which in turn draws on the underlying letter of
credit. The series and the underlying credit facility terms are described as follows:

Serics

Letter of Credit Reimbursement Terms

Revenue Bonds, Series 2001

Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2003

Illinois Finance Authority
Bonds, Scries 1995

lilinois Finance Authority
Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 2006

Equal quarterly installments over the terms of the letter of
credit through August 2010, starting with the first day of
the first calendar quarter that the term loan is given.

Equal monthly installments over twenty-four months
through November 2012, starting 367 days from the date
that the term loan is given.

Payment is due on the expiration datc stated on the letter
of credit agrecment of February 2012.

Equal monthly installments starting on Juiy 1,
immediatefy following the liquidity drawing and ending
on the first day of the month preceding the term date of
June 2011,

Scheduled principal repayments on long-term debt based on the variabie rate demand notes being put back
10 the Corporztions and a corresponding draw being madc on the underlying letter of credit facility are as

follows:

Year ending June 30:

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter

b 11,866,593
11,396,283
7,016,984
5,519,871
20,176,238
30,160,857

5 86136826
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
June 36, 2009 and 2008

Scheduled principal repayments on the long-term debt based on the scheduled redemptions according to
the underlying Master Trust Indentures are as foflows

Year:
2010 by 1,385,215
2011 1,464,676
2012 1,484,484
2013 1,614,871
2014 21,036,238

Thereafter 59,150,322
8 %.136é26

The LHSA Obligated Group and the Luther Oaks Oblipated Group (collectively, the Obligated Groups)
have interest rate related derivative instruments lo manage their exposure on their variable rate Series 2003
debt and variable rate Series 2006C bonds. By using derivative {inancial instruments to hedge exposures lo
changes in interest rates, the Obligaled Groups expose therselves to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk
is the failure of the counterparties 10 perform under the teons of the derivative contracts. When the fair
value of a derivalive conliract is positive, the counterpanics owe the Obligated Groups, which creates credit
risk for the Obligated Groups, When the fair value of a derivative contract is negaiive, the Obligaled
Groups owc lhe counterparty, and therefore, it docs not possess credit risk. The Obligated Groups
minimize the ¢redil risk in derivative instruments by eniering into iransactions with high-quakity
counterpariics. Market risk is the adverse cffect on the value of 2 financizl instrument that results from a

change in intcresi rates.

The Obligated Groups entered into interest rate swap agreements in November 2003 and April 2006 to
manage fluctuations in cash flows resulting from intcrest rate risk on its variable raie Series 2003 and
Serics 2006C debt, respectively. The swap agreements change the variable rale cash flow exposure on the
Series 2003 and Scrics 2006C dcbt to fixed cash flows. Under the terms of the iaterest rate swap
agrecments, the Corporations receive variable interest rate payments and make fixed interest rate
payments, thercby creating the equivalent of fixed-rate debt. A summary of ouistanding positions under the
floating to fixed rate swap agrecments for the Corporations at June 30, 2009 follows:

Notional
amount Maturity date Rate reccived Rate paid

5 12,635,000 November 2013 BMA Index, reset monthiy 3.385%

Payments equal to the differendal to be paid or (received) under the interest rate swap agreements are
included in inicrest expense in 2008, recognized monthly and amounted to approximateiy $102,000. As of
June 30, 2009, the interest ratc swap agreement for the Luther Oaks Obligated Group came 1o maturity and
was not replaced, The fair value of the Serics 2003 Bonds intercst rate swap agreement of 3(812,735) and
$(385,073) is included in fair value of inlcrest rale swap agreements in long-term liabilities at June 30,
2009 and 2008, respectively. During the first quarter of 2009, the swap on the Series 2003 Bonds was
decmed to be incffective. The change in fair value of the interes: rawc swap agreement of ${427,662) is
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statemenis
June 30, 2009 and 2008

recorded in nonoperating gains and losses in 2009, In 2008, $(544,703) has been recognized as a direct
reduction of unrestricted nel asscts,

Lines of Credit

St Pauls has access to a line of credit through a revolving note with Bank of America in the amoum of
$750,000. The balance at June 30, 2009 was $100,000. Paymenis of interest are payable at prime plus 2%
or the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The line of credit matures in February 2012 and is secured
by the same assels as the 1995 Bonds. The line of credit availability was reduced to $500,000 as of
August 12, 2009, through an amendment to the revolving note.

In 2008, WLV entered into an agreement for a line of credit through a revolving note with First Midwest
Bank in the amount of $2Z,000,000. Borowings on the line ef credit are being used o pay for
devclopmental costs for the expansion of independent Living units at WLV. In 2009, the line of credit was
increased to $2,500,000 and the maturity date was exiended from August 8, 2009 to December 31, 2009.
The balance at June 30, 2009 was $2,000,000. Interest is set at LIBOR plus 1.75%.

In January 2008, the LHSA Obligated Group cnicred inle an agreement for a line of credil through a
revolving note with Fifth Third Bank in the amount of $2,000,000. The balance at June 30, 2009 was
$1,200,000. Intcrest is sct at either a Base Rate or a LIBOR Rate depending on the advance taken by the
LHSA Obligated Group, The Base Rate is the lender’s prime rate less 1.50%. The LIBOR Rale is set at
LIBOR. The line of credit maltures in January 2010.

In January 2009, the Foundation cniered into an agreement for a margin loan through Landmark Capital in
the amount of $1,203,905, which ¢qualed the outstanding balance at June 30, 2009, Intercst is set on 3
formula based on the rate of brokers' call money.
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LLUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidaled Financiat Staiements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Capital Leases

The Cormorations lease centain equipment under capital leases. Included with land, buildings, and
cquipment are $1,618,490 and §1,033,929 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, of asscts held under
capital leases and $687,014 and 5407,811 of related accumulated amortization at June 10, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. A summary of future minimum lease payments and the present value of fiturc minimum
fease payments related to capital leases at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Amount
Year:
2010 s 322,886
2011 238,869
2012 58,921
Total future minimum lease payments 620,676
Less amount representing interest al rates ranging from 0% to 10.00% 42,690
Present value of future minimum Jease payments 577,986
Less current portion of obligations under capital leases 294,160
Obligations under capital leases, excluding current portion £ 283,826

Employces’ Pension Plans

LHSA, the Home, LCSA, and the Foundation participated in a mulii-employer noncontributory defined
benefit pension plan (the Plan) sponsored by the Lutheran Church Missouri Synod, which provides
retirement and disability benefits 10 subsiantiaily all qualifying full-time employecs. Contributions are
based on a percemage of each cligible participant’s gross salary and are submitted (o the Plan quarterly.
Expense recognized under the terms of the Plan amounted 10 $725,348 for the year ended June 30, 2008.
The entities withdrew from the Plan as of December 31, 2007, All participants at December 31, 2007, were
immediately vestcd in the Plan. The Plan will pay retitement benefils to cach participant as he or she
retires, The benetits to be paid will be based on the Plan’s funding formulas in effect a1 December 31,

2007.

WLY and WLVEC sponsor a noncontributory profil sharing plan covering substantiaily all fuil time
employees. Employer contributions 10 the profit sharing plan are discretionary. The employers did not ¢lect
to make any contributions for the years ended June 30, 2009 or 2008. WLV and WLVEC terminated this
plan as of December 31, 2007, All vested balances of the panticipants were transferred to the LLC Plan as

described below,

Pleasamt View sponsors a nonconlributory profit sharing plan covering substantially all full time
employees. Employer contributions 1o the profit sharing plan are discretionary. Pleasant View terminated

this plan as of December 31, 2007.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidaled Financia! Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

St Pauls sponsors a contributory profit sharing plan (money purchase plan) covering substantially al! full
time employees. SU Pauls is required 1o contribute 2% of the ehigible compensation of all covered
employees 1o the profit sharing plan, In addition, each participant can elect salary reduction under a tax
deferred annuity plan from 1% 10 5% of cligible compensaticn. St Pauls will then match from 0% to 100%
of that amount bascd on panicipant’s years of service (from @ to 10 years or more). Expense recognized
under the terms of the profit sharing plon amounted 10 30 and $59,291 for the vears ended Junc 30, 2009
and 2008, respectively. St Pauls froze this plan as of December 31, 2007,

As of January 1, 2008, Lutheran Life Communities began sponsoring a new contributory profit sharing
plan (the LLC Plan). The LLC Plan covers substantially all full time employees of all subsidiaries of LLC,
Employer contributions to the LLC Plan arc discretionary. In addition, cach participant can clect salary
reduction under the 403(b) plan. LLC can elect each year 1o maich a portion of these salary deferrals,
Expense recognized under the terms of the LLC Plan at all entities amounted 10 $713,110 and $680,619 for
the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Luther Village Limited Partnership

LHSA has a land leasc agreement with Luther Village Limited Partnership (the Parinership), an unrelaied
parly, for a 1erm of 99 years with an oplion to renew for a second tenn of 99 years. The Partnership has
constructed a number of cooperative apartment and towashome units that may be purchased by individuals
at least 55 years of age. Owncers pay a monthly ground rent to the Partnership in addition to the initial cost

of their unit.

In cxchange for the land lease, the Partnership makes the following paymenis to the Home:

- 0.5% of the sales price of units purchased by initial buyers; and

. The entire amoumnt of the monthly ground remt submitted to the Parinership.

The fees carmned by the Home related to the land lease tolaled $1,045,000 for each of the years cnded
June 39, 2009 and 2008, and are included with othcr nonoperating gains and losses in the accompanying
consolidated staternents of operations.

in addition, the Home performs certain medical and other support services for the Partnership in exchange
for service fees. The service fees carned related 10 the provision of such services amounted 10 $137,748
and $131,773 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respeciively, and have been reflecled as other
revenue in the accompanying consolidaied statements of operations.

Joint Ventures

Joint ventures accounted for using the equity method of accounting represcnicd 31,847,248 and 31,408,732
of other asse!s in the accompanying consclidated balance sheets at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The most significant of these investments include:

+ Healih Resources Alliance, lnc., the parcnt company of Midwest Scnior Care Network (MSCN) for
which the Home has provided a $190,000 ketter of credil, draws on which are guaranieed by LHSA. No
amounts have been acerued or paid pursuant o this agreement as of June 30, 2009,
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidaied Financial Stalements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

The Home and St Pauls each have a 1/15th equity interest in MSCN. The investment in MSCN s
included in other asse¢ts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and is being accounted for
using the cquity method because of the significant influence the Corporations have over MSCN, The
Corporations have included their proportionate shares of MSCN nct income of $531,268 and $364,687
as other nonoperating gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated siatements of operations for

2009 and 2008, respectively.

» Caring Communities Insurance Company (Caring Communities) for which the capilal investment is
being accounted for using the cquity methed and included in other assets in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Accordingly, the Corporations have included their proportionate share of
Caring Communities nct income (loss} in the amounts of $(22,915) and 528,450 as other nonoperating
gains and losses in the accompanying 2009 and 2008 consolidated statements of operations,

respectively,

For the years cnded June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Corporations recognized income of $508,353 and
$393,137, respectively, in investments in affiliated companies. This activity is included as a component of
other nonoperating gains and losses in the accompanying consclidated sialements of operations.
Charitable Gift Annuitics

The Corporations are the recipient of various charitable gift annuitics. Such gifts are recognized as
contribution revenue in the period received, net of any estimated liability for amounts payable to the
annuitant in future periods pursuani o the terms of the respeciive charitable gift annuity contract.
Permancently Restricted Assets

Endowment fund activity for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

2009 2008
Permanently resiricted net assets, December 31, 2008 s 3,246,948 3,148,303
Current year coniributions 786,001 98,645
Permanently resiricted net assets, December 31, 2009 $ 4,032,949 3,246,948

Commitments and Contingencies
Professional and General Liability Self-Insurance

Through December 31, 2001, the Corporations maintained professional liability coverage through
commercial insurance carriers. Effective January 1, 2002, the Corporations cntered into a contractual
agreement 10 form Caring Communitics, a sclf-insurance administrator, which provides the Corporations
with insurance coverage for professional and comprehensive general liability exposure. Insurance expense
under the Caring Communities program amounted to $716,419 and $568,935 in 2009 and 2008,
respectively, Caring Communities may retroactively assess participants for up to twice their annual
premium per coverage year based on adverse participant-specific claimos experience as defined in the
policy. Based on the Corporations’ historical claims expericnce and exposure to date, no reserves were
established at June 30, 2009 or 2008 for cither refroactive premium assessments or tail exposures.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

Workers' Compensation

The Corporations’ workers' compensation program includes various levels of per claim sclf-insured
retentions and excess commercial insurance coverages. Included in operating expenses arc $654,955 in
2009 and $876,992 in 2008 for the ultimate cost of reported self insured workers” compensation claims, as
well as estimates of incurred but not reported claims.

Effective April 1, 2008, the Corporations entered into a contractual agreement to join Summit Insurance
Group, Lid (Summit), a sclf-insurance administrator which, through its risk-sharing provisions, provides
the Corporations with insurance coverage for workers' compensation coverage, Summit is a mulu-
organization insurance company incorpaorated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. As a self-insurance
adininistrator, Summit cnables risk sharing among participating organizations. The Corporations are
required to pay assessed premiums and are subject 10 a per claim self-insured retention,

The capital investment in Summit is being accounted for using the equity method and is included in
investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets (note 3). At this time, the Corporations are
not entitled to include a share of Summit’s net income in the consolidated statements of operations.

Medicare Reimbursement Changes

Medicare reimburses providers of long-tenn care services at a prospective payment system for skilled
nursing services and imposes a consolidated billing requirement. Changes in Medicare reimbursement as a
result of the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services' interpretations and applications of these and
other provisions of Medicare legislation may have an adverse effect on the Corporations’ net resident

service revenue.
Litigation
The Corporations are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. In vonsultation with

legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be resolved without material adverse effect on
the Corporations’ financial position or results of operations.

Regulatory investigations

The U.S. Departiment of Justice and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory investigations and
compliance audits of healthcare providers. The Corporations are subject 10 these regulatory effoms.
Management is currently unaware of any regulaiory matters, which may have a material adverse etfect on
the Corporations” financial position or results from operations.

Ground Lease

During 2006, Luther Oaks cntered into a 99-year ground lease agreement with Trinity Lutheran Church
(Lessor). The lease calls for annual rent to be based on 10% of the appraised land value, which will be
resct every five years, The case commencement date was set as the beginning of the month in which the
first resident moves into the facility, which occurred in 1he fall of 2007. In September 2007, Luther Oaks
also funded a $120,000 deposit account for the benefit of the Lessor as required by the ground lcase

agreement.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2009 and 2008

(18} Subscquent Events

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements and in accordance with the recently issucd
SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events, the Corporations cvaluated subsequent events after the consotidated
balance sheet date of June 30, 2009 through October 27, 2009, which was the date the financial statements

were issued.
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LUTHERAN LIFE, CUANMUNITIES AND SURSIDIARIES
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M KPMG LLP

303 Easl Wacker Drive
Chicago, IL B0601-5212

Independent Auditors® Report

The Boards of Directors
Lutheran Life Communities and Subsidtaries;

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lutheran Life Communities and
Subsidiaries (the Corporations} as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the rclated consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
stalemends are the responsibility of the Corporations’ management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial siatements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reponing as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporations’
internal control over financial reporiing. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
cxamining, on a 1est basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staternents,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
cvaiuating the overal] financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, thc consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Corporations as of June 30, 2050 and 2009, and the results of their
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then cnded, in conformity with

U.8. generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken
as a8 whole. The consolidating information included in schedules | through 4 is presented for purposcs of
additional analysis of the cousolidated financial statements rather than 1o present the financial position and
results of operations of the individual corporations. The conseolidating information has been subjected 10
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, 1s
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

KPMe LP

October 26, 2010

KPWG LLP b 0 Oelaware Emlled Fabikty partrarshep,
Ve US nunber em of ¥PMG Memational Coapenative
[RFMG Innstiona™), 3 Swiss enllty,
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2010 and 2009

Assces

Current assets;

Cash and cash equivalenis

Assets whosc use is limited or restricted

Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $739,500 and $5672,300 in
2010 and 2009, respectively

Other reccivables

Inventory of supplies and other

Total current assets

Assets whose use is limited or restricted, net of amounts required
for current liabilities:
Board designated for endowment
Resident deposits for future funeral, occupancy, and care costs
Held by trustee under bond indenture agreement
Donor restricted investments

Total noncorrent assets whose use is limiled
or restricted

Land, buildings, and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization

Costs lo acquire initial continuing care contracts

Invesiments

Ageney funds

Deferred financing costs, net

Other assels

Total assets

Sce accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.

400206

2010 2009
5,240,955 4,758,664
1,152,701 1,937,238

11,223,611 8,100,446
1,594,152 1,002,265
1,445 855 737,758

20,657,274 16,536,371
6,062,524 5,726,743
3,907,046 4,202,612

24,937,787 6,057,047
8,552,873 7,221,427

43,460,230 23,207,829

117,840,648 107,737,576
4,542,947 3,374,761
6,467,013 7,058,776
64,236 60,131
2,881,145 1,572,898
2,125,762 1,847,248
198,039,255 161,395,590
ATTACHMENT 39



Liabiiitics and Net Assets 2010 2009

Current liabilities:

Current installments of leng-term debt by 1,977,832 1,386,235
Line of credit 6,270,347 4,503,905
Current portion of obligations under capital teases 225,698 294,160
Accounts payable 5,078,213 4,492 540
Accrued interest payable 3,175,128 1,731,263
Accrued compensation and other liabilities 4,222,020 5,208,297
Total current liabilities 20,949,238 17,616,400
Long-term debt, excluding currend installmeats and unamortized
beond discount and premivm 114,848,011 84,957,970
Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion 58,128 283,826
Deferred revenue from nonrefundable entrance fees 729,728 751,715
Residents’ custodia) assets 403,187 345,933
Resident entrance fees 17,401,931 15,158,089
Reserve for funeral expenses 24,100 27,300
Resident deposits 1,934,997 2,116,512
Charitable gift annwiry contracts 477,812 531,122
Apency funds 64,236 60,131
Other long-term liabilities 1,231,537 812,735
Total liabilitics 158,122,905 122,661,733
Net assets;
Unresiricted 27,825,761 29,743,283
Temporarily restricted 7,832,943 4,957,625
Permanently restricted 4,257,646 4,032,949
Total net assets 39,916,350 38,713,857
Total liabilities and net assets S 198,039,255 161,395,590
3
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statcments of Operations
Years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Opecrating revenue:
Net resident service revenue $ 75,078,332 71,628,057
Other revenue 8,962,920 7,349,043
Net assets relcased from restrictions used for operations 476,060 631,601
Total operating revenue 84,517,312 79,608,701
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 43,273,766 41,951,187
Employee benefits 10,574,875 10,471,777
Support services 10,006,680 10,856,803
Dictary services 3,593,279 3,846,026
Program scrvices 5,255,335 4,689,787
Administrative services 6,296,770 5,719,308
Community scrvices 1,932,163 1,490,158
Fund-raising 225,502 197,585
Interest 3,227,159 3,483,503
Depreciation and amonization 6,088,894 5,997,481
Provision for bad debts 383,942 473,209
Total operating cxpenscs 90,858,365 89,176,824
Loss from opcrations (6,341,053) (9,568,123)
Nonoperating gains and losses:
Investment income 538,565 425,907
Unrestricted contributions 457,413 564,836
Hequests and legacies 209,300 360,000
Change in net unrcalized gains and losses on trading sccuritics 2,458,774 (4,053,919)
Change in fair value of derivative instraments (137,207} (427,662)
O1her, net 896,686 694,33
Total nonoperating gains (losses), net 4,423,531 {2,436,507)
Revenue and gains deficient of expenses and losses 5 (1,917,522) (12,004,630)
Sce accompanying notes 10 consolidated financial statements.
4
ATTACHMENT 39

000208



LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consaolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years ended Junc 30, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Decreasa in unrestricted net assets $ (1,917,522) ~ (12,004,630)
Temporanly restricted net assets:
Net contnibutions for specific purposcs 3,351,378 5,436,159
Release of restricted net assets for operations {476,060) (631,601)
Increase in temporarily restricted net asscts 2,875,318 4,804,558
Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions 224,697 786,001
Change in nct assets 1,182,493 (6,414,071
Net assets at beginning of year 38,733,857 45,147,928
Net asscts at end of year b3 39,916,350 38,733,857
Sec accompanying notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
5
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SURSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

Cash fiows from operating activilies and gains:
Change in net asscls

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assels 10 nel cash provided by

operating activities and gains:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortizaliop of entrance fees and refundable deposits
Amortization of deferred finance costs
Provision for bad debis
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Change in nct unrealized goins and losses
Change in actuarial value of gift annuity obligations
Coniributions of permanenily restricied net assets
Changes in assels and liabililies:

Resident aecounts receivably

Otrer receivables

Inventory of supplies and other

Qther assels

Accounts payable

Accrued interest payable

Accrued compensation and other lizhilities

Deferred oveupancy and care revenue and refundable deposits

Met cash provided by operating activilies and gains

Cash Nows from investing activities:
Net purchases of assets whose use is Yimited or resiricled
Net sales of investments
Acquisition of Tand, buildings, and equipment, net
Costs 10 acquire initial continuing care comrncts
Increase (decreasc) i resident deposits

Nel cash used i investing activities

Cash fMows from financing activities:
Procecds from issuance of long-term debt
Repaymeni of long-term debt
Nei repayment of obligations under capital leuses
Proceeds trom entrance fees and refundable deposils
Refunds paid on entrance fees and refundable deposits
Payments for deferred financing costs
Proceeds from draw on line of eredil
Repayment of line of credit
Contributions of permanenily cesiricted net agscts
HNet repaymenis of charitable gifl annuity contracis

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase {deerease) in eash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivelznts st hepinning of year
Cash and cach equivalems as end of year

Supplemenial disclosure of cash flow information:
Cesh paid for imterest, nel of amounts eapitalized

Supplemenrtal disclosure of nencash transactions;
Asseis acquired under capital lease

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

000210

2010 2009
S 1,182,493 (6,414.071)
6,088,894 5,997,481
(241.534) (168,329)
114,420 100,496
383,942 473200
137,207 427,662
(2.458,774) 4053919
19,046 94,781
(224,697 {786,001)
(3,507,107 (1,540,101
(591,887) (360,010)
(708,697) 245,054
(282,619) {438,516)
535,673 213,356
)443 865 1,130,509
{646,523) $7.764
(397,782) 321,584
956,490 3,438,787
{19,467,864) {440,232)
3,050,537 779,779
(16,191,966) (26,073,246)
(1,168,186) (520,423)
(181.515) 41,185
(13,958,994) (26212931
37,953,029 20,420,000
(7.471,391) (2,948,759)
(294,160) 232,734
3,848,297 2,898,739
(987,126) (994,121)
(1,422,667) -
6,216,442 3,203,905
(4,450,000 (800,000)
224,697 786,001
(132,326) (122 8S6)
13,484,795 22,675,643
482291 (98,507}
4,758,664 4,857,171
$ 5240955 4,758,664
§ 1,783,294 1,824,39)
5 — 584,561
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Organization and Purpose

Lutheran Life Communitics (the Parent) and its subsidiaries were established through a common religious
heritage with the Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod and the Evangelical Lutheran Church In America to
provide nursing and residential living arrangements for the aged. The Parent and its subsidiaries also
sponsor programs and activities that provide hospice services, counseling, cducation, outreach, hame care,
day care, and other support services to the community. The affiliated organizations (collectively with the
Parent 1o be referred to as the Corporations) are under the common control of the Parent, and include the

following entities:

Lutheran Life Communitics (LLC) is an lllinois not-for-profit corporation foermed in 2005 for the
purposc of developing new and innovative services for seniors, establishing a senior living system,
and providing supervision and management to the facilitics.

Lutheran Life Communities Foundation (LLC Foundation) coordinates fund-raising activitics that
suppont the benevolent care and other programs at LLC and all of its subsidiaries. The LLC
Foundation was formerly known as St. Pauls House Foundation,

Lutheran Home and Services for the Aped, Inc. {LHSA) provides management services Lo its
consolidated affiliates and other affiliated entities in Illinols and also operates a J00-unit assisted

living facility.
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. (the Home), located in Arlington Heights, lilinois, is comprised of

274 skilled and 60 intermediate licensed nursing care beds, as well as 58 licensed sheltered care
units, providing nursing and other services associated with daily living to residents of the Home,

Lutheran Community Services for the Aged, Inc. (LCSA) offers family support services, child care
services, home health services, and counseling to residents of the Home, their families, staff, and the

surrounding community.

Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. (the LFA Foundation) coordinates fund-raising activities that
suppon the bencvolent care and other programs at the Home,

Witienberg Lutheran Village, Inc. (WLV), locsted in Crown Point, Indiana, is comprised of
155 skilled nursing care beds providing nursing and other services to its residents.

Wittenberg Lutheran Village Endowment Corporation (WLVEC), located in Crown Point, Indiana,
is & continuing car¢ retiremen community (CCRC) comprised of a 32-contage retirement community
and a 32-unit assisted living facility providing senior living and communily based scrvices to its
residenis. An expansion project is currently in progress which will add 77 new units of independent
living.

Pleasant View Luther Home, Inc. (Pleasam View) became affiliated with LLC in 2005 and operates
a CCRC in Ouawa, lllinois, comprised of 36 independent living units and a 132-bed skilled nursing
facility. A rcpositioning project is currently in progress, which will add 24 units of assisted living
and will reduce 42 skilled nursing beds.

Luther Qaks, Inc., (Luther Oaks) located in Bloomington, Illinois, is CCRC comprised of 90
independent living units and 58 assisted living units.

7 {Continucd)
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

St Pauls House and Health Care Center (St Pauls) became affiliated with LLC in 2006 and operates a
rctirement facility in Chicago, lllinois, comprised of 68 assisied living beds and a 96-bed skilled
nursing facility.

The Arlington of Naples was incorporated in 2008, Effective July 18, 2008, this corporation
purchased a parcel of land 1o develop a new facility in Naples, Florida for $17,800,000. The debt to
purchase the land is funded by the Lutheran Church Extension Fund, an unrelated party, and
amounts to $19,489,579 as of June 30, 2010.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been climinated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policics

The following significant accounting policies of the Corporations are ulilized in presenting the
consolidated financial statements:

{a)

{6}

FASB Codification

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an accounung standard,
which cstablished the Codification to become the single source of authoritative accounting
principles. The standard also provides the framework for sclecting the principles used in the
preparation of financial statements of nongovermimental entities that are represented in conformity
with generafly accepted accounting principles in the United States. All guidance contained in the
Codification carries an equal level of authority. The Codification is not intended to change generally
accepted accounting principles, but is expected to simplify accounting rescarch by reorganizing
current generafly accepted accounting principles into specific accounting topics. The Corporations
adopted this eccounting standard in the first quarter of 2010. The adoption of this accounting
stendard, which was subsequently codificd in Accounting Standards Codification {ASC) Topic 105,
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, bad no impact on the Corporations’ results of operations,
financial position, and liquidity.

Revenue and Gains Deficient of Expenses and Losses

The consolidated statements of operations include revenue and gains deficient of expenses and
losses. Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
resident care and community support services are reported as revenue and expenses. Transactions
incidental to the provision of resident carc and community support services are reported as
nonoperating gains and fosses. Changes in unrestricted net assets excluded from revenue and gains
deficien: of expenses and losses, consistent with industiry practice, include transfers of assets among
affiliated not-for-profit entittes for other than goods or services and conlributions of long-tived assets
{including asscts acquired using comnributions, which by donor restrictions were to be used for the

purpose of acquiring such assets).
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateiments
Junc 30, 2016 and 2009

Donor Resirictions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the promise
is received. Unrestricted contributions, bequests, and legacies are recorded as other revenue of the
Home and LCSA and as nonoperating gains of the LFA Foundation, LLC Foundation, and WLVEC.
Contributions arc reporied as cither temporerily or permanently restricted support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the usc of the donated assets. When a donaor restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purposc restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets arc reclassificd as unrestricted net assets and reported in the consolidated
statements of operations as net assets released from restriction. The reeeipt of gifts of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-tived asscis are reporicd as restricted net assets. Expirations
of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in

service.

Restricted Net Assels

Temporarily restricted nct assets are those whose use has been limited by donors for a specific time
peried or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets arc those whose use has been restricted by
donors in perpetuity, Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2010 and 2009 principally
represenl amounis restricted for 2 specific affilialed organization based on the donor’s intent.
Permanently restricted net asscts represent investments to be held in perpetuity, the income from
which is unrestricied and is primarily expendable to support operations,

The Corporations classify as permanently restricted net assets the original valuc of gifts donated to
the permanent endowment, the original value of subscquent gifts to the permanent endowment, and
accumulations to the permancnt endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gifi instrument. Investment returns in excess of spending are classified as increascs in
temporarily restricted net assets until appropriated for expenditure by the Corporarions.

Endowment funds arc commingled with the pooled investmem fund administered by the
Corporations. The Corporations rely on a total return stratepy in which investment relurns are
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and
dividends). The Corporations target a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on
equity-based investments to achieve its long-term retum objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Charity Care

The Corporations provide charity care 1o residents who imect cerain criteria under their benevolent
care policies without charge or at amounts less than their established rates. Becausc the Corporations
do not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as

TCVENUES,
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Investments

Investment income, realized gains (losses), and unrealized gains and losses on trading securities
classified as unrestricted investments are recorded as nonoperating gains (losses) of the
Corporations. Investment income and realized gains (losses) from lemporarily restricted investrments
are recorded as other revenue of the Caorporations. Investment income and realized gains (losses)
from permanently reswicted investments are recorded as noneperating gains (losses) since such
income (loss) is unrestricted by the donors. Changes in net unrcalized gains and losses on
other-than-trading investments are excluded from revenue and geins deficient of expenses and losses
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. All of the Corporations’ investments are
classified as trading securitics.

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assels whose use is limited or restricted include: assets assigned to the Corporations by residents to
cover the cost of their future care and services, including assets held by a trustee under bond
indenture agreements and all donor restricted asscis. Assets whose usc is limited or restricted as are
classified as current assets to the extent they are required to satisfy obligations classified as curremt
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets or if the assets are held in cash and cash
cquivalents for any cwrrent or long term Hability,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposcs of presemation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, demand deposits, and moncy market accounts excluding amounts held as
investmenss and assets whose use is limited or restricted.

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Land, buildings, and equipment arc stated a1 cost, or if donated, at fair value at date of donation, less
accumulated depreciation. Assels acquired under capital lease are recorded at the nct present value of
minimum lease payments. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of
depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line method. Amortization of asscts under capital
lease is provided over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the respective lease term.

Inventory

Inventory of supplies is reported at the lower ef cost {first-in, first-ou) or market.

Costs to Acguire Initial Continuing Care Contracts

Costs to acquire initial continuing care contracts (the Cosis) consist principally of marketing and
advertising costs incurred directly in relation to the initial acquisition of continuing care contracts
related t0 the new CCRC being developed through The Arlington of Naples, Luther Oaks, and the
CCRC expansion a1 WLV, These entities capitalize costs incurred in connection with direct response
advertising whose primary purpose is to sccurc deposits from residents who are shown to have
responded specifically to the adventising. Such advertising costs include newspaper, magazine,
television, radig, brochures, and other costs. The Costs are amortized using the straight-line method
over the expected stay at the CCRC of the first resident group, beginning in the first period in which
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

revenues associated with the Costs are camed. Upon occupancy of the first resident group, additional
Costs ar¢ expensed as incurred.

Entrance Fees

Entrance f{ees, which are nonrefundable, are reported as deferred revenue from nonrefundable
entrance fees and included in long term liabilitics. These fees are amortized over the lifc expectancy
of the residents. Entrance fees received by Pleasant View and Luther Oaks under residency contracis
are refundable at various amounts in accordance with the terms of the individual contracts. Pleasant
View and Luther Oaks are required to repay the refundable entrance fee less amounts owed by the
resident following certain timeframes aficr the termination of occupancy under the residency
contract,

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs represent issuanec costs for outstanding long-term debt. Deferred Ninancing
costs and bond discounts and premiums are amortized on the straight-line basis over the life of the
respective bonds, which approximates the effective interest method. Deferred financing costs and
bond discounts and premiums for the Corporations’ variable rate demand revenue bonds with put
options are amortized over the 1erms of the letter of credit apreement for each respective bond scries.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Comporations account for derivatives and hedging activitics in accordance with ASC Topic 815,
Derivatives ond Hedging, which requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets at fair values. The Corporations are involved in an intcrest rate swap
program, The fair value of the interest rate swap program is included as a component of other
long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated bzlance sheets. For the Comporations’, the
derivative is not designated as a2 hedge instrument, and therefore, the change in fair value of the
interest rate swap program is recognized in the consolidated statcments of operations as a component
of change in fair value of derivative instruments in the period of change.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial stalements in conformity with U.S. peneraily accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of asseis and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial staiements. Estimates alse affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instriiments

On July 1, 2008, the Comorations adopied the provisions of FASB Statetnent No. 137, Fair Volue
Measurements, included in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for fair
valuc measurements of financial assets and financial liabilitics and for fair value measuremenis of
nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statcments on a
recurring basis. ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received 10 sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the
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Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

measurement date. ASC Topic 820 also cstablishes a framework for measuring fair value and
expands disclosures about fair vajuc measurements.

Starting July i, 2008, 1he Corporations are required to apply the provisions of ASC Topic 820 to fair
value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a nonrecwting basis.

Effective July 1, 2008, thc Corporations also adopted the Fair Value Option provisions of the
Subsections of ASC Subtopic 825-10, Financial Instruments — Overall, included in FASB Statement
No. |59, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilittes. ASC Subtopic
825-10 gives the Corporations the imcevocable option to report most financial assets and financial
liabilitics at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis, with changes in fair value reported in
camings. The Corporations’ management did not efect to measure any additional etigible financial
assets or financial hiabilitics at fair value, and as a result, adoption of ASC Subtopic 825-10 did not
have an effect on the results of operations or financial position of the Corporations.

Tax Status

The Corporations qualify as not-for-profit organizations as described in Section 501{c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code (Code) and are exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant
1o Scction 501(a) of the Code, cxcept the LLC, which is exempt {rom taxes under Scction 509(a)}(2)
of the Code.

Reclassifications

Certain 2009 amounts have been reclassificd 10 conform to the 2010 consolidated financial statement
presentation.

investments

The Corporations repert investments in equity securitics with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt sceurities at fair value. Fair valuc is determined primarily on the basis of quoted
market prices. A summary of the composition of the Corporations’ investment portfolio at June 30, 2310

and 2009 follows:

2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents S 0,806,717 7,288,828
Common stocks and musual funds 17,104,771 12,527,164
Corporate bonds and notes [8,742 680 9,729,516
1.8, government agency securitics 4,478,012 2,704,966
Cash surrender valuc of life insurance policies 12,000 13,500

$ 51,144,180 32,263,974
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Investments are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows:

June 30
2010 2009
Assets whose use is limited or restricted — current
assets or held for current liabilitics s 1,152,701 1,937,238
Assets whose usc is Jimtted or restricted, net of amounts
in current assets 43,460,230 23,207,826
Tovestments 6,467,013 7,058,776
Ageney funds 64,236 60,13]
S 51,i44,180 32,263,974

The composition of investment return on the Corporations' investmens portfolio for the years ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2010 2009
Interest and dividend income $ 386,081 238,438
Net realized gains on sale of investments 206,594 155,392
Realized gains on redemption of insurance policies 1,714 9,062
Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on trading securities 2,458,774 (4,053,919)
s 3,053,163 {3,651,027)

Investment retums are inciuded in the accompanying consolidated statements of operatiens for the years
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 as follows:

2010 2009
Qther revenue g 15,742 (23,015)
Investment income 520,915 425,507
Change in usrcalized gains and losscs on trading sccurities 2,458,774 (4,053,919
Interest income offset against capitalized interest expense 57,732 —
S 3,053,163 (3,651,027}
'
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Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
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Fair Value Mcasurement

{0)

(b)

Fair Value of Financial Insiruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporations in estimating the fair value
of its financial instruments:

. The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets approximates fair value
because of the short maturities of these instruments for the following: cash and cash
equivalents, resident accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payablc accrued
compensation and other liabilities, and estimated payables under third-party reimbursement
programs.

. Fair values of the Corporations’ investments held as asscts limited as 10 use or restricted
assets, investments, and agency fitnds arc estmaied based on prices provided by its investment
managers and its cusiodian bank. Fair value for cash and cash cquivalents, common stock and
mutual funds, quoted corporate bonds and notes, and the 1.8, government agency sccurities,
are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held.

. Fair value of fixed rate long-term debt is cstimated based on the quoted market prices for the
same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to the Corporatians for debt of the same
remaining maturitics. For variable rate debt, cammying amounts approximate fair vajue. Fair
value was cstimated wsing quoted market prices based upon the Corporations’ current
borrowing rates for similar types of long-term debt sccurities.

. Fair value of interest rate swaps is determined using pricing models developed based on the
LIBOR swap rate and other observable market data. The value was determined after
considering the potential impact of collateralization and netting agreciments, adjusted to reflect
nonperformance risk of both the counterparty and the Corporations.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporations’
financiat instruments not carricd al fair value at June 30, 2010 and 2009.

2050 2005

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value

Fixed rate long-term debt § 67,753,022 54,409 986 32,516,414 28,411,108

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Corporations adopted ASC Topic 820 on July 1, 2008 for fair value measurements of {inancial
assets and financial liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. ASC Topic 820
establishes a fair value hicrarchy thal prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hicrarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level ) measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements
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tnvolving significant unobscrvable inputs {(Lovel 3 measurcments). The threc leveis of the fair value

hicrarchy are as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Corporations have the ability to access at the measurement date.

. Level 2 arc observable inputs other than Level | prices such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or

liabilities.

) Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The following 1able presents the Corporations’ fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on 2 recurring basis as of Junc 30, 2010

Assets:

Investments excluding cash
surrender vajue of life
insurance policies of
£12,000:

Cash and cash
equivalents

Common stocks and
mutual funds

Corporate bonds and
notes

U.S. government agency
securilies

Total
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps

Toal

5

Fair Fair volue measurements at June 30 using
vajue Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
10,806,717 10,806,717 — —
17,104,771 17,104,771 — —
18,742,680 — 18,742,680 —
4,478,012 — 4.478,012 —
51,132,180 27,911,488 23,220,692 —
949,942 — 949,942 —
949,942 = 949.942 —
15 (Continued)
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The following table presents the Corporations’ fair value hicrarchy for those assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2009:

Assets:

Investments excluding cash
surrender value of life
insurance policies of
$13.500:

Cash and cash
equivalents

Cammon stocks and
muttual funds

Comorate bands, nates,
and fixed income
mutual funds

U.8. government agency
securties

Total

Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps

Total

(5) Concentration of Credit Risk

Fair Fair valuc mcasurements at June 30 using

value Level | Level 2 Level 3
7,288,828 7,288,828 _— —
12,527.164 12,527,164 — —
9,729,486 7,480,504 2248982 -—
2,704 996 — 2,704,996 —_
32,250,474 27,296,496 4,953,978 —

e ———

812,735 — 812,735 —
B12,735 — 812,735 —

The Corporations grant credit 10 its self-pay residents as well as those that are insured under third-party
payor agreements. The mix of receivables from residents and third-party payors as of June 30, 2010 and

2009 is as Tollows:

Medicare
Medicaid
Self pay and commercial insurance

16

000220

2010 2009
14% 20%
22 23
64 57
100% 100%
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Land, Buildings, and Equipment
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment at June 30, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2610 2009
Accumutated Accumulated
Cost depreciation Cost depreciation
Land and land improvements 3 23,381,286 1,525,934 23,037,190 1,368,424
Buildings 116,392,763 47,865,881 115,291,734 44,470,454
Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment 28,345,288 20,983,702 26,950,371 18,817,682
Construction in progress 20,096,828 — 7,114,841 —
S 188,216,165 70,375,517 171394436‘ 64,656,560

Construction in progress primarily consists of costs incurred by The Arlington of Naples, Pleasant View,
and WLVEC as they prepare for expansions and renovations, At June 30, 2010, the remaining estimated
cost associated with the completion of the Pleasant View and WLVEC projects is $25,226,564. There are
no additional contractual amounts for The Arlington of Naples project at Junc 30, 2010. Interest cost is
capitalized as a componem cost of significant capital prajects to the extent that such interest expense
exceeds interest income eamed on any project specific borrowed funds. The Corporations® capitalized
interest cost of §2,647,092 offser by capnalized intercst ncome of $57,732 at June 30, 2010 and
capitalizcd interest cost of $1,198,308 offsct by cupitalized interest income of $0 at Junc 30, 2009.

Refundable Deposits, Entrance Fees, and Deferred Revenue

Residents moving inte certain facilities of the Corporations in the past were able to elect to assign their
assets to an irrevocable trust maintained by an independent third party. The Corporations may draw against
the assets of the trust to pay for the cost of care provided to the residents. When a resident expires, the
remaining assets in the trust, if any, are distributed in accordance with the resident’s agreement. These
assets are not reflected in the accompanying vonsolidated financial statements as they are not under the

control of the Corporations.

Refundable deposits represent amounts that residents place with the Corporations to sccure services and a
living arrangement in one of the Corporations' facilitics. Entrance fees are deposited with subsidiaries,
which provide independent living units 10 residents, Entrance fee contracts provide for various refundable
and nonrefundable amounts. Deferred tevenues include both nonrefundable entrance fees and amounts

billed in advance of the service being provided or perfonned.

Net Resident Service Revenue

The Corporations hsve apgreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amoums
different from their established rates, Estimated contractual adjustments srising under third-party
reimbursement programs represent the differcnces between the Cormporations’ billings at established rates
and the amounts reimbursed by third-party payors, principally Medicaid and Medicare. They also include
any differences between estimated retroactive third-party reimbursement settlements for prior years and

subsequent final settlements,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

The Corporations have obtaincd Medicaid certification for a portion of their nursing beds and receive
all-inclusive per diem rates for Medicaid-eligible residents. To the extent that charges or rclated costs
incurred for services rendered to Medicaid beneficiaries exceed the per diem rates, they arc not recoverable
from the Medicaid program or its benefteiarics. Medicaid reimbursement methodologies and payment rates
are subject to change based on the amouni of funding available 10 the States of lllinois and Indiana
Medicaid programs, and any such changes could have a significant effect on the Corporations’ revenues.

The Corporations have aiso obtaincd Medicare centification for a portion of their nursing beds. The
Corporations are reimbursed by Medicare under a prospective payment system based primarily upon a
clinical classification system for Medicare residents. To the extent that charges or related costs incurred for
services rendered to Medicare beneficiaries exceed the per dicm rases, they are not recoverable from the
Mecdicare program or its benceficiaries.

A summary of gross and net resident service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 follows:

2010 2009
Gross resident service revenue g 93,122,518 88,791,928
Less provisions for:

Estimated contractual adjustments arising under third-party

reimbursement programs 16,870,301 15,454,934

Charity care charges foregone 1,173,885 1,668,937

Net resident service revenue b3 75,078,332 71,628,057
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June 30, 2010 and 2009

A summary of long-term debt at June 30, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

June 30, 2078 Jupe 30, 2009 2010 efTeeslve 1004 effertive
Hond peries halance belamce ‘Inlerest npe Due dutes Inrerest rate laterest race
Evonomic Developmem M -— 203,190 Vansble interesi rate of Refunded in 2010 1.64% 1250%
Conmusnan Bonds, T0% ol the prime rate
Scries 1997
Eronomic Developricnt - 561641 Viriable imerce mizof Retunded in 2010 254 2.k60
Commisaion Ronds, 0% of the pnme e
Serict 199K
Ecomomic Development 12,710,000 —  Fincdirevest raze Mawr g through 5.5% 10 8.0% -
Cummirsion Bonds. Hovanber 13, 3019
Series 2009
\Rinois Health Faciines Awthoriy 12,365,04x 12505000 Interst 31 the letmer of 15% Mazring weoeph an 1620
Weekly Adfusiehiz Rae or & 1% el variable Angon 15, 2051
Revepue Bond, Serie 2001 rare WeiermEncd weekly
$inwis Ueatth Facilivies Autherity 12255,000 12535000 Interert ulihe legsor of 15" Mann iy thraugh 1.20 180
Variable Rate {Tomard of # Tax exempl variable Nosember 1, 2033
Revetue Refunding Bonds, rate detennine,) weckly
Series 200)
Wlinnis Finnnce Autheroy )46, 000 23450000  Fiagd interen) rae Maturiliy through 2040 5.20% 10 5.75% 33P0 1%
Revenur Bunds,
Seties 2000A
TUiris Finance Awthonry 500,000 500000 Fixed interest e Aupet 15, 3019 “f0 «X00
Estendsbie Ryt Adycstable
Serwrnies Revame
Homds, Scries 2000
Hizespia Finanee Authonry - 2B0000C  Varjabie intereet rue Avgo 15,2059 247 L0
Varizbk Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds,
Serhcp 2006
Hlinnis Finanee Autany 4575 Do 4725000 Variable indomesi rane Frhruary |, 2075 044 1460
Variable Rate Deaund
Revonue Bonds, Serits 15995
Consinection Loan, S5PH TNy - Variahie #o e1e9) reie Avguw, 202 5.75 —
Mongage loam, WLV - 2392515 Flaed niered rue Retires in 2010 637 8373
Mongape loan, FVLH bl Nied] 219104 Fixed $nterest raic Scplember |, 2024 5378 K
Mongape loen AON Land 19,459,579 19459579 Varishke mlewt rae Jady 1§ 2013 6375 83%
Mongape [oan, AGM ONEce Balg w090 U34S Fizux} interest raie April 5. J0H b.115 5125
Muorgige lom, Purem 1XVEEND 2960969 Fiaed imerest raie Deeanber 31,2031 25 a2%0
[IRATEEANS 85,1158
Lesy cumen) ingualiments ol
lgng-term Jebd L9172 1,380,255
Unemiiured bond discount
aml premivm {25591} 207373
Longrcrm delw nen of curen
fgtal knems and
wramanirad bond
discomn and premivn § 14D 49350

During December §997 and January 1998, WLV and WLVEC entered into an Economic Development
Commission foan for a total commitment of $4,800,000. The Series 1997 and 1998 bonds were refunded in
December, 2000 through the issuance of the WLV and WL VEC Series 2009 Bonds.

On December 30, 2009, Scrics 2009A, 2009B, and 2009C Fixcd Rate Revenue Bonds were issued
pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture in the aggregale amount of $37,710,000 on behall of WLV and
WLVEC, together the WLV Obligated Group. The procceds of the bond issue are being used to refund the
1997 and 1998 bond issucs, to refund the mortgage loan for WLV as noted below, and to consiruct an
additional 77 units of independent living along with various common areas and an underground parking
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garage. The Serics 2009 bonds are secured by a monigage in a majority of the real property owned by the
WLV Obligawed Group. The Master Indenture allows the WLV Obligated Group to ihcur additional
indebtedness to construet up to 26 additional independent Tiving units in the future, The WLV Obligated
Group is required to maintain certain reserves and sinking funds with its bond trustee. The foan agreements
currently contain quarterly covenants related to the number of presales and occupied units. The {oan
agrecments also contain financial covenants, which are initially effective the carlier of the first full year
after stabilized occupancy is obtained for the projeck or as of June 30, 2015, The Parent has entered into a
Liquidity Suppert Agrecment with the WLV Obligated Group and the bond trustee and has funded a
Liquidity Support Fund of 31,000,000 with the bond trustec.

On Scptember 12, 200}, Series 2001 bonds were issued in the amount of $13,200,000 on behalf of LHSA,
the Home, LCSA, and the LFA Foundation (collectively, the LHSA Obligated Group) pursuant 1o a Master
Trust Indenture. As of December 1, 2007, LCSA withdrew from the LHSA Obligated Group in accordance
with the provisions of the Master Tiust [ndenture, The LHSA Obligated Group has obtained a letter of
credit, which expires on August 15, 2013 as collateral for the Series 2001 bonds.

On November 10, 2003, the Hlinois Health Facilities Authority issued variable rate demand revenug
refunding bonds, Series 2003, in the amount of $14,350,000 on behalf of the LHSA Obligated Group. The
Scrics 2003 bonds were issued pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. Principal payments arc due cach
November 1, and interest is payable monthly. The Series 2003 bonds were issued principally to advance
zefund the then-outstanding Series 1995A bonds. The LHSA Obligaied Group has obtained a letter of
credit, which expires on November 15, 2012 as collateral for the Scries 2003 bonds.

Certain assets of the LHSA Obligated Group are pledged as collateral for the bonds and the letier of credit.
Holders of the Series 2001 and Series 2003 bonds have a pul option that allows theim 1o redeem the bonds
prior to matunity. The LHSA Obligated Group has an agreement with an underwriter to remarket any bonds
redeemed through the exercise of put options. The Serics 2001 and Scries 2003 bonds are accelerable in
the event the LHSA Obligated Group is unable 1o extend or replace the letier of credit securitizing the

bonds.

For bonds issued under the Master Trust Indenture, the LHSA Obligated Group is required to maintain
certain reserves and sinking funds with its bond trusice. The LHSA Obligated Group is also required to be
in compliance with specified debt covenants and financial ralios. Bonds issued under the Master Trust
Indenture are also secured by the unrestricted receivables of the LHSA Obligated Group as well as certain
real property of the Home. Management believes the LHSA Obligated Group is compliant with the
specificd debt covenants and financial ratios.

On Apri) 19, 2006, Luther Oaks entered into a Master Trust Indenture under which Luther Oaks is the only
Obligated Group member (the Luther Oaks Obligated Group). The purpose of the Master Trust Indenture
i5 to provide a mechanism for the efficient and economical issuance of notes by the Luther Oaks Obligated
Group member. The Master Trust Indenture requires the member of the Luther Oaks Obligaied Group to
make principal and interest payments on notes issued for its benefit and to pay such amoums as are
otherwise necessary to enable the Luther Oaks Obligated Group to satisfy all obligations issucd under the
Master Trust Indenture.
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On April 19, 2006, Scries 2006A Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 20068 Extendable Rate Adjustable
Securities Revenue Bonds, and Series 2006C Varjable Rate Demand Revenuc Bonds (collectively referred
to as the Series 2006 bonds) were issued pursuant to a Master Trust [ndenturc in the aggregate amount of
$30,460,000 on behalf of the Luther Oaks Obligated Group., The Scries 2006 bonds arc secured by a
Jeaschold mortgage in the propenty, the new CCRC building and equipment, and future revenue streams to
be provided by the CCRC. The Series 2006C bonds are also secured, unn] fully redeemed, by an
irrevocable transferable letter of credit issued by & commercial bank, in an amount equal to the principal
amount of the bonds and accrued interest on such principal. Holders of the Serics 2006 bonds have a put
aption that allows them 1o redeem the bonds prior to maturity. The Luther Oaks Obligated Group member
has an agreement with an underwriter to remarket any bonds redeemed through the exercise of put options,
The loan agreements currently contain quarterly covenants telated to the number of presales and occupied
units. The loan agreements also contain financial covenants, which are initially effective the earlier of the
first full year afier stabilized occupancy is obtained for the new CCRC or 2011, Luther Oaks redecmed the
final amount of the 2006C Bonds in February 2010.

In March 1995, 5t Pauls issued $6,500,000 of Variable Rate Demand Revenuce Bonds (the 1995 Bonds)
under the provisions of a Bend Trust Indenture (3t Pauls Indemure). Interest is set at a weekly rate as
defined by the agreement. The 1995 Bonds are secured by a transferable irrevocable direct pay letier of
credit, which expires in February 2013, and is required 1o be replaced with another letter of credit upon
expiration. The letter of credit is secured by the real and personal property of St Pauls. §t Pauls is required
10 be in compliance with specified debt covenants and financial ratios based on the 1995 bond agreement.

In August, 2009, St Pauls entered into a $730,000 Construction Loan Agreement with the Bank of
America. The loan was drawn upon as nceded 10 renovate a 24-unit wing of St Pauls House for short term
siay Medicare residents. Interest is sct at a certain £1BOR plus 2.75% and can be reset every one to three
months a1 St Pauls® option, The intcrest rate is subjeet 10 o floor rate of 5.75%. The loan must be repaid in
equal monthly installments beginning Junc 1, 2010, at 1/60th of the total amount outstanding as of that
date. The loan matures on August 12, 2012,

WLV maintaincd a $2,800,000 revolving line of credit and permanent loan agreement with the Lutheran
Church Extension Fund-Missouri Synod, which was to cxpire on July 1, 2006, On July [, 2006, the
then-outstanding principal balance converted to a 20-ycar term loan with monthly payments of principal
and intercst at the lender’s cost of capital plus 2.000%, which was 6.375%. The loan agreement is secured
by cerain WLV real estate. This loan was retired on December 30, 2009, with proceeds from the WLV
Obligated Group Serics 2009 bond issue, as noted above.

In July 2006, Pleasant View entered into a 20-year promissory note agreement for 32,600,000 with the
Mission Investment Fund of The Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. The promissory note is sceured
by certain property and rcal estate rejated to the nursing fucility on the Pleasant View campus. The
Evangelical Lutheran Church in Amcrica has the right 10 review and adjust the interest rate on July §,
2011, July 1, 2016, and July 1, 202},

In November 2006, LLC cntered into a 25-year promissory note agrecmept for $3,100,000 with the
Mission Investment Fund of The Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. The Evangelical Lutheran
LChureh in America has the right to review and adjust the interest rate on December 1, 2011, December 1,
2016, December 1, 2021, and December 1, 2026. The note is guaranteed by LHSA.
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In July 2008, The Arlington of Naples, Inc. entered into a five-ycar promissory note agreement for
$19,500,000 with the ELutheran Church Extension Fund (LCEF.) The promissory note is sccured by
approximately 39 acres of land in Naples, Florida, The LCEF has the right to review and adjust the interest
rate each month. Two million dollars of the note is guaranteed by LLC.

In March 2009, The Arlington of Naples, Inc. entered into a 15-year promissory note agreement for
£920,000 with MainSource Bank. The note is secured by an office building in Naples, Florida, MainSource
Bank has the right to review and adjust the inferest rate on March 10, 2014 and every 60 months thereafter.
The note is guaranteed by LLC.

The Corporations have variable rate demand notes that have put options available 1o the creditor. If the put
option is exercised, the bonds arc presented to the bank, which in tumn draws on the underlying letter of
credit. The series and the underlying credit facility terins are described as follows:

Series Letter of Credit Reimbursement Terms

Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 Equal guarterly instailments over the werms of the
letter of credit through August 2013, starting with
the first day of the second calendar quarter that the
term loan is given.

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 Equal monthly installments over 24 months
through November 2012, starting 367 days from the

date that the term loan is given.

Illinois Finance Authority Bonds, Series 1995 Payment is due on the expiration date stated on the
letter of credit agreement of February 2013,

llinois Finance Authority Variable Rate The letter of credit on these bonds was cancetled
Detnand Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 when the bonds were fully redeemed in
February 2010.

Scheduled principal repayments on fong-term debt based on the variabie rate demand nates being put back
10 the Corporations and a corresponding draw being made on the underlying letter of credit facility are as

follows:

Year ending June 30:
2011 s t,977,832
2012 11,226,406
2013 16,374,783
2014 28,230,297
2015 5,718,846
Thereafier 53,577,270

S 117,105,434
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Scheduled principal repayments on the long-term debt based on the scheduled redemptions according to
the underlying Master Trust Indentures are as follows

Year:
201 ¥ 1,096,332
2012 1,137,906
2013 1,796,283
2014 27,853,797
2015 6,613,846
Thereafter 78,607,270

$_ 117,105,434

The LHSA Obligated Group and the Luther Oaks Obligated Group {collectively, the Obligated Groups)
have interest rate related derivative instruments to manage their exposure on their vaniable rate Series 2003
debt and variebie rate Sertes 2006C bonds. By using derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to
changes in interest rates, the Obligaled Groups expose themselves to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk
is the fatlure of the counterpartics 10 perform under the terms of the derivative contracts. When the fair
value of a denvative contract is positive, the counterparties owe the Obligated Groups, which creates credit
risk for the Obligated Groups. When the fair valuc of a dedivalive coniract is negative, the Obligated
Groups owe the countcrparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The Obligated Groups
minimize the credit risk in derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quatity
counterparties. Market risk is the adverse cffect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a
change in interest rates,

The Obligated Groups entered into interesl rate swap agreemenis in Novemnber 2003 and April 2006 to
manage flucluations in cash flows resulling from interest rate risk on its variable rate Series 2003 and
Series 2006C debt, respectively. The swap agreements change the variable raie cash flow exposure on the
Series 2003 and Series 2006C debt 1o fixed cash flows. The agreement related to the Series 2006C bonds
expired on June 30, 2009. Under the terms of the interest rate swap agreements, the Corporaticons receive
variable interest rate payments and make fixed interest rate payments, thereby creating the cquivalent of
{ixed-rate debt. A summary of outstanding positions under the floating 1o fixcd rate swap agreements for
the Corparations at June 38, 2010 follows:

Notional

amount Maturity date Rate received Rate paid
$ 12,255,000 November 2013 BMA Index, reset monthly 3.385%

A summary of outsianding positions under the floating 10 fixed rate swap agreements for the Corporations
at June 30, 2009 follows:

Notional
amount Maturity date Rate received Rate paid
5 12,635,000 November 2013 BMA Index, reset monthly 3.383%
23 (Continued)
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As of June 30, 2009, the interest rate swap agreement for the Luther Oaks Obligated Group came to
maturity and was not replaced. The fair value of the Serics 2003 Bonds interest rate swap agreement of
5(949,942) and $(812,735) is included in fair value of inlerest ratc swap agreements in long-term liabilities
at june 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. During the first quarter of 2009, the swap on the Series 2003
Bonds was deemed to be ineffective. The change in fair value of the interest ratc swap agreement of
$(137,207) and $(427,662) is recorded in nonoperating gains and losses at June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Lincs of Credit

St Pauls has access to a line of credit through a revolving note with Bank of America in the amount of
$500,000. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2010 was $500,000. Payments of interest are payable at
prime plus 2% or the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The iine of credit matures in
February 2013 and is s¢cured by the same assets as the 1995 Bonds.

In 2008, WLV entered into an agreement for a ling of credit through a revolving note with First Midwest
Bank in the amount of $2,000,000. Borrowings on the line of credit were being used to pay for
devclopmental costs for the expansion of independent living units at WLV, In 2009, the line of credit was
increased 10 $2,500,000 and the maturity date was extended from Avgust 8, 2009 to December 31, 2009.
Interest was set at LIBOR plus 1.75%. The baleance at June 30, 2010 was 30 as this line of credit was
redcemed with the issuance of the proceeds from the WLV Obligated Group Series 2009 bonds.

In January 2008, the LHSA Obligated Group cntered into an agreement for a line of credit through a
revolving note with Fifth Third Bank in the amount of $2,000,000. In December, 2009, this line of credit
was increased to $4,000,000. The balance outstanding a1 June 30, 2010 was $2,860,000. Interest is sct at
cither a Base Rate or a LIBOR Rate depending on the advance taken by the LHSA Obligated Group. The
Base Rate is the lender’s prime rate less 1.50%. The LIBOR Rate is sct at LIBOR. The line of credit

matures in Japuary 2012,

In January 2009, the Foundation entered into an agreement for a margin loan through Landmark Capital in
the amount of $2,910,347, which cqualed the cutstanding balance at June 30, 2010. Interest is sct on a
formula based on the rate of brokers’ call inoney.
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Capital Leases

The Corporations lcase certain equipment under capital leases. Included with fand, buildings, and
equipment are $1,618,490 a1 both June 30, 2010 and 2009, of asscts held under capital leascs and $975,000
and $687,014 of related accumulated amortization at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. A summary of
future minimum lease payments and the present value of future minimum lease payments related to capital
leases at Junc 30, 2010 is as follows:

Amount
Year:
2011 S 238,869
2012 58,921
2013 —
Total future minimum Jease payments 287 790
Less amount representing interest at rates ranging from 0% to 10.00% 13,964
Present value of future minimum [ease payments 283,826
Less current portion of obligations under capital leases 225,698
Obligations under capital leases, excluding current portion 3 38,128

Employces’ Pension Plaas

S1 Pauls spensored a contributory profit sharing plan (money purchase plan) covering substantially all full
time cmployees. St Pauls froze this plan as of December 31, 2007, and it will be terminated once all
participant batances are paid out. As of January |, 2008, LLC began sponsoring a contributory profit
sharing ptan (the LLC Plan), The LLC Plan is designated as a church plan (403(b}(9)} under ERISA, which
provides specific reporting and tax advantages and covers substantially all full time employees of all
subsidiaries of LLC. Employcr contributions 1o the LLC Plan are discretiopary. In addition, cach
participant can clect salary reduction under the 403(b}(9) plan. LLC can ¢lect each year to mateh a portion
of these salary deferrals, Expense recopgnized under the terms of the LLC Plan at all entities amounted to
$839,434 and $713,110 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively,

Luther Yillage Limited Partrership

LHSA is the lessor of a land leasce agreement with Luther Village Limited Partnership {the Partnership), an
unrclated party, for a term of 99 years with an option to renew for a second term of 99 years. The
Partnership has constructed a number of cooperative apartment and townhome units that may be purchased
by individuals at lcast 55 years of age. Owners pay a monthly ground rent to the Paninership in addition 10
the initial cost of their unil. A new lease rate for rent 1o be paid is renegotiated every 10 years. On
November 8, 2009, LHSA agreed to a new lcase rate of 31,090,000 per year to be received from the
Partnership for the ncxt 10 years. The leasc amount is based on a formula which is calculated every 10
years. The lease amount will be recalenlated as of November 8, 2019, and in each succeeding 10-year

period through November 8, 2079.
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In exchange for the land leasc and in addition to the annual lease payments, the Partnership makes the
fallowing payments to the Home:

» 0.5% of the sales price of units purchased by initial buyers; and

. The entirc amount of the monthly ground rent submitted to the Pantnership.

The fees eamed by the Home related to the land lease totaled $1,074,998 and 31,045,000 for cach of the
years ended June 30, 210 and 2009, respectively, and are included with other nonoperating gains and
losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations,

in addition, the Home performs certain medical and other suppert services for the Partnership in exchange
for service fees. The service fees eamed related to the provision of such services amounted to $145,249
and $137,748 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and have been reflected as other
revenue in the accompanying consolidated staiements of operations.

Equity Investments

Equity investments accounted for using the equity mcthod of accounting represented $2,125,762 and
$1,847,248 of other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. The most significant of these investments include:

Health Resources Alliance, Inc., the parent company of Midwest Senior Care Network (MSCN), for which
the Home has provided a $190,000 letter of credit, draws on which are guaranteed by LHSA. No amounts
have been accrued or paid pursuant to this agreement as of June 30, 2010.

The Home and St Pauls cach have a 1/15th equity interest in MSCN, The invesiment in MSCN is included
in other assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and is being accounted for using the equity
method because of the significant influence the Corporations have over MSCN. The Corporations have
included their propottionate shares of MSCN net income of $481,178 and $531,268 as other nonoperating
gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for 2010 and 2009,

respectively.

Caring Communities Insurance Company (Caring Communities) for which the capital investment is being
accounted for using the equity method and included in other assets in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets. Accordingly, the Comorations have included their proportionate share of Caring
Communities net income (loss) in the amounts of 33,668 and ${22,915) as other nonoperating gains and
losses in the accompanying 2010 and 2009 consalidated statements of operations, respectively.

Effective April ], 2008, the Corporations entered into a contraciual agreement to join Sumnmit Insurance
Group, Lid (Summit), a sclf-insurance administrator which, through its risk-sharing provisions, provides
the Corporations with insurance coverage for workers' compensation coverage. Summit 15 a
multiorganization insurance company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman lslands. As a
self-insurance adminisirator, Summit enables risk sharing among participating organizations. The
Corporations are required 10 pay assessed premiums and are subject to a per claim self-insured retention.
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The Corporations’ workers' compensation program includes various levels of per claim self~insured
retentions and excess commercial insurance coverages. Included in operating expenses are $846,756 in
2010 and $654,955 in 2009 for the uliimate cost of reported self insured workers’ compensation claims, as
well gs estimates of incurred but not reported claims.

The capital investment in Summit is being accounted for using the equity method and is included in other
assets in the accompanying consolidated balance shects. At this time, the Corporations are not entitled to
receive a distribution of Summit’s net income.

For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, 1he Corporations recognized income of $484,846 and
$508,353, respectively, in investments in affiliated companies, This activity is included as a component of
other nonoperating gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Charitable Gift Annuities

The Corporations arc the recipiem of various chantable gift annuities. Such pifis are rccognized as
contribution revenue in the period received, net of any estimated liability for amounts payable to the
annuitant in future perieds pursuant to the terms of 1he respective charitable gitt annuity contract.
Permanently Restricted Asseis

Endowment fund activity for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2010 2009
Permanently restricted net assets, December 31, 2009 S 4,032,949 3,245,948
Current year contributions 224,697 786,001
Permanently restricted net assets, December 31, 2010 S 4,757,646 4,032,949

Commitmenis and Contingencics
{a)  Professional and General Liability Self-Insurance

Through December 31, 2001, the Corporations maintained professional liabilivy coverage through
commercial insurance carriers. Effective January 1, 2002, the Corporntions entered into a contractual
agreement to formm Caring Communities, a sclf-insurance adminisirator, which provides the
Corporations with insurance coverage for professional and comprehensive gencral liability exposure.
Insurance expense under the Caring Communitics program amounied to $737 681 and 3716,419 in
2010 and 2009, respectively. Caring Communities may retroactively assess participants for up to
twice their annual premium per coverage year based on adverse participani-specific claims
experience as defined in the policy. Based on the Corporations® historical claims expericnece and
exposure 1o date, no reserves were established at June 30, 2010 or 2009 for cither rctroactive

premium assessments Or tail exposures.
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Emplayee Health and Welfare Self-Insurance

Through July 31, 2009, the Corporations maintained professional liability coverage through
commercial insurance carmiers, Effective August 1, 2009, the Corporations entered into a contraciual
agreement with Benelils Administrative Systems, a self-insurance administrater, which provides the
Corporations with insurance coverage for its employces who are cligible for health and welfare
insurance. Jnsurance expense under the employee health and welfare insurance program amounied 1o
$4,401,023 in 2010.

Medicare Reimbursement Changes

Medicare reimburses providers of long-term care services at a prospective payment system for
skilled nursing services and imposes a cansolidated billing requirement. Changes in Medicare
reimbursement as a result of the Centers for Mcedicare and Medicaid Services’ interpretations and
applications of thesc and other provisions of Medicare legislation may have an adverse cffect on the
Corporations’ nel resident service revenuc.

Litigation
The Corporations are involved in litigation arising in the nommal course of business. ln consultation

with legal counsel, management estimates that these matters will be reselved without material
adverse effect on the Corporations® financial position or results of operations.

Regulatory Investigations

The U.S. Deparument of Justice and other federal agencics routinely conduet regulatory
investigations and compliance audits of healthcare providers. The Corporations are subject to these
regulatory efforts. Management is curremily unaware of any regulatory matters, which may have a
material adverse effect on the Corporations’ financial position or results from operations,

Ground Lease

During 2006, Luther Oaks entered into a 99-year ground lcase agrcemcnt with Trinity Lutheran
Church (Lessor). The lease calls for annual rent 10 be based on 10% of the appraised land value,
which will be reset every five years, The lease commencement daic was set as the beginning of the
month in which the first resident moves into the facility, which occurred in the fall of 2007, In
September 2007, Luther Oaks also funded a $120,000 deposit account for the benefit of the Lessor as

required by the ground lease agreement.

Subsequent Events

In connection with the preparation of the financial statements and in accordance with the recently issued
ASC Topic 855, Subseguent Evenus, the Corporations cvaluated subsequent events after the consolidated
balance sheet date of Junc 30, 2010 through October 26, 2010, which was the date the financial staiements
were issued, and determined there are no other items 1o disclose.
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KPMG LLP

303 East Wacker Drive
Chicaga, IL 63601-5212

Indcpendent Auditors’ Report

The Boards of Directors
TLutheran Life Communitics and Subsidiaries:

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lutheran Life Communities and
Subsidiaries {the Corporations) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the rclated consolidated statiements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial
statements arc the responsibility of the Corporations’ management. Our responsibility is 10 express an
apinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing andit procedures that arg appropriate in he
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporations’
intermnal contral over finaneial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit atso inciudes
examining, on a test basis, cvidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financiz! statement presentation. We believe that cur audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Corporations as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with

U.8. generally accepted accounting principles.

Qur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financia) statements 1aken
as a whole. The consolidating information included in schedules 1 through 5 is presented for purposcs of
additional analysis of the consolidated financial staiements rather than to present the financial position and
results of gperations of the individual corporations. The consolidating infonmation, except for schedule 5
marked “unaudited,” on which we express no opinion, has been subjecied to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
anaterial respects in relation o the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

KPMas LLP

Qctaber 27, 2011

WG LLP o o Delsas Emctsd KabMly pedoersi,
thi U5 member fem of KWG Mwunatonsl Cogperitve
FHPMG ilamationall), & Swhis enttty.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2051 and 2050

Assets 2011 2010
Currcnt assels:
Cash and cash equivalents 5 9,285,551 5,240,955
Assets whose use is Himited or restricted 1,992,919 £,152,701

Resident accounts receivable, net of allowance for
doubtiul accounts of $672,347 and $739,500 in

2011 and 2019, respectively 11,427,913 il1,223,61!
Other receivables 2,553,772 1,594,152
Inventory of supplics and other 834,647 1,445,855

Total current assels 26,094,802 20,657,274
Assets whose use is limited or restricted, net of amounts required
for current liabilities:

Board designated 6,683,832 6,062,524

Resident deposits for future funeral, occupancy, and care costs 5,710,438 3,907,046

Held by trustee under bond indenture agreement 26,830,798 24,937,787

Donor-restricted investments 5,490,878 8,552,873

Total noncurrent asscts whase use is limited
or restricted 44,715,946 43,460,230
Land, buildings, and equipment, nct of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 147,633,071 117,840,648
Cosls Lo acquirg initial continuing carc contracts 5,643,940 4,542,947
Investments 9,332,786 6,467,013
Apency funds 50,311 64,236
Deferred financing costs, net 3,832,517 2,881,145
Invesiments in joint ventures 2,304,568 2,125,762
Total assets § 239,607,941 198,039,255
Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
2
ATTACHMENT 39
000242




Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Current instaliments of long-term debt
Line of credit
Current portion of obligations under capital leases
Accounts payable
Accrucd interest payable
Accrued compensation and other liabilities

Total current liabilitics

Long-term debt, excluding current instaliments and unamortized
bond discount and premium

Obligations under capital leases, net of current portion

Deferred revenue from nonrefundable entrance fees

Residents’ custodial assets

Resident entrance fees

Reserve for funeral expenses

Resident deposits

Charitable gift annuity contracts

Agency funds

Other long-tenn liabilities

Total liabilitics

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilitics and net assets

000243

2011 2010
§ 3,111,884 1,977,832
5,808,47 6,270,347
318,545 225,698
6,568,888 5,078,213
4,347 447 3,175,128
5,458,949 4,222,020
25,609,184 20,949,238
137,705,476 114,848,011
419,143 58,128
1,563,659 729,728
387,210 403,187
28,888,103 17,401,931
12,800 24,100
2,074,038 1,934,997
450,250 477,812
50,311 64,236
283,022 1,231,537
197,943,196 158,122,905
29,168,021 27,825,761
7,006,096 7,832,943
5,490,628 4,257,646
41,664,745 39,916,350
§ 239,607,941 198,039,255
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended Junc 30, 20t 1 and 2010

Operating revenue:
Net resident service revenue:
Resident service revenue, net of contractual allowances
Provision for bad debts

Nel resident service revenue

Other revenuc
Net assets relcased from restrictions used for operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employce benefits
Support services
Dietary services
Program scrvices
Administrative services
Community services
Fund-raising
Interest
Depreciation and amortization

Total operaling expenses
Loss from operations

Nongperating gains and losses:
Investment income
Unrestricted contributions
Bequests and lepacies
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on trading securitics
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Other, net

Total noneperating gains, net
Revenue and gains deficient of expenses and losses

Other changes in unrestricted net assets:
Net assets released from restriction for land, building, and
gquipment acquisitions

Changc in unrestricted net assets

Sce accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

000244

2011 2010
80,734,930 75,078,332
(659,602) (383,942)
80,075,328 74,694,390
10,936,671 8,962,920
674,040 476,060
91,686,039 84,133,370
44,809,664 43,273,766
12,242,761 (0,574,875
10,684,891 10,006,680
3,912,613 3,593,279
6,069,114 5,255,335
6,471,485 6,296,770
2,343.250 1,932,163
420,006 225,502
3,559,448 3,227,159
6,076,779 6,088,894
96,590,011 90,474,423
{4,903,972) (6,341,053)
946,908 538,565
477,633 457,413
74,460 209,300
2,917,062 2,458,774
192,381 (137,207
{181,508) 896,686
4,426,936 4,423,531
(477,036) (1,917,522)
1,819,296 —
1,342,260 (1,917,522)
ATTACHMENT 39



LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statemenits of Changes in Net Assets
Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Change in unrestricted net assets b 1,342,260 (1,917,522)
Temporarily restricted net assets:
Net contributions for specific purposes 1,666,489 3,351,378
Release of restricted net asscts for operations {2,493,336) {476,060)
Change in temporarily restricted net assets (826,847) 2,875,318
Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions 1,232,982 224,697
Change in net assets 1,748,395 1,182,493
Net assets at beginning of year 39,916,350 38,733,857
Net assets al end of year b 41,664,745 39,916,350
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial staterents.
5
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statemenis of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 010
Cash flows from operting activitics and pains:
Change in net asscis M 1,748,395 1,182,493
Adjustments to recongile change in net asscis 1o nel cesh provided by
operating activities and gaing:
Depreciation and amortizalion 6,076,779 6,082 894
Anartization of entrance fecs and refundsble deposits (478,157) {241,534)
Amortization of deferred finance costs 155,709 114,420
Provision for bod debnisg 659,602 383,042
Change in fair value of derivative instruments {192,381} 132,207
Change in net unrealized gains ang tosses [2,917,062) {2,458,779)
Net realized pains on sale of invesimenty (121,962) {206,594)
Change in sctuarial vatue of gifl annuity obligations 98,442 79,016
Contributions of permenenily resiricted net assena (1,232,982) {224,697
Changes in assels and liabilitics:
Resident accounts raceivable {863,904} {3.507,107)
Other receivables {959,620) (591,887)
Invenlesy of supplies and other 611,208 {708,097)
Investmen! in joint ventures and agency funds {164,841) {282,619)
Accounts payable 1,490,675 545,673
Accrued interest paynble 1,167,319 1,443 865
Accrued compensation and other lisbilities 939,593 {646,521
Deferted occupancy and care revenue and refundable deposits 1,149,137 (397,782)
Net cash provided by operating activitics and gaing 7,165,910 749,896
Cash flows from investing aclivities:
Nel purchases of asseis whase use is limited or restricied (2,095,934) (19,467,864}
Nel sales of investmens 173,251 3257131
Acquisition of lend, buildings, und cquipment (35.869,202) [16.191,966)
Casts to acquire initial continuing care contracts (1,100,995 (1.168,186)
Increase (decrense) in resident deposits 139,041 _ (181,51%)
Nel cash used in investing activitics (38,753,837) (33.252,400)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-1etm debt, net of discounts 27,715,040 37,953,029
Repayrment of long-lerm deb (3.723,523) (7.471,391)
el repayment of obligations under capital leases 453,862 (294,160
Proceeds from entrance fees and refundable deposils 13,461,164 3,848,297
Refunds paid on entrance fees and refundable deposits (1,812,038 (987,126}
Payments for deferred finoncing cosis (1,107,081} (4,422,667}
Proceeds from draw on line of credit 1,138,124 6,216,442
Repaymein of line of credit {1,600,000) (4,450,000)
Conmtributions of penmanentiy restricted net assets 1,232,982 224,697
Net repayments of charitable gif) annuity contracts (126,004) {132,326}
Nei cash provided by financing activities 35,632,523 33,484,795
et increase in cash and cash equivelents 4,044,596 482,291
Cosh and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5.240,955 4,758,664
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 9,285,55) 5,240,955
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounis capitalized $ 2,392,129 1,783,294
Supplemental disclosure of noncash transactions:
s (96,360 —

Assels acquired under capitol lease

See pccompanying notes to consolidaled financial statcments.
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010

Organization and Purpose

Lutheran Life Communities (the Parent} and its subsidiaries were established through a comumon religious
heritage with the Lutheran Church-Missouri Synod and the Evangefical Lutheran Church in America to
provide nursing and residential living arrangements for the aged. The Parent and its subsidiarics also
sponsor programs and activities that provide hospice services, counscling, education, outreach, home care,
day care, and other support services to the community. The affiliated organizations {collectively with the
Parent 1o be referred to as the Corporations) are under the common control of the Parend, and include the

following cntitics:

Lutheran Life Communities {(LLC) is an Jilincis not-for-profit cerporation formed in 2005 for the
purpose of developing new and innovative services for seniors, establishing a scnior living system,
and providing supervision and management to the facilities.

Lutheran Life Communiiies Foundation (LLC Foundation) coordinates fund-raising activities thai
support the benevolent care and other programs at LLC and all of #ts subsidiaries. The LLC
Foundation was formerly known as St, Pauls House Foundation.

Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc, (LHSA) provides management scrvices 10 its
consolidated affiliatcs and other affiliated centitics in 1llincis and also operates a 100-unit assisted

living facility.
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. (thc Home), located in Arlington Heights, Hlinois, comprises

274 skilled and 60 imermediate licensed nursing care beds, as well as 58 licensed sheltered care
units, providing nursing and other services associated with daily living 1o residents of the Home.

Lutheran Community Services for the Apged, Ine. (LCSA) offers family support services, child care
scrvices, home health services, and counseling to residents of the Home, their familics, siaff, and the

surrounding community.

Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. (the LFA Foundation} coordinates fund-raising activitics that
support the bencvolent care and other programs at the Home.

Wittenberg Lutheran Village, Inc. (WLV), located in Crown Point, indiana, comprises 155 skilled
nursing care beds providing nursing and other services to its residents,

Wittenberg Luthcran Village Endowment Corporation {WLVEC), located in Crown Point, Indiana,
Is a continuing ¢are retirement cormunity (CCRC) comprising 20-new Villas, 57 new independent
living units, a 32-cottage retirement community, and a 32-unit assisted living facility providing
senior living and community-based services to its residents.
Pleasant View Luther Home, Inc. (Pleasant View) became affiliated with LLC in 2005 and operates
a CCRC in Quawa, Illinois, comprising 36 independent living units, 24 assisted living units, and a
90-bed skilled nursing facility
{uther Qaks, Inc. (Luther Oaks) locaied in Bloomingion, lincis, is CCRC comprising
90 independent living units and 58 assisted living units.
St Pauls House and Health Care Center (St Pauls) became affiliated with LLC in 2006 and operates a
retirement facility in Chicago, Illinois, comprising 68 assisted living beds and a 96-bed skilled
nursing facility.
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The Arlington of Naples was incorporated in 2008. Effective July 18, 2008, this comporation
purchased a parce) of land to develop a new facility in Naples, Florida, for $17,800,000. The debt to
purchase the land is funded by the Lutheran Church Extension Fund, an unrelated party, and
amounts to $19,489,579 as of June 30, 2011,

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policics

The following significant accounting policies of the Corporations are utilized in presenting the
consolidated financial statements:

{a)

(b}

fc)

Revenue and Gains Deficient of Expenses and Losses

The consclidated statcments of operations include revenue and gains deficient of expenses and
Josses. Transactions deemed by management 1o be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
resident care and community support services arc reported as revenue and expenses. Transactions
incidental to the provision of resident care and community support services are reporied as
noneperating gains and losses. Changes in unrestricted net assets excluded from revenue and gaing
deficient of expenses and losses, consistent wilh industry practice, include transfers of asscts among
affiliated not-for-profit eutitics for other than goods or services and contributions of long-lived assets
{including assets acquired using contributions, which by donor restrictions were to be used for the

purpose of acquiring such assets),

Donor Restrictions

Unconditional promiscs to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the promise
is reccived. Unrestricted contributions, bequests, and legacies are recorded as other revenue of the
Rome and LCSA and as nonoperating gains of the LFA Foundation, LLC Foundation, and WLVEC.
Contributions arc reported as either temporarily or permanently restricied support if they are received
with donor stipulations that limit the usc of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that
is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose rcstriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and repornied in the consolidated
siatements of operations as net assets released from restriction. The receipt of gifls of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived asscts are reported as restricted net asscls. Expirations
of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in

service.

Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has been limited by donors for 2 specific 1ime
period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets are those whose use has been restricted by
donors in perpetuity. Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010 principally
represent amounts restricted for a specific affiliated organization based on the donor's intent.
Permanently restricted net assets represent investments to be held in perpetuity, the income from
which is unrestricted and is primarily expendable to support operations.
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The Corporations record donor-restricted net assets under Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
Topic 958-205, Not-for-Profis Entities Presemtation of Financial Statements, which codified an
earlier Financial Accounting Standards Board Staff Position FAS 117-1, Endowments of
Not-for-Profit Organizations: Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version of the
Uniform Prudent Management of Insiitutional Funds Aet (UPMIFA), and Enhanced Disclosures for
All Endowment Funds. ASC Topic 958-205 provides guidance on the net asset classification of
donor-restricted endowment funds lor a not-for-profit organization and requires additiona) disclosure
about endowment funds (both donor-restricted and board-designated).

The Corporations classify as permanently restricted nct assets the original value of gifis donated to
the permanent endowment, the original value of subsequent gifls to the permanent endowment, and
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument. Investment returns in excess of spending are classified as increases in
temporanly restricted net assets until appropriated for expenditure by the Corporations.

Endowment funds are commingled with the pooled investment fund administered by the
Corporations. The Corporations rely on # total rewrn strategy in which investmeni returns are
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and
dividends). The Corporations target a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on
cquity-bascd investments to achieve its long-term retum objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Charity Care

The Corporations provide charity care to residents who meet certain criteria under their benevolent
care policies without charge or at amounts less than their established rates. Because the Cosporations
do not pursue collection of amounts determined 1o qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenues. The Corporations have not changed their charity care or uninsured discount policies during
fiscal year 2011 or 2010.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of presentation in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents

include cash on hand, demand deposits, and money market accounts excluding amounts held as
investments and assets whose use is limited or restricted,

Assets Whose Use is Limited or Restricted

Assets whose use is limited or restricted include: asscts assigned to the Corporations by residents to
cover the cost of their future care and scrvices, including asscts held by a trustee under bond
indenture agreements and all donor-restricted assets. Asscts whose use is limited or restricted are
classified as current assets to the extent they are required to satisfy obligations classified as current
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets or if the asseis are held in cash and cash

equivalents for any current or long-tern liability.

Resident Accounts Receivable

In July20L1, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2011-07, Presentation and
Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, ond the Allowance for Doubtful
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Accounts for Certain Health Care Entities (ASU 2011-07). ASU 2011-07 requires that entities that
recognize significant amounts of resident service revenue at the time the services are rendered even
though they do not assess the resident’s ability to pay, must present the provision for bad debis
related to resident service revenue as a deduction from resident service revenue (net of contractual
allowances and discounts) on the statement of operations. All other entities would continue to
present the provision for bad debts as an operaling expense. In addition, therc are enhanced
disclosures about the entities policies for recognizing revenue and assessing bad debts. The ASU also
requires disclosures of resident service revenue as well as qualitztive and quantitative information
about changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts. The Corporations adopted ASU 2011-07 in
2011 retroactive fo July t, 2009.

Resident accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtful accounts. In cvaluating the
collectibility of resident accounts receivable, the Corporations analyze their past history and identify
trends for each of their major payor sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for
doubtful accounts and provision for bad debts. Management regularly reviews data about these major
payer sources of revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. For
receivables associated with services provided 1o residents who have third-party coverage, the
Corporations analyze contractually due amounts and provide an allowance for doubtful accounts and
a provision for bad debts, if necessary {c.g., for expected uncoliectible deductibles and copayments
on accounts for which the third-party payor has not yct paid, or for payors who are known ta be
having financial difficulties that make the realization of amounts duc unlikely}. For receivables
associated with private-pay residents (which includes both residents without insurance and residents
with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the
bill}, the Corporations record a provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis of its past
cxperience. The difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the
amounts actually collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted is charged off
against the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Inventory

Inventory of supplics is reported at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market,

Land, Buildings, and Equipment

Land, buildings, and equipment are stated at cost, or if donated, at fair value at date of donation, less
accumulated depreciation. Assets acquired under capital lease are recorded at the net present value of
minimurm lease paymems. Depreciation is provided over the estimated uscful life of each class of
depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line method. Amertization of assets under capital
lease is provided over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the asset or the respective lease term.

Land, buildings, and cquipment are periodically assessed for recoverability based on the occurrence
of a significant adverse event or change in the environment in which the Corporations operate or if
the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest) would become less than the
carrying amount of the asset. An impairment loss would be recorded in the period such
determination is made based op the fair value of the related entity. No impairments were recorded for
the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2011 and 2010

Investinents

Investment income, realized gains (losses), and unrcalized gains and losses on trading securities
classified as unrestricted investments are rccorded as nonoperating gains (losses) of the
Corporations. Investment income and realized pains (losses) from temporarily restricted investments
are recorded as other revenuc of the Corporations, Invesiment income and realized gains (losses)
from permanently restricted investments are recorded as nonoperating gains (losses) since such
income (loss) is unrestricted by the donors, All of the Corporations’ investments are classificd as

trading securities.

Costs to Acquire Initial Continuing Care Contracts

Costs to acquire initial continuing care contracts (the Costs) consist principally of marketing and
advertising costs incurred directly in relation to the initial acquisition of continuing care contracts
related to the new CCRC being developed through The Arlington of Naples, Luther Oaks, and the
CCRC expansion at Wittenberg and Pleasant View. These entities capitalize costs incurred in
connection with direct response adventising whose primary purpose is to sccure deposits from
residents who are shown to have responded specifically to the advertising. Such advertising costs
include newspaper, magazine, television, radio, brochures, and other costs. The Costs are amortized
using the straight-line method over the expected stay at the CCRC of the first resident group,
beginning in the first period in which revenues associated with the Costs are earmed, Upon
occupancy of the first resident group, additional Costs are expensed as incurred.

Entrance Fees

Entrance fees, which are nonrefundable, are reported as deferred revenue from nonrefundable
entrance fees and included in long-term liabilitics, These fees are amortized over the Jife expectancy
of the residents. Entrance Fees received by Wittenberg, Pleasant View, and Luther Oaks under
residency contracts are refundable at various amounts in accordance with the terms of the individual
contracts. Wittenberg, Pleasant View, and Luther Oaks arc required to repay the refundable entrance
fee less amounts owed by the resident following certain timeframes afier the termination of
occupancy under the residency contract,

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred {inancing costs represent issuance costs for outstanding long-term debt, Deferred financing
costs and bond discounts and premiums arc amortized on the straight-line basis over the life of the
respective bonds, which approximates the effective interest method. Deferred financing costs and
bond discounts and premiums for the Corporations’ variable rate demand revenue bonds with pwt
options are amortized over the terms of the letter-of-credit agreement for each respective bond series,

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

The Corporations account for derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with ASC Topic 8135,
Derivatives and Hedging, which requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets at fair values. The Corporations are involved in an interest rate swap
program. The fair value of the interest rate swap program is included as a component of other
long-term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. For the Corporations, the
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derivative is not designatcd as 2 hedge instrument, and therefore, the change in fair value of the
interest rate swap program is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as a component
of change in fair value of derivalive instruments in the period of change.

Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statcments in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates slso affect the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Corporations have adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, for fair value measurements of financial asscts and finencial liabilities and for fair value
measerements of nonfinancial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a rccurring basis, ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the price that
would be received fo sell an esset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 also establishes 2 framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.

In conjunction with the adoption of ASC Topic 820, the Comporations adopted the measurement
provisions of ASU No. 2009-12, Investments in Ceriatn Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per
Share (or Its Equivalenty) (ASU No. 2009-12), to certzin investments in funds that do not have
readily determinable fair values including private investments, hedge funds, real estate, and other
funds. This guidance amends ASC Topic 820 and allows for the estimation of the fair value of
investmenis in investment companics for which the investiment does not have a readily determinable
fair valuc using net asset value per share or its equivalent. The Corporations adopted the disclosure
provisions of ASU No, 2009-12 as of July 1, 2010.

The Corporations have adopted ASU No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures about Fair Value
Measurements {ASU No, 2010-06). ASU No. 2010-06 amends ASC Subtopic 820-1¢, Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure, to provide additional disclosure requirements for transfers in and ow
of Levels | and 2 and for activity in Level 3 and to clarify centain other existing disclosure

requirements.

The Corporations have also adopted the Fair Value Option provisiens of ASC Topic 825-10,
Financial Instrumenis — Overall, ASC Topic 825-10 gives the Corporations the irrevocable option to
report most financial assets and financial liabilities at fair valuc on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, with changes in fair valuc reporied in earnings. The Corporations’ management did not elect to
measure any additional eligibic financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value, and as a result,
adoption of ASC Topic 825-10 did not have an cffect on the results of eperations or financial
position of the Corporations.
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Tax Status

The Corporations qualify as not-for-profit organizations as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code (Cede) and are exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant
to Section 501{a) of the Code, cxcept the LLC, which is exempt from taxes under Section 509%{a)(2)
of the Code.

The Corporations have adopted ASC Subtopic 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes
—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109. ASC Subtopic 740-10 addresses the detenmination of
how tax benefits claimed or cxpected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the
consolidated financial statements. Under ASC Subtopic 740-10, the Corporations must recognize the
tax benefit from an uncertsin tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will
be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.
The 1ax benefits recognized in the consolidated financial statements from such a position are
measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement. ASC Subtopic 740-10 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
intercst, and penaltics on income taxes, accounting in imterim periods and requircs increased
disclosures. As of Jung 30, 2011 and 2010, the Corporations do not have an assct or liability for
unrecognized tax benefits.

Reclassifications

Certain 2040 amounts have been reclassified 10 conform to the 2011 consalidated financial statcment
prescniation including a reclassification of realized gains on investments, net in the consolidated
statements of cash flows that decrcases operating activities and increases investing activities by
$206,594 and a reclassification of provision for bad debts in the consolidated statemcnis of
operations that decreases operaling revenue and decreases operating expenses by $383,942,

(3) Investment Composition and Fair Value Measurcments

(a)

(b

Overall Tnvestment Objective

The overall investment objective of the Corporations is to invest their assets in a prudent manner that
will achicve an expected rate of return, manage risk exposure, and focus on downside sensitivities.
The Corporations’ invested assets will maintain sufficient liquidity to fund a portion of the
Corporations’ annual operating activities and structure the invested assels to maintain a high
percentage of available liquidity. The Corporations diversify their investments among various asset
classes incorporating multiple strategics and managers. Major investment decisions are authorized by
the Board’s Investment Subcommittee, which oversees the investment program in accordance with

established guidelines.

Atlocation of Investiment Straregies

The Corporations maintain a percentage of assets in domestic and international stecks and mutual
funds as wel! as fixed income corporate bonds and notes and U.8, governmeni agency securities.
Because of the inherent uncertainties for valuation of some holdings, the estimated fair values may
differ from values that would have been used had a ready market existed.
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Basis of Reporting

Assets whose use is limited or restricted and investment assets are reporied at estimated fair value, If
an investment is held directly by the Corporations and an active market with quoted prices exists, the
market price of an identical security is used as reported fair value, Reporied fair values for shares in
common stock and mutual funds, corporate bonds and notes, and U.S. governiment agency sccurities
arc based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last busincss day of the fiscal year. As of
June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Corporations had no plans or intentions to sell investments al amounts

different from NAV.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Corporations have adopted ASC Topic 820 for fair value measurements of financial assets and
financial liabilities and for fair value measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or
disclesed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. ASC Topic 820 establishes a
fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority 1o unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilitics (Level | measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
uncbscrvable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hicrarchy are as
follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idemical assets or liabilities
that the Corporations have the ability to access at the measurement date.

. Level 2 are observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the fuil 1erm of the assets or
liabilities,

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabality.
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June 30, 2011 and 2010

The following tables summarize the Corporations” cash and cash equivalents, assets whose use is
limited or restricted, and investments portfolio by major category in the fair value hierarchy as of

June 30, 201 1 and 2010, as well as refated strategy, liquidity, and funding commitments,

June 30, 2011 Redemption Daysi
Level 1 Level & Level 3 Tetnl or liguidation nolice
Assels;
Cush ond cosh cquivalents  § 9,285,551 —_— — 9.285,551 Daity One
[nvestments excluding cosh
surrender value of life
insurance policies
of $6,00¢:
Cosh and cash
cquivalents 22,924,359 — —_ 22524 759 Daily One
Commen siocks and
muhaal funds 21,282 457 — — 21,242 487 Daily Cme
Fixed income:
Corporate bonds
and noics - 6,530,599 - 6,520.899 Daily Onc
LLS. govemment
ageney
securitios — 5,357,817 - 3.357.817 Daily One
Tota! fixed
income — 11.878.716 - 1181875
Tanal
invr 44,207,246 11,878,716 — 56,088,962
Tolabassers 5 53492797 11,878,716 n 65.371.513
Linbilitics:
Interest rate swap 3 -— 757,561 - 751,561
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Jome 30, 2010 Redempti Days*
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totni or liquldation notice
ASseIs:
Cash and cash eguivalents  § 5,240.%55 — — 5.240.955 Daily One
Investinents excluding cash
sorrender valae of life
nsurance policies
of §12,000:
Cash and cash
equivalents 10,806,717 —_— — 10.806.717 Daily One
Common stocks and
mutual funds 17,104,771 — —_ 17,104,771 Daily One
Fixed income:
Carporaie bonds
snd notes —_ 18,742,680 - 18,742,680 Daity One
U.S. governmcnl
tgency
securitics —_ 4ATH.N 2 —_ 4478012 Daily O
Faial Nixend
income — 23,220,692 — 23,220,692
Tota!
invetimenis 27,911 4R8 23.220.692 -— 51,132,180
Totalasscis  § 33,152.443 23.220.692 — 56,373,115
Liabilitics:
Interest rate pwap s - 49 947 - 949,942
Investrents are reporied in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows:
June 30
2011 2010
Assets whose use is limited or restricted ~ current
assets or held for current habilities 1,992,919 1,152,701
Assets whose use is limited or restricted, net of amounts
in current assels 44,715,946 43,460,230
Investments 9,326,786 6,467,013
Agency funds 50,311} 64,236
56,085,962 51,144,180
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The composition of investment return on the Corporations’ investment portfolio for the years ended
June 30, 2011 and 2014 is as follows:

2011 2050
Interest and dividend income L 943,222 386,081
Net realized gains on sale of investments 121,962 206,594
Realized gains on redemption of insurance policies 12,822 £,714
Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on trading
sccuritics 2,917,062 2,458,774
b3 3,995,068 3,053,163

Investment returns are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the
ycars ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 as follows:

201t 2610
Qther revenue b (5,674) 15,742
Investment income 946,908 520,915
Change in unrcalized gains and losses on trading
securitics 2,917,062 2,458,774
Interest income offset apainst capitalized interest expense 136,772 57,732
s 3,995,068 3,053,163

{e)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporations in estimating the fair value
of its financial instruments:

. The carrying amount reported in the consolidated balance sheets approximates fair value
because of the short maturitics of these instruments for the following: cash and cash
equivalents, residen: accounts receivable, other reccivables, inventory of supply and others,
accounts payable, and accrued compensation and other liabilitics.

. Fair values of the Corporations’ invesunents held as assets limited as to use or restricted
assets, investments, and agency funds arc eslimated based on prices provided by its investment
managers and its custodian bank. Fair value for cash equivalents included in investments,
common stock and mutual funds, quoted corporale bonds and notes, and the U.8. povernmaent
agency securities is measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by
the quantity held.

. Fair valuc of fixed rate long-term: debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the
same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to the Corporations for debt of the same
remaining maturities, For variable rate debt, carrying amounts approximate fair value. Fair
valee was estimaied using quoted market prices based upon the Corporations' current
borrowing rates for simiiar types of long-tern debt securities.
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June 30, 2011 and 2040

Fair value of intcrest rate swaps is determined using pricing models developed based on the
LIBOR swap rale and other observable market data. The value was determined after
considering the potential impact of collateralization and netting agreements, adjusted to reflect
nonperformance risk of both the counterparty and the Corporations.

The following table presents the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Corporations’
financial instruments not carried at fair value at June 30, 2011 and 2010.
2011 2010
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value

$ 93,295,696 87,158,992 67,753,022 64,409,986

Fixed rate long-term debt

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Corporations grant credit {o their private-pay residents as well as those that are insured undcr
third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from residents and third-party payors as of June 30,

2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2011 2010
Medicare 11% 14%
Medicaid 18 22
Self-pay and commercial insurance 7l 64
100% 100%

Land, Buildings, and Equipmoent
A summary of land, buildings, and equipment ai June 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2081 2010
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost depreciation Cost depreciation
L.and and land improvements S 23407976 1,438,193 23,381,286 1,525,934
Buildings 117.433.664 51,592,202 116,392,763 47,865,881
Fumniture, fixtures, and equipment 30,251,238 22,510,366 28,345,288 20,983,702
‘Construction in progress 52,080,954 — 20,096,828 —
$ 223,173,832 75,540,761 188,216,165 70,375,517

Construction in progress pnmarily consists of costs incurred by The Arlington of Naples, Picasant View,
and WLVEC as each is in some phasc of expansion and renovation. At June 30, 2011, the remaining
estimated cost associated with the completion of the Pleasant View and WLVEC projects is $2,075,000.

There are no additional contractual amounts for The Arlington of Naples project at june 30, 2011 and
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2010. Interest cost is capitalized as a component cost of significant capital projects to the extent that such
interest expense exceeds interest income earned on any project specific borrowed funds. The Corporations’
captialized interest cost of $4,901,666 offsct by capitalized interest income of $136,772 at June 30, 2011
and capitalized interest cosl of $2,647,092 offsct by capitalized intcrest income of $57,732 at June 30,

2010,

Refundable Deposits, Entrance Fees, and Deferred Revenue

Residents moving into ccrain facilities of the Corporations in the past were able to elect 1o assign their
assets to an irrevocable trust maintained by an independent third party. The Corporations may draw agginst
the assets of the trust to pay for the cost of care provided to the residents. When 2 resident expires, the
remmaining assets in the trust, if any, are distributed in accordance with the resident’s agreement. These
assets are not reflected in the accompanying consotidated financial statements as they are not under the

contrel of the Corporations.

Refundable deposits represent amounts that residents place with the Corporations to secure services and a
living arrangement in one of the Corporations’ facilitics. Entrance fees are deposited with subsidiaries,
which provide independent fiving units to residents. Entrance fec contracis provide for various refundable
and nonrcfundable amounts. Deferred revenue includes both nonrcfundable entrance fees and amounts
billed in advance of the service being provided or performed.

Net Resident Service Revenue

The Corporations have agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amounts
differcnt from their established rates. Estimated contractual adjustments arising under third-party
reimbursement programs represent the differences between the Corporations’ billings at established rates
and the amounts reimbursed by third-party payors, principally Medicaid and Medicare. They also include
any diffcrences between estimated retroactive third-party reimbursement settlements for prior years and
subscquent final settlements.

The Corporations have obtained Medicaid certification for a portion of their nursing beds and receive
all-inclusive per diem rates for Medicaid-¢ligible residents. To the extent that charges or rclated cosis
incurred for services rendered to Medicaid beneficiaries exceed the per diem rates, they are not recoverable
from the Mcdicaid program or its beneficiaries. Medicaid reimbursement methodologies and payment rates
are subject to change based on the amount of funding available to the States of lilincts and Indiana
Medicaid programs, and any such changes could have a significant effect on the Corporations’ revenues.

The Corporaons bave also obtained Medicare certification for a portion of their nursing beds. The
Corporations are reimbursed by Medicare under a prospective payment system based primarily upon a
clinical classification system for Medicare residents. To the exient that charges or related costs incurred for
services rendercd to Medicarc beneficiaries exceed the per diem rates, they are not recoverable from the
Mecdicare program or its beneficiavies.
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A summary of gross and net resident service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 follows:

2011 2010
Gross resident service revenue $ 99,879,904 93,122,518
Less provisions for:

Estimated contractual adjustments arising under third-party

reimbursement programs 16,949,589 16,870,301

Bad debts 659,602 183,942

Charity care charges forcgone 2,195,185 1,173,885

Net resident service revenue § 80,075,328 74,694,390

The Corporations recognize resident service revenue associated with services provided to residents who
have third-party payor coverage on the basis of contractua) rates for the services rendered. For uninsured
residents that do not qualify for charity care, the Corporations recognize revenue on the basis of its
siandard rates for services provided (or on the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided by
palicy). On the basis of historical experience, a portion of the Corporations’ private pay residents wili be
unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Corporations record a provision for bad
debts related to private pay residents in the period the services are provided. Resident service revenue, net
of contractual allowances and discounts (but before the provision for bad debts), recognized in the period
from these major payor sources, is as foilows as of June 30, 2011:

Third-party Private-pay Total all
payors payors __payors
Resident service revenue, net of
contractual atlowances 3 36,706,027 44028903 80,734,930
20 (Continued)
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Long-Term Debt

A summary of long-term debt at Jung 30, 201 and 2010 is as follows:

Juae 30, 2011 June 30,2000 201) effective 2010 effective
Bond serles belanre hatance Iuierest type Due dates Inlercst rate Tnleresd retg
Eccnomic Developiment § 0 25340,000 ITHOL00 Fixed interest rate Maturing Ikrough 6.5% ~ 2% 6.5% - 4.0%
Covnmission Bonds, Kovember 1§, 2039
Series 2009
linois Heahh Faciliies Awthorisy 12,220,000 12365000 Tnierest wi the lusaerof 153%  Muluring throagh Lg% 32
Weekly Adjusishle Rale oo m Wa-exsmpt vasiokle August 15, 2031
Revenue Bonds, Scnics 2001 ate detemiined woekly
Miniis Heakh Focililies Avthoriiy  1),853,000 12,255,000 Insesest at the lesser of J5%  Muaturing through 049% LY
Yariuble Rute Darand or @ tax-exsmpl vanohis Nevember 1, 2033
Revenue Refunding Bonde, rate deleymined weekly
Sevias 2003
Utinoés Finanece Authoeity 17,460,000 23,450,000 Fized inwerest raie Maturing thrrugh 306D 5.20% - 375% 520 - 5.75%
Revemue Bonds,
Serizs 20064
1Hinvis Finance Authority S00,000 500,000 Fixed interest rale Anguxt 15,2009 4.30%, 4.30%
Extendable Rate Adjustable
Setvrities Revensie
Honds, Series 20068
Hineix Finonce Authoring 4,343,000 4,525,000 Vaurisbie intevest rate Fehruary |, 2025 1.1% 0.8,
Variahte Hue Danand
Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 ,
Upper illinois River Valley 16,695,000 - Fized interest ric November 15, 2045 4.50% - 1.50% Nia
Developmenl Autherty
Fixed Rale Reveaue
Bonds, Serics 2010
Coltier County Indusirial 10,900,000 - Fized inierest rale May 15, 2015 14.00% Nim
Developaear Authoniny
Fixed Rale Roverwe
Bond Anticipstion Nols
Consiruciion Losn, SPH 571,833 717,833 Varizble interest raie Aupust, 2012 575 5.75
Mortgage nowe, LLC B13.045 -~ Fixed interest mne May 30,2013 148 NiIA
Martgoge foan, PYLH 2,231,053 230,072 Fized interest mie Sepiember L, 2026 S ATS $.878
Mortgage loan, AON Land 19,489,579 19,489 57% Variahke intercsl e July 18,2013 4,375 6.375
Mreigage hau, AQN Office kg 231829 375090 Fixed intencst rate Apri) 5, 2024 6325 6125
Morygage loan, Parent 1,832,769 1,898 860 Fized Imterest e Decewnber 31,203 625 4.25
144,747 108 05434
Less currant invsta dments of
tong-lerm debl e B4 1,977,832
Unammzed bond discouil
and premium (979 4B} 1279,5%1)
Long-tenn debi ne of cumen
irstatinones and
unmnoriized bond
discount and prensium $ 137,705 476 | MENB.D! 1

On December 30, 2009, Scries 20094, 2009B, and 2009C Fixcd Rate Revenue Bonds were issued
pursuant te a Master Trust Indenture in the aggregate amount of $37,710,000 on behalf of WLV and
WLVEC, together the WLV Obligated Group. The procecds of the bond issae are being used to refund the
1997 and 1998 bond issues, to refund the mortgage loan for WLV as noted below, and to construct an
additional 77 units of independent living along with various common areas and an underground parking
garage. The Series 2009 bonds are secured by a morigage in a majority of the real propenly owned by the
WLV Obligated Group. The Master Indenture allows the WLV Obligated Group to incur additional
indebtedness to construct up to 26 additional independent living units in the future. The WLV Obligated
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Group is required to maintain certain rescrves and sinking funds with its bond trustee. The loan agreements
currently contain quarterly covenants refated to the number of presales and occupied units. The loan
agreements also contain financial covenants, which are initially cffective the earlier of the first full year
after stabilized occupancy is obtained for the prozect or as of June 30, 201 5. The Parent has entered into a
Liquidity Support Agreement with the WLV Obligated Group and the bond trustee and has funded a
Liquidity Support Fund of $1,000,000 with the band trustee.

On September 12, 2001, Series 2001 bonds were issued in the amount of $13,200,000 on behalf of LHSA,
the Home, LCSA, and the LFA Foundation {collectively, the LHSA Obligated Group) pursuant to a Master
Trust Indenture. As of December |, 2007, LCSA withdrew from the LHSA Obligated Group in accordance
with the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture. The LHSA Obligated Group has obtained a letter of
eredit, which expires on August 15, 2013 as collaieral for the Scries 2001 bonds,

On November 10, 2003, the Illinois Health Facilities Authority issued variable rale demand revenue
refunding bonds, Serics 2003, in the amount of $14,350,000 on behaif of the LHSA Obligated Group. The
Series 2003 bonds were issued pursuant to the Masier Trust Indenture. Principal payments are due each
November !, and interest is payable monthly, The Scries 2003 bonds were issued principally to advance
refund the then-outstanding Series 1996A bonds. The LHSA Obligated Group has obiained a letter of
credit, which expires on November 15, 2012 as collateral for the Series 2003 bonds.

Certain assets of the LHSA Obligaied Group are pledged as collateral for the bonds and the letter of credit.
Holders of the Serics 2001 and Series 2003 bonds have a put option that allows them to redeem the bonds
prior to maturity. The LHSA Obligated Group has an agreemcnt with an underwriter to remarket any bonds
redeemed through the exercise of put options. The Scrics 2041 and Series 2003 bonds arc accelerable in
the event the LHSA Obligated Group is unable to cxtend or replace the letter of credit securitizing the

bonds.

For bonds issued under the Master Trust Indenture, the LHSA Obligated Group is required to maintain
certain resetves and sinking funds with its bond trustec. The LHSA Obligated Group is also required to be
in compliance with specified debt covenants and financial ratios, Bonds issucd under the Master Trust
Indenture are also securcd by the unrestricted receivables of the LHSA Obligated Group as well as certain
real property of the Home. Management believes the LHSA Obligated Group is compliant with the
specified debt covenants and financial ratios.

On April 19, 2006, Luther Oaks cntercd into a Master Trust Indenture under which Luther Oaks is the only
Obligated Group member (the Luther Qaks Obligated Group). The purpose of the Master Trust Indenture
is to provide a mechanism for the efficient and cconomical issuance of notes by the Luther Oaks Obligated
Group member, The Master Trust Indenture requires the member of the Luther Oaks Obligated Group to
make principal and interest payments on notes issued for its benefit and to pay such amounts as arc
otherwise necessary to engble the Luther Oaks Obligated Group 1o satisfy all obligations issucd under the
Master Trust Indenture.

On April 19, 2006, Series 2006A Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds, Scries 2006B Exiendable Rate Adjustable
Secuntics Revenuc Bonds, and Series 2006C Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds {collectively referred
1o as the Series 2006 bonds) were issued pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture in the aggregate amount of
$30,460,000 on behalf of the Luther Qaks QObligated Group. The Series 2006 bonds are sccured by a
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leasehold mongage in the property, the new CCRC building and equipment, and futurc revenue streams to
be provided by the CCRC. The Series 2006C bonds are also sccured, until fully redecmed, by an
irevocable transferable letter of credit issued by a commercial bank, in an amount equal 10 the principal
amount of the bonds: and accrued interest on such principal. Holders of the Scries 2006 bonds have a put
option that allows them to redeem the bonds prior 1o maturity. The Luther Qaks Obligated Group member
has an agreement with an underwriter to remarket any bonds redeemed through the exercise of put options.
The loan agreements currently contain quarterly covenaats related to the number of presales and occupied
units. The loan agreements also comtain financial covenants, which are initially effective the earlier of the
first full year after stabilized occupancy is obtained for the new CCRC or 2011, The Luther Oaks
QObligated Gronp was not in compliance with the histarical debt service coverage ratio, as defined, at
June 30, 2011, In accordance with requirements under the master rust indenture, management of Luther
Oaks Obligated Group have retained a consuliant to make recommendations to achieve the required ratio in
fiscal 2012, In addition, the Luther Oaks Obligated Group was not in compliance with the cash to
indebtedness ratio, as defined, at June 30, 2011, Management of Luther Oaks Obligated Group has
provided to the master trustee an officer’s centificate setting forth a plan fo be taken to achicve the required
ratio for future periods. Luther Oaks redecmed the final amount of the 2006C Bonds in February 2010

in March 1995, St Pauls issued $6,500,000 of Variable Rate Demand Revenuc Bonds (the 1995 Bonds)
under the provisions of a Bond Trust Indenture (St Pauls Indenture). Interest is set at a weekly ratc as
defined by the agreement. The 1995 Bonds are sccured by a transferable immevocable direct pay letter of
eredit, which expires in February 2013 and is required to be replaced with another letter of credit upon
expiration. The letter of credit is secured by the real and personat property of St Pauls. 8t Pauls is required
to be in compliance with specified debt covenants and financial ratios based on the 1995 bond agreemcent.

In Scptember 2010, Pleasant View issued $16,695,000 of Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds (the 2010 Bonds)
under the provisions of a Master Trust indenture {Pleasant View Indenture). The Scries 2010 Bonds arc
secured by a mortgage in the real property. Pleasant View is required to maintain certain reserves and
sinking funds with its bond trustee. The loan agreement contains quarterly covenants rejated to the number
of occupied units, The loan agreement also contains financial covenants following the achievement of
stabilized occupancy in the new Assisted Living units, which were constructed with a portion of the 2010
bonds. Stabilized occupancy is defined in the Pleasant View Indenture as the occupancy of 22 cut of the 24
new Assisted Living Units. Stabilized occupancy was achieved at the end of June 2011, The Parent has
entered into a Liquidity Support Agrcement with Pleasant View and the bond trustee and has funded a
Liquidity Support Fund of $500,000 with the bond trusiee.

In June 2014, The Arlingtor of Naples issucd $10,900,000 of Fixcd Rate Revenue Bond Anticipation
Notes (the 20i1 BANS) under the provisions of Trust Indenrure. The 2011 BANS are secured by a second
mortgage on the property. The loan agreemcnt contains menthly project and sales milestones. The loan
matures on May |5, 2015 when permanent bongd financing is anticipated.

In Augost 2009, St Pauls entered into a $730,000 Construction Loan Agreement with the Bank of Ametica.
The loan was drawn upon as needed to renovaie a 24-unis wing of St Pauls House for short-term stay
Medicare residents. Interest is set at a ccrtain LIBOR plus 2.75% and can be reset every
one to three months at St Pauls’ option. The interest rate is subjeet to a floor rate of 5,75%. The loan must
be repaid in equal monthly installments beginning June 1, 2010, at §/60th of the total amount cutstanding
as of that date. The loan matures on August 12, 2012.
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In July 2006, Pleasant View cntered into a 20-year promissory note agreement for $2,600,000 with the
Mission Investment Fund of The Evangelical Lutheran Church in America. The promissory note is secured
by certain property and real estatc related to the mursing facility on the Pleasant View campus. The
Evangelical Lutheran Church in America has the right to review and adjust the intcrest rate on fuly 1,
2011, July I, 2016, and July 1, 2021,

In November 2006, LLC eniered into a 25-year promissory note agrecment for $3,100,000 with the
Mission Investment Fund of The Evangelical Lutheran Church in America, The Evangelical Lutheran
Church in America has the right to review and adjust the interest rate on December |, 2011, December |,
2016, December 1, 202), and December |, 2026. The note is guaranieed by LHSA.

In July 2008, The Arlington of Naples, Inc. cntered into 2 five-year promissory note agreementi for
$19,500,000 with the Lutheran Church Extension Fund (LCEF). The promissory notc is sccured by
approximately 39 acres of land in Naples, Florida. The LCEF has the right to review and adjust the interest

rate each month. Two million dollars of the note is guaranteed by LLC.

In March 2009, The Arlington of Naples, Inc. cntered into a 15-year promissery note agreement for
$920,000 with MainSource Bank. The note is secured by an office building in Napies, Florida. MainSource
Bank has the right to review and adjust the interest rate on March 10, 2014 and every 60 months thereafier.

The note is guaranteed by LLC.

The Corporations have variable rate demand notes that have put options available to the creditor. If the put
option is exercised, the bonds are presented to the bank, which in turn draws on the underlying letter of
credit. The series and the underlying credit facility 1erms are described as follows:

Series Letter-of-Credit Reimbursement Terms

Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 Equal quarterly installments over the terms of the
lenter of eredit through August 2013, staning with
the first day of the second calendar quarter that the
term loan is given.

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 Equal monthly installinents over 24 months
through November 2012, starting 367 days from the

date that the term loan is given.

INineis Finance Authority Bonds, Series 1993 Payment is duc oo the expiration date stated on the
letter-of-credit agrecment of February 2013,

Ulinois Finance Authority Vanable Rate The letier of credit on these bonds was cancelled
Demand Revenuce Bonds, Series 2006 when the bonds were fully redeemed in
February 2010.
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Scheduled principal repayments on Jong-tenm debt based on the variable rate demand notes being put back
to the Corporations and a corresponding draw being made on the underlying letter-of-credit facility are as
follows:

Year ending June 30:
2012 M 3,111,884
2013 19,i57,932
2014 32,330,445
2015 16,668 826
2016 088,835
Thereafter 69,489,186

$ 141,747,108
=" —————— ]

Scheduled principal repayments on the long-term debt based on the scheduled redemptions according (o
the underlying Master Trust Indentures are as follows:

Year:
2012 b3 1,445217
2013 1,794,265
2014 25433779
2015 17,563,826
2016 1,928,835
Thereafter 93,579,186

5 141,747,108

The LHSA Obligated Group (the Obligated Group) has an interest rate-related derivative instrument to
manage ils cxposure on its variable rate Series 2003 bonds. By using a derivative financial instrument 10
hedge exposurcs to changes in interest rates, the Obligated Group exposes itself to credit risk and market
risk. Credit risk is the failure of the counterparties 10 perform under the terms of the derivative contracts,
When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparties owe the Obligated Group, which
creates credit risk for the Obligated Group. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the
Obligated Group awes the counlerparty, and therefore, it does not possess credit risk. The Obligated Group
minimizes the ¢redit risk in derivative instruments by entering into iransactions with high-quality
counlerparties. Market risk is the adverse effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from a

change in interest rates.
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The Obligated Group entered into interest rate swap agreements in Novembet 2003 1o manage fluctuations
in cash flows resulting from interest rate risk on jts variable rate Series 2003. The swap agrecment changes
the variable rate cash flow exposure on the Serics 2003 debl to fixed cash flows. Under the terms of the
interest rate swap agreement, the Corporations receive variable interest rate payments and makes fixed
interest rate payments, thereby creating the equivalent of fixed-rate debt. A summary of oulstanding
positions under the floating to fixed rate swap agreement for the Corporations at June 30, 2011 follows:

Notional
amount Maturity date Rate received Rate paid
b 11,855,000 November 2013 BMA Index, reset monthly 3.385%

A summary of outstanding positions under the floating to fixed rate swap agreement for the Corporations
at June 30, 2010 follows:

Notional
amount Maturity date Rate received Rate paid
s 12,255,000 November 2013 BMA Index, reset monthly 3.385%

The fair value of the Series 2003 Bonds interest rate swap agreement of $(757,561) and ${949,942) is
included in other long-term liabilities at Junc 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The change in fair valuc of

-the interest rate swap agreement of $192,381 and $(137,207) is recorded in nonoperating gains and losses

at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Lines of Credit

St Pauls kas access to a line of credit through a revolving note with Bank of America in the amount of
$500,000. The balance outstanding at June 30, 2011 was $200,000. Interest is payable at prime plus 2% or
the LIBOR. The line of credit matures in February 2013 and is securcd by the same assets as the 1995

Bonds.

In January 2008, the LHSA Obligated Group entered into an agreement for a line of credit through a
revolving note with Fifth Third Bank in the amount of $2,000,000. In December, 2009, this line of credit
was increased to $4,000,000, The balance outstanding at June 30, 20] ] was $3,453,000. Interest is set at

cither a Base Rate or a LIBOR Rate depending cn the advance taken by the LHSA Obligated Group. The
Basc Rate is the lender’s prime rate less 1.50%. The LIBOR Rate is set at LIBOR. The line of credit

matures in January 2052,

In January 2009, the Foundation entered into an agreement for a margin loan through Landmark Capital.
The outstanding balance at June 3¢, 2011 and 2610, respectively, is $2,155,471 and $2,910,347. Interest is
sct on a formula based on the rate of brokers” call money.

Capital Leases

The Comporations lease certain equipment under capital leases. Included with land, buildings, and
cquipment are §1,537,117 and $1,618,490 at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, of assets held under
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capital leases and $458,007 and $975,000 of related accumulated amortization at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. A summary of future minimum lease payments and the present value of future minimum
lease payments related to capital leases at June 30, 2011 15 as follows:

Amount
Year:
2012 b 338,665
2013 299,744
2014 143,151
Total firture minimum lease payments 801,560
Less amount representing interest at rates ranging from 0% 10 7.47% 63,872
Present value of future minimum [ease payments 737,688
Less current portion of obligations under capital leases 318,545
Obligations under capital leases, excluding current portion 3 419,143
—————————

{11} Employces’ Pension Plans

St Pauls sponsored a contributory profit sharing plan (money purchase plan) covering substantially all full
time employces. 5t Pauls froze this plan as of December 31, 2007, and it will be terminated once all
participant balances arc paid out. As of January 1, 2008, LLC began sponsoring 2 contributory profit
sharing plan (the LL.C Plan). The LL.C Plan is designated as a church plan (403(b)(9)} under ERISA, which
provides specific reporting and fax advantages and covers substantially all full time cmployees of all
subsidiarics of LLC. Employer contributions 10 the LLC Plan arc discretionary. In addition, each
participant can elect salary reduction under the 403(b)(9) plan. LLC can elect cach year to match a portion
of these salary deferrals. Expense recognized undcer the terms of the ELC Plan at all entities amounted to
$813,236 and $839,434 for the ycars cnded June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

(12) Luther Village Limited Partncrship

The Corporations are the lessor of a land lease agreement with Luther Village Limited Partnership
(the Partnership), an unrclated party, for a term of 99 ycars with an option to renew for a second term of
99 years. The Parmership has constructed a number of cooperative apartment and townhome units that may
be purchased by individuals at least 55 years of age. Owners pay a monthly ground rent to the Partnership
in addition 10 the initial cost of their unit. A new land lcasc rate {or rent o be paid is renegotiated between
the Comporations and the Partnership every 10 years. On November 8, 2009, the Corporations agreed lo a
new land lease rate of $1,090,000 per year to be received from the Partnership for the next 10 years. The
land lease amount is bascd on a formula, which is calculated every 10 years, The land lease amount will be
recalculated as of November 8, 2019, and in each succeeding 10-year period through November 8, 2079,

In exchange for the land lease and in addition to the annual lease payments, the Partnership makes the
following payments to the Corperations:

. 0.5% of the sales price of units purchased by initiaf buyers; and
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. The entire amount of the monthly ground rent submisted by the Qwners to the Partnership,

The fees eamed by the Corporations related 1o the land [ease totaled $1,090,000 and $1,074,998 for the
years ended Junc 30, 201§ and 2010, respectively, and are included with other noneperating gains and
tosses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

In addition, the Home performs certain medical and other support services for the Partnership in exchange
for service fees. The service fees eamed related to the provision of such services amounted to $145,525
and $145,249 for the ycars ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and have been reflected as other
revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Equity Investments

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and represented
$2,304,568 and 32,125,762 of other assets in the sccompanying consolidated balance sheets at June 30,
201} and 2019, respectively. The most significant of these investments is described below.

Health Resources Alliance, Inc. is the parent company of Midwest Scnior Care Network (MSCN), for
which the Home has provided a $190,000 Jcteer of credit, draws on which are guaranteed by LHSA. No
amounts have been acerued or paid pursuant to this agreement as of June 30, 2001,

The Home and St Pauls, each has a 1/15th cquity intercst in MSCN. The investment in MSCN is being
accounted for using the cquity method because of the significant influence the Corporations have over
MSCN. The Corporations have included their propartionase shares of MSCN net income of $517,538 and
$481,178 as other nonoperating gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations for 201 1 and 2010, respectively.

The Corporations entered into a contraciual agreement to join Summit Insurance Group, Lid (Summit), a
self-insurance administrator, which, through its risk-sharing provisions, provides the Corporations with
insurance for workers' compensation coverage. Summit is a multiorganization insurance company
incorporated under the Jaws of the Cayman Islands. As a sclf-insurance administrator, Summit enables risk
sharing among participating organizations. The Corporations are required to pay assessed premiums and
are subject to a per claim sclf-insured retention.

The Corporations’ workers” compensation program includes various levels of per claim self-insured
rctentions and excess commercial insurance coverages. Included in operating expenscs are $1,634,048 in
2041 and $846,756 in 2010 for the ultimate cost of reported self-insured workers’ compensation claims, as
well as estimates of incurred but not reperted claims. At this time, the Corporations are not entitied to

receive a distnbution of Summit’s net income,

For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the Corporations recognized income of $523,988 and
$484 846, respectively, in investments in affiliated companies. This activity is included as a component of
other nonoperating gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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(14) Charltable Gift Annuities

(15)

The Corporations arc the recipient of various charitable gift annuities. Such gifts are recognized as
contribution revenue in the period received, net of any estimated liability for amounts payable to the
annuitant in future periods pursuam to the tenms of the respective charitable gift annuity contract,

Endowmcnts

The Corporations follow the guidance of ASC Topic 958, related to net asset classification and required
disclosures of donor-restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit organization that is subject to an
cnacted version of UPMIFA.

The Corporations’ cndowment consists of funds established for a variety of purposes including
donor-restricted endowment funds to function as endowments. Net assets associated with endowment
funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions,

Donor-restricted endowment funds consist of 55,490,628 and 34,257,646 at June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, are included in permanently restricted net asseis.

Changes in endowment net assets for the vear ended June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Permanently

restricted
Endowment net asscts, july t, 2010 ) 4,257 646
Investment return 338,236
Contributions 1,232,982

Approprizied expenditures
of endowment asscts (338,236

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2011 $ 5,490,628

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2000 are as follows:

Permanently
restricted
Endowment net assets, July |, 2009 5 4,032,949
Investment retum 6,571
Contributions 224 697

Appropriatcd expenditures
of endowment assels !6,571!

Endowinent net assets, June 30, 2010 $ 4,257,646

(a) Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Corporations to retain as a
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fund of perpctual duration. Deficiencies of this nature are reporied in unrestricted net assets.
Subsequent gains restore the fair value of the assets of the endowment fund to the required level.
There were no deficiencies as of June 30, 2011 and 2010.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Corporations have adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt
to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while secking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of
donor-restricted funds that the organizations must hold in perpetuity. Under this policy, as approved
by the board of directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce
results that exceed the price and yield results of a blended benchmark composed of the major indices
related to the investment allocation being targsted for the ponfolio.

Strategies Emploved for Achieving Qbjectives

To satisfy its long-term rate of rcturn objectives, the Corporations rely on a total retum strategy in
which investmenm returns arc achicved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Corporations target a diversified asset allocation that
places emphasis on nvestments in cquities, bonds, and other sccurities to achieve its lonp-term
return objectives within prudent risk constraints. Major investment decisions are authorized by the
Board’s Finance Committce, which oversees the investment program in accordance with established

guidelines.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The Corporations have a policy of spending based on the amount of capital gains, interest, and
dividends reinvested in 1he endowmeni asscts, The spending rate (the annual amount withdrawn
from the endowment assets to support the operating budget) is determined as a pereentage of the
three-year moving average of the endowment assets taking into consideration the estimated total
investment return, the estimated rate of inflation, and the operating necds of the Corporations, The
Corporations appropriate for distribution cach year 10% of its endowment funds’ average fair value
over the prior three years through June 30th procecding the fiscal ycar in which the distnbution is
planned. In establishing these policies, the Corporations considered the expected retum on its
endowment. Accordingly, the Corporations expect the current spending policy 1o allow its
endowment to maintain its purchasing power by growing at a rate cqual 10 planned payouts.
Additional real growih will be provided through new gifts and any excess investment return,

(16) Commitments and Contingencies

fa}

Professional and General Liability Self-Fnsurunce

Through December 31, 2001, the Corporations maintained professional liability coverage through
commercial insurance carriers, Effective January |, 2002, the Corporations entered into s contractual
agreement 1o form Caring Communitics, 2 self-insurance administralor, which provides the
Corporations with insurance coverage for professional and comprehensive general liability exposure.
Insurance expense under the Caring Communities program amounted to $779,412 and $§737,681 in
2011 and 2010, respectively. Caring Communities may retroactively assess participants for up 1o

30 {Continned)
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 20117 and 2010

twice their annual premium per coverage year based on adverse participant-specific claims
expericnce as defined in the policy. Based on the Corporations’ historical claims experience and
exposure 1o date, no reserves were established at June 30, 2011 or 200 for cither retroactive
premium assessments or tail exposures.

Employee Health and Welfare Self-Insurance

The Corporations are insured under 2 sclf-insurance program for employee bhealth and welfare
benefits. Insurance expense under the employee health and welfare insurance program amounted to
$5,263,338 in 2011 and $4,401,023 in 2010.

Medicare Reimbursement Changes

Medicare reimburses providers of long~term care services at a prospective payment system for
skilled nursing services end imposes a consolidated billing requirement. Changes in Medicare
reimbursement as a resuft of the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services’ interpretations and
applications of these and other provisions of Medicare legisiation niay have an adverse cifect on the
Corporations’ net resident service revenue,

Litigarion

- The Corporations are involved in litigation arising in the normal course of business. In consultation

with [cgal counsel, management estimates that these matters wil! be resolved without material
adverse cffect an the Corporations’ financial position or results of operations.

Regulatory Investigations

The U.S. Department of Justice and other federal agencies routinely conduct regulatory
investigations and compliance audits of healtheare providers. The Corporations are subject to these
regulatory cfforts. Management is currently unaware of any rcgulatory matters, which may have a
matctial adverse effect on the Corporations’ financial position or results from operations.

Gronnd Lease

During 2006, Luther Qaks entered into a 99-ycar ground leasc agreement with Trinity Lutheran
Church (Lessor). The lease calls for annual rent to be based on 10% of the appraised land value,
which will be reset every five years. The lease commencement date was set as the beginning of the
month in which the first resident moves into the facility, which occurred in the fall of 2007. In
September 2007, Luther Qaks also funded a $120,000 deposit account for the benefit of the Lessor as

required by the ground lease agrecment.

3i {Continued)
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30,2011 and 2010

{17} Subscquent Events
In connection with the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and in accordance with the
rceently issued ASC Topic 8535, Subsequent Events, the Corporations evaluated subsequent cvents after the
consolidated balance sheet date of June 30, 2011 through October 27, 2011, which was the date the
consolidated financial statements were issucd, and determined there are no other items to disclose.

32
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMURITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule 5

Consolidaied Starernemss of Operalions Information by Development

Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010
{Unaudited)

Stabitized communities:
Operating revenue:
Net residenrt service revenue:
Resident servige revenue, net of contractual allowance
Provision for bad debls

Nei tesident service revenue

Other revenue
Mel assets released from restrictions used for aperations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Employee benefils
Support scrvices
Diictary services
Progrom services
Administralive services
Community scrvices
Fund-raising
Interest
Depreciation and amortization
Allecntions, n¢l

Total operaling cxpenscs
Stabilized communities income from operalions

Communitics in development:
Operating revenue:
Met resident service revenud;
Resident service revenue, net of conlractual allowance
Provision for bad debts

Net resident service revetue

Other revenus
Net nssels released from resirictions used for operalions

Total operaling revenue

Operoting cxpenses:
Salaries and woges
CEmployee benelits
Support services
Dictary services
Program services
Adiministrative services
Fund-raising
Interest
Depreciation and amortizalion
Allocariens, net

Tolal operating expenses
Communities in development losses from operations

Total tosses from operstions

19

000279

2011 2010
$ 55816629 50,594,795
(480,178} (112,837}
55,336,451 50,481,958
8,652,654 6,668,087
674.04D 476,060
64,663,145 57,626,105
27412372 26,066,098
7.573,063 6,761,216
6,418,056 5,689,682
2,450,038 2,284,675
4,578,587 3,817,722
2,281,929 2,176,231
2.343,250 1,932,163
407,660 213,259
1,724,637 1,278,457
3,382,225 3,534,099
3,102,000 2,574,996
61673817 56,328,598
2,989,328 1,297,507
24.918,301 24,483,537
(179.424) {271,108}
24738877 24,212,432
2,284,017 2,294,633
27.022,894 26,507,265
17,397,282 17,207 568
4,669,698 3,813,659
4,266,835 4,316,998
1,462,575 1,308,604
1,490,527 1,437,611
4,189,556 4,120,539
12,346 12,243
1534811 1,948,702
2,694,554 2,554,795
(3,102,000) (2.574.996)
34,916,194 34,145,825

(7.893.300) (7,638.560)
(4903.572) (6,341,053

{Continued}
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LUTHERAN LIFE COMMUNITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operalions Infonmaton by Development
Yeors ended June M 2011 and 2010

Schedule 5

(Unaudited)
1011 1010
Nonoperating gains {losses), net:
Invesiment income $ 946,908 538,565
Unrestricted contributons 477,613 457,413
Bequests ond kegacies 74,460 209300
Net change in unrealized gzins nnd losses on irading sccurities 2,917,062 2,458,774
Change in fair value of derivative mstrumenis 192,381 {137,207
Other, net (181,508} 896,686
Tolal nonoperating gains, nel 4,426,935 4,423,531
Revenue and gains deficient of expenses and losses (477,018} (1,917.522)
Cther changes  unrestricled nel assets:
Net asseis released from restriction for Jand, building, and equipment acgrisitions 1,819,296 —_
Increase {decreasc) in unrestricted net agsets L 1,342,260 {1.917,522}

* Note ~ The financial slatement presentation above reflects operating resubis between communities, which are expericncing losses

in the short term <ue to campus developimenl versus communities, which are stebifizex] and operating without Lthese short-tenn losses.

Stahilized communitics include LHSA, the Home, LCSA, LFA Foundation, St Pauls, and the LLC Feundation. These communitivs are
not expanding, repositioning, or being oecupied by their first residents afier initial buildout in fiscal year 201 1. These communities have

meached o level of occupancy, which represented stabilization (typically higher than 85%) prier to July |, 2010,

Cominunilies in development include LLC, WLV, WLVEC, Luther Daks, and The Arlinglon of Naples, They: communities are
expanding, repositionng, or being occupicd by their first residents alter initinl buildout in fiscal year 2011, Prior 1o stobilization,

communitics experience stariup-bosses, which are funded by the planned use of charilable contributions, cosh reserves, or additiona!
borrowings [romm the debi financing the exprnsion, repositioning, or buifdout. Communitics in development will experience ihese losses
for 2 number of months or even years before they reach a level of slabilized oceupanuy (typically higher than §5%).

See secompanying independent auditors® report,

ag
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC,
CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY

Role of Apptlicants and Co-Applicants in Funding

The entity which owns and operates the skilled nursing facility at which the Project will take
place is Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc., so it is the applicant. Lutheran Home and Services for the
Aged, Inc. is the sole corporate member of Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. and the Lutheran
Foundation for the Aged, Inc. All three of these entities are part of an obligated group under a master
trust indenture. Each member of the obligated group is jointly and severally liable to pay back money
borrowed by the obligated group from the proceeds of the sales of tax exempt bonds which are secured
by the licn of the master trust indenture. Because Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc. and
Lutheran Foundation for the Aged, Inc. are co-borrowers on the debt incurred which will be used to
pay for the Project, they are co-apphicants. Lutheran Life Communities is the sole corporate member of
Lutheran Home and Services for the Aged, Inc., and as such it is the ultimate parent of Lutheran Home

for the Aged and it is also a co-applicant,
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY
c—-9) Financial Ratios ~ (see Below items)
B~b-1) Current Ratio = Current Assets/Current Liabilitles (Goal is 1.5 or greater):
QObligated Group (LHSA, LHA & LFA)
Actual Actual Actual
FYDS FY10 Fy1l
Current Assets/ 28,047,728 37,249,669 44,592,348
Current Liabilities 5,916,740 8,189,727 10,430,030
Current 4.74 4,55 4.28
Ratio
Lutheran Life Communities
Actual Actual Actual
FY09 FY1D FY1l
Current Assets/ 16,536,371 20,657,274 26,094,802
Current Liabilities 17,616,400 20,949,238 25,609,184
Current e 0.99 oo 102
Ratio e g e

1707319200374 7135

000282 —

Projected
FYip

51,666,943

12,084,759

4.28

Prajected

FY16

29,500,000

28,000,000
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY
B-b-2) Net Margin Percentage = Net Income/Net Operating Revenues) X 100 (Goal is 2.5% or greater):
| Obligated Group {LHSA, LHA & LFA)
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FYOS FY10 FYll FY16
Net Income/ 1,778,591 3,322,362 4,180,307 7,344,932
Net Operating Revenue 41,710,178 43,085,737 47,224,299 60,645,139
= 0.0426 0.0771 0.0885 0.1211
X100 100 100 100 160
Net Margin Percentage 4.26 7.71 8.85 12,11
| Lutheran Life Communities |
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FYo9 FY10 FY1l FYl6
Net Incame/ {12,004,630}) {1,917,522) 1,342,260 2,200,000
Net Operating Revenue 80,802,420 85,344,221 91,686,035 106,285,203
= {0.1486) {0.0225) 0.0146 0.0207
X 100 100 100 100 100
Net Margin Percentage " {14.86) (2.25) 1.46 2.07
ATTACHMENT 41
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY
B.b-3) Long-Term Debt to Capitalization = (Long-Term Debt/Long-Term Debt plus Net Assets) X 100
(Goal is 80% or Less):
Obligated Group (LHSA, LHA & LFA} |
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FY09 FY10 FY1ll FY16
Long-Term Debt 24,449,278 22,820,104 21,687,263 95,560,712
Net Assets 44,511,822 50,392,832 57,795,240 86,337,564
LT Deht plus Net Assets 68,961,100 73,212,936 79,482,503 182,898,276
Long-Term Debt/ 24,449,278 22,820,104 21,687,263 96,560,712
LT Debt plus Net Assets 68,961,100 73,212,936 79,482,503 182,898,276
= 0.3545 0.3117 0.2729 0.5279
X 100 100 100 100 100
LT Debt to 35.45 3117 27.29 52.79
Capitalization
Lutheran Life Communities ]
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FY0g FY10 Fyil FY16
Long-Term Debt 84,957,970 114,848,011 137,705,476 209,705,476
Net Assets 38,733,857 39,916,350 41,664,745 49,000,000
LT Debt plus Net Assets 123,691,827 154,764,361 179,370,221 258,705,476
Long-Term Debt/ 84,957,970 114,848,011 137,705,476 209,705,476
LT Debt plus Net Assets 123,691,827 154,764,361 175,370,221 258,705,476
= 0.6869 0.7421 Q.7677 0.8106
X 100 100 100 100 100
LT Debt to 68.69 74.21 76.77 81.06
Capltalization
ATTACHMENT 41
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY
B-b-4) Debt Service Coverage Ratla {(Goal is 1.5 or more):
| Obligated Group (LHSA, LHA & LFA) |
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FY09 FY10 FYil FYle
Debt Service Coverage 31.37 4,09 4.00 2.56
Lutheran Life
Communities
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FY09 FY10 FY11 FYlb
Debt Service 1.58 1.26 1.07 1.80
Coverage
ATTACHMENT 41
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

17073 192003147135

CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY
B-b-5) Days Cash on Hand = (Cash plus Investments plus Board Designated Funds)/{Operating Expense-
less Depreciation Expense} / 365 [Goal is 45 or More):
[ Obligated Group {LHSA, LHA & LFA) ]
Actual Actual Actual Projected
FY09 FY1G FY11 FY16

Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,896,551 2,578,147 2,810,682 23,788,663
Assets whose use is 8,729,070 7,419,562 8,032,356
restricted
Long Term Investments 7,067,838 6,060,568 7,575,795
Total Cash 18,693,459 16,058,277 18,418,833 23,788,663
Total Operating Expense 39,931,587 39,763,375 43,043,992 57,731,959
Less: Depr & (2,640,680} {2,893,127) (2,739,325) (4,975,911}
Amaort
Adjsuted Oper Exp 37,250,907 36,870,248 40,304,667 52,756,048
Adj Oper Exp/ 365 102,167 101,014 110,424 144,537
Days Cash on 183 159 167 165
Hand
Lutheran Life Communities ]

Actual Actual Actual Projected

FYOS FY1i0 FY1ll FYle
Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,758,664 5,240,955 9,285,551 12,000,000
Assets whose use is 11,866,553 11,122,271 14,387,189 12,000,000
restricted
Long Term Investments 8,906,024 8,592,775 11,637,354 19,000,000
Total Cash 25,531,281 24,956,001 35,310,054 43,000,000
Total Operating Expense 89,176,824 50,474,423 96,590,011 111,974,296
Less: Depr & Amort (5,997,481) (6,088,854) {6,076,779) (6,100,000)
Adjsuted Qper Exp 83,179,343 84,385,529 90,513,232 105,874,296
Adj Oper Exp/ 365 227,889 231,193 247,981 290,067
Days Cash on Hand 112 108 142 148

ATTACHMENT 41




LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

B—b-6)

CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY

Cushion Ratio = {Cash plus Investments plus Board Designated Funds)/Principal

Payments plus interest Expense) for the year of maximum debt service after
project completion {Goal is 3.0 or more}:

Obligated Group (LHSA, LHA &
LFA}

Cash/investments
Principal & Interest for year of Max Debt
Service

Cushion Ratio

Lutheran Life Communities B

Cash/Investments

Principal & Interest for year of Max
Debt Service
Cash/Investments

Cushion Ratio

1707317200377 135

Projected
FYi6
23,788,663
8,666,068
IR NS T L)
Projected
FY1i6
43,000,000
14,331,000
For e S T30
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY

Statement Regarding Specific Ratios

Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. complies with all financial ratios except the cushion
ratio, Lutheran Life Communities does not comply with several ratios. Pleasc note the reasons
for these differences from the desired ratio:

Cushion Ratio —

The cushion ratio of Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. of 2.75 is lower than the goal of 3.00.
Additional funds have not been applied to this transaction at this time as typical tax-exempt bond
covenants for a long term healthcare facility like the Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. do not
require investment and cash balances of this magnitude. Additional cash and investments are
continually being added (through contributions and bequests), invested and multiplied in the
Lutheran Life Communities Foundation (which is not part of the obligated group of the Lutheran
Home for the Aged, Inc.) and these funds are available for use by the Lutheran Home for the

Aged if required.
Current Ratio —

The current ratio of Lutheran Life Communities falls below 1.5 but is close to 1.0 or higher in
most cascs. Lutheran Life Communities invests reserved cash into a well diversified portfolio in
order to eam a more significant investment income. These funds ar¢ drawn upon to meet
obligations if needed, however, they are typically not required if the current ratio is maintained at

ornear 1.0.

Net Margin Percentage —

The net margin of Lutheran Life Communities falls below 2.5% but is continuing to improve.
Several factors cause this issue including the following:

o Investment market volatility related to invested reserve funds in this period was
significant. These valuation changes are required to be part of net income.

s Startup expenses and costs arc significant in this period due to startup losses at Luther
Oaks, Wittenberg Village and Pleasant View as each of these campuses had major
renovations and fill up of residences during this period. As these communities continue
to stabilize, net income will improve. These startup losses are funded by bond proceeds
or reserves and are planned/required for the short term in order to produce a more stabile
long term outcome.

o Significant new investments in our campuses create much larger depreciation cxpenses
which is a non-cash item. New buildings do not require this expense to be funded in
early years, however, the financial net income is affected significantly in these early
years.

e A strategic decision has been made to manage donations and bequests through restricting
the funds in the Lutheran Life Communitics Foundation and these contributions are not
included in Unrestricted Net Income. These funds can be used in future years to manage
in times when the funds are needed and when Net Income is required to meet loan and
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.
CON APPLICATION
FINANCIAL VIABILITY
bond covenants in those years. At this time, covenants have typically been met at cach
campus without the use of these restricted funds.

In FY11, if the restricted contributions were added to Net Income, the Net Margin percentage
would have been 1.91%. As stabilization and modcmization continues at Lutheran Life
Communities overall, this ratio will move towards and achieve the 2.5% goal.

Long Term Debt to Capitalization

Lutheran Life Communities complies with this ratio both currently and historically, but the ratio
of 81.6% projected for FY 16 is slightly over the 80% standard. The main reason for this is that
the increase in debt related to Lutheran Home is a major renovation which will enable Lutheran
Home to remain compctitive with a high quality of carc for the next 30 ycars. As debt payments
are made over this time and as surpluses are achicved from the operations during this period, this
ratio will decrease below the 80% standard quickly. In computing this ratio, we are projecting
out 4 years from today and we have been conservative in our estimates of surpluses, investments
income and contributions, bequests and other donations during this period. Increases in the
actual amounts for these items will directly increase net assets and decrease this ratio during this

period.

Debt Service Coverage

Lutheran Life Communities has a debt service coverage ration of 1.26 in FY 10 and 1.07 in FY
11, compared to the standard of 1.5. The reason for this is mainly that the 2009 and 2010 bond
issuances for Wittenberg Village and Pleasant View, respectively, were constructing projects of
revenue producing units during this time period. The debt service coverage ratio is not required
under these bond issucs duc to timing related to finishing construction and then filling up the
units to produce the revenue in order to meet the coverage ratio. Neither of these bond issucs
have required a debt service coverage calculation during these periods. As we progress to FY11
and beyond, these newly constructed units are being filled and revenuc is being generated such
that the debt service coverage ratios (both set at 1.20 in these bond issues) will begin to be met as

planned.
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aﬁLutheran Home

A Lutheran Life Community

March 6, 2012

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Lutheran Home for the Aged, Inc. CON Application — Section 1120.140(a) Certification

Dear Ms. Avery,

In compliance with the Section 1120.140(a) of the Review Board Rules, we hereby certify that
the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by borrowing
because a portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet asset
accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 1.5 times.

Additionally, we hereby certify that the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at
the lowest net cost available.

Sincerely,

LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC.

Wk

RogerW Paulsberg, Chalr

Notarization:

Subscribed and mn to before me
this day of aac . 2012
S

Seal § NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS

)

4

A WILLIAMSON E
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 0324115 E
p

/}«/“.-:-lr —

Vzbmmr, grace-filled lxvmg s l_‘

‘ _ across all genemtwm =
800 West Oakton Street - Arlington Heights, IL 60004

(847) 368-7400 - fax (847) 368-7412 : ‘ ‘}J
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162000

W INUAHOVLLY

Lutheran Home
Projact Modemlzation Cost per DGSF Breakdown

March 8, 2012
CLINICAL - -
PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK Existing (DGSF) Proposed (DGSF) Additien |Madernization
LUTHERAN HOME Total | Vacated | Addition|Medemization] Asds | Total Cost/ DGSF | Cost/DGSF Totat Cost
OLSON PAVILION :
Resident Units 45,537 - 25725 29,802 - 55,527 3 205 | § 176 3 10,518,777
Reskient Baths {SNF) 5,212 - B,725 15,420 - 22,145 $ 325 | 8 235 s 5,809,325
Adminlstrative - - . . - 5 - 3 - L .
Laundry — T . - . 3 - [ . _
Kitchen/Food Prep/Food Storage - - - . $ hd 3 : s =
Dining - - - - - 5 - |§ - 3 -
Sitting / Living / Family Roem_ - - - - - S . S - $ -
Physical Therapy / Exam 2,771 - 3,134 2,725 - 5,859 3 245 | 8 155 [ 1,3%0.265
Spa / Restrpoms - - - - - $ - s - $ -
Staff Support / Maintenance - - - - - - $ - 5 - ] -
Service / Sterage / Receiving - - - - - - & - $ - < -
techanical / Chage - - - - - - $ - S - S -
Circutation 22.028 - 9,252 12776 - 22,028 $ 215 | § 165 % 3,969,374
Soiled / Clean Utility 1,667 - 937 2,133 - 3070 5 2501 8 180 $ 639,520
Empicyes Lounge - - - - - . $ - | % - $ -
Canopy - - - - - - 3 - $ - $ -
Medical Clinic - - - - - “ s - $ - $ -
ALL OTHER AREAS . . 3
E - Wing - - - - - - 5 - IS - s -
Rasldant Ropms / Bathrooms 7,686 - - - 7,686 7,666 $ - $ - % -
Solted / Clean Utillty 592 - - - 592 592 $ - $ - $ -
Circulation 2,786 - - - 2,786 2,786 $ - $ - S -
F - Wing - - - - - - $ - s - 3 -
Resident Roors / Bathrooms 2.448 - - - 2,448 2,448 ] - $ - $ -
Soiled / Clean Wiillty 490} - - - 490 430 5 - 5 - 5 -
Circutation 1,942 - - - 1,942 1,842 $ - $ - 5 -
G - Wing - - - - - - § - |§ - 3 -
Resldent Rooms f Bathrooms 2312 - - - 2,12 2,312 $ - 5 - $ -
Soiled / Clean Ulility 234 - - - 234 234 s - 18 - $ -
Circutation a78 - - - 976 976 % . s - $ -
H - Wing - - - - . 3 - 1§ - s -
Resident Rooms / Bathrooms 2.419 - - - 2,119 2,119 H - $ - $ -
Soled / Clean Lhility 120 . . - 120 120 1 - % - 5 -
MDS Admintstration 172 - - - 172 172 5 - 5 - 5 -
Circutation 1,980 - - L - 1,080 1,980 $ - s - 3 -
J-Wing - . - | - - - $ - $ - % -
__Resident Rooms / Bathrooms o _4m00) 0 - k- | 4,500 | 4500 3 - s R | L
Solled / Clean Utility 192 - - 192 192 3 - 13 - s -
Circudation 5,384 - - - 5,394 5,394 $ - H] - 3 -
otals 111,187 - 45,773 62,856 33,942 142,571 S 22127 201
TOTAL BEDS 334 COST/DGSF & 155.20
DGSF /RED 4269
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v INTAHOV LLV

Lutheran Home

Project Modernization Cost per DGSF Breakdown

March B, 2012

NON-CLINICAL

PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK Existing (SF} .. Proposed (SF} Addition |Modernizatio
LUTHERAN HOME Total | Vacateg | Addition]Modemization] As-ls |  Total Cost per SF | Cost per 8F Total Cos!
OLSON PAVILION
Rasident Units - - - - - 5 - |8 - § -
Resident Baths (SNF} - - - - - -1 - 3 - [ -
Administrative 2.341 1,132 3.262 - 4,394 [ 15[ § 166 |8 791,396
Laundry - - - - - s - |8 - s -
Kitcher/Food Prep/Food Storage 7.833 1,373 12,088 - 13,451 5 425 | % azs s 4512,125
Dining 3,636 10,982 - - 10,982 5 230 [ § - $ 2,525,860
Sitting / Living / Family Room 2,380 8,203 2,685 - 10,668 $ 230§ 150013 2,289,440
Physical Therapy f Exam - - - . - $ - 3 - s .
Spa / Restrooms 2,242 2,089 3,057 - 5,146 s as0 |8 2650 1,541,255
Staff Suppert / Maintenanca 4,149 3,798 5,307 - 9,105 $ 200 | % 15011 s 1,555,650
Servica [ Storage / Recaiving 6.130 1,358 2,243 3,140 6,741 $ 185 | % 160 1% 610,073
Mechanical / Chase 1,950 §,249 2,523 - 8,772 $ 175 | $ 135 3 1,434,180
Circulation 14,276 16,467 23,655 786 40,908 $ 215§ 155003 7,207,016
Soited / Clean Utility - - - - - $ - $ - 3 .
Employee Lounge 1,485 - 2,195 - 2,186 3 230 | § 1451398 318.420
Canopy g2 1,687 - - 1,687 3 07 | § - 5 180,026
Medical Clinic 2,389 1,858 2,350 . 4,208 3 250 | § 18] 1s 868,920
[ALL OTHER AREAS j $ - |5 - $ -
E - Wing 11,680 - - 11,680 11,680 $ - |8 - $ -
F - Wing 26,025 - - 26,825 26,825 5 - 1% - s -
G - Wing 20,380 - - 20,380 20,380 3$ - [ - 5 -
H - Wing 27,934 - - 27.934 27,934 S - s . 3 -
J - Wing 33,950 - - 33,950 33,950 $ - |3 - $ -
otals 169,674 55,196 50,366 | 124694 [ 239,256 $ 23,834,361
TOTALBEDS 334 COST/DGSF  § 99.62
DGSF/BED 7163
FOTAL PROJECT | 280,858 | | 100,969 | 122,222 | 158,636 | 381,827] | | JIs 4s5esi13562]
TOTALBEDS 334 COSTIDGSF & 120.37
DGSF/BED 11432



State Slandard

AT ;}&::-lﬁ- ik ’2\".\?‘ -l’s.g 1145“7{‘4:
s '% zm‘ B aa;‘ﬂuee;gf:F“ s

Preplanmng

5536498

1.3% X (Construcuon +
Contingencies + Equipment)

18% x ($26967.739 +
$1,423,724 + 2,476,606) =

1.8% x $30,868,069 =

$555,625

Below State Standard

Site  Survey and

Preparation

32,041,395

5% x (Construction +
Contingencies) =

3% x (526967739 +
$1.423,724) =

5% x $28,391,463 =

316,927,109

Above State Standard

Modernization Costs

$22,127,201/142,571 GSF =

$155.20 per square foot

$143.50 per square foot
{inflated at 3% per year until
mid-point of construction -see
atiachment) =

$155.21 per gross square foot

Below State Standard

Contingencies

51,168,175

10 - 15% x Modernization

Costs =
10% - 15% x $22,127.20) =

$2,212,720 - 33,315,080

Below State Standard

Architectural/
Engineering Fees

31,961,487

548 % 1w B822% x
(Construction +
Contingencies) =

548% 1 B22%  x
($22,127,201+ $1,168,175) =

5.48% to 8.22% X

$23,295,376 =

51,278,450 - $1,914,880

Above State Standard

Consulting & Other

$506,975

No State Standard

17092931

000293
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Equipment $2,032,071 $6,491 per bed Below State Standard
$6,491 x 334 =
$2,167,994
Other Costs 10 be | $1,038,258 No State Standard
Capitalized
2
17092901

000294
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Calculation of State Standard for Modcernization

New

Year  Quartile Construxtion  Modemnization

2012 i £205.00 $143.50
2 $306.54 $144.58
3 208,00 514566  Project Start
3 £200.65 $146.75

2013 1 521122 814785
2 R12.80 $14896
3 L1440 §150.08
4 S216.68 $as5121

2014 1 21753 $15234
2 5219.25 51534&
1 —
4

015 1 5155 95
2 Sazsm §158.18
3 £227.62 £159.32
4 522031 416052

2016 1 $231.03 316172
2 823077 16294
3 523451 $164.16
L} 523627 $165.39  Project Campletion

Nea mmm:ﬂu

O] i

FComp
Mbd'mizz:unn -f-$15521f9F B Qumpan

1709299\
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Yutheran Home

Explanation of Site Preparation Costs

February 27, 2012

Our review of the costs for this project indicates that the site preparation costs are not in compliance
with the Health Facilities and Services Review Board’s standards. Pursuant to Section 1120.310 of the
Health Facilities and Services Review Board’s rules, we wish to document the constraints and
complexities associated with the Site Preparation for this project.

Hoffman LLC is providing architectural and project management services of the Lutheran Home project.
We have integrally involved with both the design and cost estimation for this project and provide to the
Health Facilities and Services Review Board the following explanation of the complexities causing the
Site Preparation cost to exceed the State standard on this line item,

In review of the project costs associated with site preparation, the total is higher than the typical
allowable limit. There are several factors that cause this result:

1. Alarge amount of hazardous material (asbestos) will be remediated from the site. The
hazardous material will be removed from the property. The hazardous material can be found in
the existing building scheduled to have exhaustive interior demolition and renovation of all
building systems and finishes.

2. The only greenfield portion of the property currently serves as the detention basin for storm
water management. Because this is the only greenfield portion of the property, it is the portion
of the site to build the large scale addition on. In order to accomplish this, underground storm
detention traps are being built to support the storm water management plan.

3. In addition to storm water management conflicts, this area of the project will also include
rerouting of other major utilities including: electrical service, water main service, and sanitary
service.

4. Alarge on-site parking lot expansion is a part of the project. Due to the complexity of the
parking requirements, the site development will take place with many sequenced phases that
will lead to a longer duration and many mobilizations for the site work contractors to maintain
site amenities and safety during the construction phase.

Kevin Madalinski

Senior Project Manager

ATTACHMENT 42
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Lutheran Home

Explanation of Architectural and Engineering Fees

February 27, 2012

Our review of the costs for this project indicates that the architectural costs are not in compliance with
the Health Facilities and Services Review Board's standards. Pursuant to Section 1125 of the Health
Facilities and Services Review Board’s rules, we wish to document the constraints and complexities
associated with the architectural and englneering fees for this project.

Hoffman LLC is providing architectural and project management services of the Lutheran Home project.
We have integrally involved with both the design and cost estimation far this project and provide to the
Health facilities and Services Review Board the following explanation of the complexities causing the
architectural and engineering fees to exceed the State standard on this line item.

In review of the project costs assoclated with architectural and engineering fees, the total is higher than
the typical allowable limit. There are several factors that cause this result:

1. Inorderto implement the construction for the project, significant detéi!ed documentation is
created to maintain a high level of occupancy during the renovations of the existing portion of
the project. This detailed documentation results in significant time and focus to maintain high
levels of resident safety, security, and comfort. In addition, detailed plans are created to share
with Hlinois Department of Public Health for review of these issues to maintain certification of
these spaces during construction. Multipie plans are used to outline this complex phasing.

2. The existing facility was constructed at different times. This has resulted in creating multiple
details to address the different existing conditions for the project. Detaits for the building
systems have required muitiple details to maintain operations during construction, as well as
adapt to the different conditions in the existing facility.

3. The project is subject to the local village review requirements. This approval process has
required a highly detailed and reviewed project approval process involving multiple meetings
with various committees, vlllage commissions, neighborhood public hearings, and village board
of trustees. This process is lengthy and time consuming in nature.

Kevin Madalinski

Senior Project Manager

ATTACHMENT 42
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC,
CON APPLICATION
ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

Projected Operating Costs (excluding depreciation) for First Full Year after
completion as A} Annual Operating Costs and B) Annual Operating Costs Attributable
to the Project:

A} Annual Operating Costs

Projected Olsen & Remodel Nursing 11,552,282
Projected Non Olsen Nursing 5,993,368
Projected Non Nursing LHA 23,662,185
Less: Projected LHSA Net income {966,964)
Projected Hearthstone Revenue 6,733,703
Add: Addt'l Elect & Gas for New Bldg 1,257,746
Add: Addt'l Debt Service interest 7,671,068
Add: Addt'l Depr Exp for Project 1,828,571
Total FY2016 Projected Operating 57,731,959
Expense

Less: FY2016 Depr-Current Projected (3,147,340}
Less: FY2016 Depr-New Project Projected (1,828,571)
Totals FY2016 Projected Annual Oper 52,756,048
Costs

B) Annual Operating Costs attributable to the

Addt't Elect & Gas for New Bldg 1,257,746
Addt'i Debt Service Interest 7,671,068
Total Annual Oper Costs attrib to Project 8,928,814

Projected Annual Capital Costs (Depreciation, Amortization and Interest Expense for
first full year after project completion or first full year of target occupancy (which is
expected to be the same year):

Current Capital Exps (Depr, Amort & Interest} w/out new debt proj. to FY2016 4,374,866

New Debt Service Amounts in addition to old Interest Expense {Scenario 3) 7,671,068

New Depreciation Expense on new Construction {$64M over 35 1,828,571

years)

Total Capital Costs 13,874,505
ATTACHMENT 42
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Lutheran
Home
A Lutheran Life Community

Arlington Heights, lllinois
Project No. 09726

March 5, 2011

Milestone Schedule

Description

Construction Start
25% of Modemization Funds Expended
75% of Modemization Funds Expended

95% of Modemization Funds Expended

100% of Medemization Funds Expended

170390022003 747135
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a00299

Nz 0 Hoffman.! tpm*

Date

September
2012

June 2013
May 2015
April 2018

June 2016
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LUTHERAN HOME FOR THE AGED, INC,
CON APPLICATION
CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

CHARITY CARE
2011 2010 2009
Net Patient Revenue 40,761,503 41,930,125 45,154,070
Amount of Charity Care
(charges) 11,588,427 12,023,585 12,521,504
| Cost of Charity Care 8,839,444 8,861,269 9,344,953
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